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Chairmen’s Report
Dear Stakeholder,
We take pleasure in discussing our business
environment and the developments during
Financial Year 2005. It has been a record year
for the Company not only in terms of financial
performance but also with regard to the
emerging opportunities in the marketplace
and the actions that we have initiated and
undertaken to get the most out of them.

“Large global
pharma players are
increasingly
embracing
outsourcing of
various acitivities
across the entire
value chain.”

The domestic economy continues to expand
at a healthy pace, and despite a lower than
expected monsoon and increasing oil prices
globally, the country's GDP for FY 2005 is
expected to register a growth of over 6.5%.
The global economy too is expected to
register a decent performance,
although there has been
some deceleration due to
the impact of oil price driven
inflationary pressures. The
pharmaceuticals and
life sciences sector
is among the
better performing
segments of the
global economy
with substantial
opportunities
unfolding for
high quality,
costcompetitive
and IPR
compliant players
from India.
The rapid growth in
the global life sciences
industry, coupled with
changing market
dynamics especially in
the developed and
regulated markets, is
creating some unique
and fast
expanding

opportunities in the area of outsourcing.
Escalating healthcare costs have resulted in
increasing cost pressures on both generic and
innovator pharma companies in the regulated
markets, encouraging them to explore avenues
that reduce costs without compromising on
quality. Towards this end, large global pharma
players are increasingly embracing outsourcing
of various acitivities across the entire value
chain. Today, the total outsourcing opportunity in
pharma sector is estimated to be about
US $ 48 billion. Given India's large scientific
talent pool and cost advantages, we believe it
can potentially capture about 20% of the global
pharma outsourcing market.
India has all the right
ingredients for success in
pharma outsourcing.
Companies with
strong knowledge
base and an
organizational
culture that
promotes
innovation
and
customercentricity are
likely to benefit
most from these
global
opportunities.
From that
perspective, we
believe, Jubilant
Organosys is
ideally placed to
enhance its role
as an
outsourcing
partner to the
global pharma
and life sciences
industry.

Jubilant not only enjoys the India
advantages, but also supplements that with
many other inherent strengths that give the
Company a competitive edge as an
outsourcing partner. We are present across
the entire pharmaceuticals value chain. At
one end, we have established a strong value
proposition aimed at early stage drug
discovery, through bio/chemo informatic
databases, medicinal chemistry services and
clinical research. Our APIs and dosage forms
businesses constitute the other end of the
spectrum. Straddling both ends of the value
chain are our Custom Research and
Manufacturing Services business, where we
are able to seamlessly scale up the
manufacturing of advance intermediates and
fine chemicals for bulk actives from lab scale
to bulk commercial supply. We believe that
our capabilities are remarkably unique,
enabling us to partner our customers for their
outsourcing needs as a “one stop shop” for
products and services right from drug
discovery to supply of dosage forms.
What differentiates us is our long-standing
expertise in chemistry and complex chemical
reaction technologies. Our chemistry
knowledge accumulated over the last
25 years, pioneering investment in R&D from
a very early stage, and manufacturing skills
have allowed us to acquire a proven track
record of quality and timely delivery. This in
turn has resulted in long-term and sustained
customer partnerships. We continually
undertake fresh initiatives to ensure that our

R&D-led competitive edge sustains.
As responsible corporate citizens, we believe
that sustainable growth is possible only when
we take all our stakeholders along with us in our
growth journey. The communities around our
workplaces and the environment forms integral
part of our decision making process. We weigh
all our commercial activities on its impact on
these key stakeholders.
Our philosophy
“Our highly integrated manufacturing operations
places our
and ability to stretch ourselves has allowed us to
customers at the
create unrivalled level of competence in our key
centre of
products, with one of the best cost structures and
everything we do.
a global focus.”
It is our intention
to be recognized
as key, reliable and trustworthy partner to our
customers, with a view to exceed their
expectations from us. Our growth and our
success is a result not only of our strategy and
efforts, but more importantly the support and
co-operation that we receive from all our
stakeholders.
In essence, we believe in creating mutually
value realizing, highly trustworthy and reliable,
fair and equitable open relationships with all our
stakeholders. This in our opinion lays a strong
foundation for creating and enabling “Jubilant
Partnership” with each of our stakeholders. It is
these “Jubilant Partnerships” that enable our
success and progress, and it will always be our
endeavour to strengthen each of these
relationships in the future.

Shyam S Bhartia

Hari S Bhartia

Chairman and Managing Director

Co-Chairman and Managing Director
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Executive Directors’ Messages

DR. J M KHANNA
Executive Director & President – Life Sciences

“As a true partner to global pharmaceutical
companies, we prepare ourselves to offer a
complete range of products and services
for companies. In a short span of 2 years,
we created a state-of-the-art R&D and
cGMP complying manufacturing
infrastructure for innovation,
manufacturing and
delivering products of international quality
to highly regulated markets. We will
continue to enhance our international
presence through acquisitions and
alliances in Europe and USA which in turn
would strengthen our business capability
to market our products / services in the
regulated markets.”

S N SINGH
Executive Director & President – Chemicals

“Global operations have to be of global
scale. In most of our product categories
we have global size operations, providing
international levels of efficiencies and
offering the highest standards of service to
meet our customers' needs. Our
technological know-how and strong
capabilities in complex chemical reactions
enable us to partner our customers with
the promise of complete protection of
their intellectual property.
Keeping in view our manufacturing profile,
business model, partnership-led customer
relationships, and strong sense of social
responsibility, we continuously better our
operations and enter into higher value
segments. We believe that we have the key
levers and drivers in place that can be
relied upon to deliver better value and
performance in the future.”
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S BANG

Executive Director – Manufacturing & Supply Chain

“In order to build sustainable partnerships
with our customers, it is essential that we
demonstrate high levels of efficiency and
cost competitiveness that are
complementary to our technical
competence. We achieve that by partnering
with our vendors, suppliers, workers and
other associates who enable us to ascertain
optimum inventory levels and provide us
with seamless reach to our customers in
the global marketplace. Our supply chain
and manufacturing teams are very
customer-focused, with a high degree of
awareness about customer requirements
and a yearning to compare favourably with
international benchmarks. This is
complemented by our unwavering
commitment to the environment, employee
health, safety and sustainable development.
These management initiatives and value at
all points across our operations, benefit us,
our vendors, suppliers, customers and
eventually our shareholders.”

R SANKARAIAH

Executive Director – Finance

“The financial year 2005 proved to be a year
of all round achievement for the Company.
Enabled by its international acquisitions and
R&D initiatives, Jubilant Organosys has now
become a composite pharmaceuticals
industry player, offering products and
services to global pharmaceutical and
agrochemical customers. Operationally, the
Company continued to deliver strong growth
recording an increase of 36% in net sales
and a 52% rise in net profits for FY 2005. We
have strengthened the balance sheet
through strong operational performance,
raising equity through private placement
and issue of unsecured Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds with an international
listing. This has resulted in substantial
improvement in all the key financial ratios
of the Company enabling future growth.
Participation of the highly recognized global
and domestic investors changed the
shareholding profile significantly. The
Company remain committed to enhance
shareholder value.”

7

Directors’ Messages

BODHISHWAR RAI Director
“The past year has been quite eventful,
both for the industry and the Company.
The industry has witnessed significant
interest from global life sciences majors
for outsourcing of certain activities to
capable and efficient players in low-cost
geographies. Jubilant Organosys, as
India's largest CRAMS company, is
bound to benefit from such trends. In
keeping with its leadership status,
Jubilant has also expanded its own
presence and acquired pharma
companies in Europe during fiscal
2005. The future appears promising and
I am confident that the management
team of Jubilant has the competencies
to convert emerging opportunities into
tangible achievements.”

ARABINDA RAY Director
“I have been on the Board of the
Company practically from its inception.
Its decision to exploit a special
technology to use molasses rather than
petroleum stock was the precursor of
several breakthroughs. It has been a
rewarding experience to see a modest
sized enterprise setting out to make a
single organic compound and its byproducts, become a major
international player in the
pharmaceutical industry. This has
been achieved through a meticulous
search for the right opportunities,
assessing one's own capabilities
professionally to take advantage of
them. The result of these initiatives is
reflected in the market's confidence in
the Company which can only get
further strengthened in the
approaching years.”

SURENDRA SINGH Director
“Jubilant Organosys Ltd. is a well
managed company that lays special
emphasis on product quality. It is
constantly on the lookout for ways to
extend its horizons to the limit. It
observes all the tenets of good
corporate governance and shows great
concern for all its stakeholders, i.e.
shareholders, customers, employees
and community at large.”

8

AJAY RELAN Director
“The Indian economy as well as its
corporate sector is fast gaining global
competitiveness. A number of
industries in the country like
information technology,
pharmaceuticals and chemicals among
others, are already world class. A vast
country with huge resources and highly
skilled people, India is set to become a
key economic power in the next few
years, facilitated by its inherent
advantages. As a leading player in the
country's life sciences sector, Jubilant is
well-placed to leverage upon India's
growth drivers and its own strengths to
register rapid growth in the
coming years.”

H K KHAN Director
“In a global economy, continuous
growth inspired by vision is the key to
success. These are the qualities I
found in the leadership of
Jubilant Organosys.

Spanning over three decades of close
association with the Chemical and
Pharma industry, my experience has
convinced me that this industry has
tremendous potential for expansion in
the international arena, if it is based
on quality backed by a skilled research
team, constant search for new fields
and a dynamic leadership with a high
corporate morale.

DR. NARESH TREHAN Director
“The Indian pharma industry has for
long played an important role in
helping maintain healthcare costs in
the country at affordable levels, and
with its competitive development costs
and skilled talent pool, it is now poised
to replicate that in the global
marketplace. Jubilant, enabled by its
strong R&D base and internationally
accredited manufacturing facilities, is
ideally placed to partner with global
pharma companies. Such partnerships
serve the dual purposes of lowering
costs for international drug companies
and opening up new markets for
Jubilant where significant
opportunities exist.”

These qualities are the hallmark of
Jubilant Organosys Ltd.”
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“India, given its advantages of low development cost, skilled
manpower, internationally accredited manufacturing facilities
having cGMP and complex chemical synthesis capabilities,
would be preferred destination for outsourcing.”
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OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
ENVIRONMENT
The economy outlook remains positive
The Indian economy continued to chart a
healthy growth path during the year under
review, with most estimates pointing to
an over 6.5% growth in GDP for fiscal
2005. Productivity across all core sectors,
barring agriculture which experienced a
deficient monsoon, has shown
improvement. During the first ninemonths of
“Indian economy continued FY 2005, the
to grow much faster than
industrial
world economy. Though the sector
registered a
major global economies
growth of
witnessed deceleration,
8.4%, the
pharmaceuticals and life
highest after
sciences sector was among
1995-96, and
the better performing
the services
segments ”
sector
recorded an 8.9% growth during the
same period. Inflation has remained at
acceptable levels for most part of the
year, although the impact of rising crude
oil prices gives some cause for concern.
The economy's ability to maintain its
growth momentum despite a deficient
monsoon and global oil price-led
inflationary pressures indicates strong
fundamentals. Going forward, we believe
that the country's investment climate and
economic outlook is expected to
remain positive.
From the global perspective, there
appears to have been marginal
deceleration in some of the key
economies, including the regulated
markets that we and our partners operate
in – such as the US, Germany and Japan
in late 2004. However, a more than 3%
overall growth in world GDP is expected
during the year 2005. The pharmaceutical
and life sciences sector is among the
better performing
segments of the
global economy with
substantial
opportunities
unfolding for high

quality, cost-competitive players in
India. These opportunities are more
pronounced for companies that
can leverage their existing
strengths to emerge as
reliable and valuable
outsourcing partners to
the global life sciences
industry.

Outsourcing in the
pharma sector
There has been a steady
and impressive growth in
global pharmaceutical
outsourcing in recent
years. Given the multiple
advantages that
outsourcing offers to
manufacturers and
consumers, such as reduced
costs, shared risks and improved
time to market, it is expected to
maintain its progressive momentum in the
years ahead. Due to the knowledge-intensive
nature of the pharma and life
sciences industry, opportunities
“Global outsourcing in pharma is
for outsourcing exist across the
today worth US$ 48 billion and is
entire pharma value chain.
expanding from manufacturing
Accordingly, recent trends and
outsourcing to knowledge based
our own experiences show that
areas like research.”
in addition to the traditional
outsourcing activity of contract
manufacturing, new activities like contract
research, contract sales and bio-informatics
are also fast becoming
significant
contributors to the
global
pharmaceutical
outsourcing pie. As
a result, the global
market for
pharmaceutical
“Outsourcing offers
outsourcing, which
multiple advantages to
is currently about
manufacturers as well
$48 billion, is
as to consumers and is
estimated to grow
expected to gain
to over $55 billion
momentum.”
in the year 2005.
Europe is
currently the
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“Jubilant not only enjoys the India advantages, but also
has inherent strengths that provide it a competitive edge
as an outsourcing partner.”
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“Market dynamics and
regulatory pressures are
motivating pharma
companies in regulated
markets to explore the
option of outsourcing.”

largest market for pharmaceutical
outsourcing, primarily due to stricter
government controls on prescription drug
prices, which in turn compel large
pharmaceutical manufacturers to explore
ways to keep their costs low. Market
dynamics and regulatory pressures are
increasingly motivating pharma
companies in the US too to squeeze
costs, and outsourcing through contract
manufacturing and related activities is
rapidly gaining acceptance there. The
increasing cost pressure on both generic
and innovator pharma companies in
regulated markets due to spiraling
healthcare costs, has resulted in these
companies exploring cost effective
options of outsourcing. These events are
expected to continue driving the growth
of outsourcing in the global life sciences
segment.

Pharma outsourcing and the India
advantage
The key success attributes for an
outsourcing services provider are quality,
technological capability, skilled
manpower, and confidentialityled trustworthiness. India
is seen as an ideal
outsourcing
destination, as it
has the right blend
of cost advantages
in terms of human
resources, material, and
project implementation.
The country has already

demonstrated its technical strength in the
areas of IT, chemistry, biotechnology, and
process engineering. The country's large and
diverse population could be
a catalyst for significant
“India not only offers cost
success in the area of
advantage in terms of human
clinical research
resources, material and project
outsourcing. Of the total
implementation, it has a track
outsourcing opportunity in
record of IPR compliance.”
the global pharma sector,
estimated at US$48 billion
currently, India could capture around 20% of
this opportunity.

The Jubilant advantage as an outsourcing
partner of choice
Evidently, while countries such as India –
with access to a large talent pool of
engineers and researchers – would be
natural beneficiaries from the expansion of
global pharma outsourcing, that in itself will
not suffice for Indian companies to be able
to participate in these emerging
opportunities. Indian companies with a solid
R&D base, presence at multiple points in the
value chain, strong chemistry
and bio-sciences expertise,
world-class
manufacturing
infrastructure,
proven respect for
IPRs and robust
relationships with
international life
sciences majors would be
in a better position to
capitalize on the global
outsourcing opportunity.
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“Positioned as a “one stop shop” for products and services
right from drug discovery to supply of finished dosage forms,
Jubilant is ideally placed as an outsourcing partner of choice
for the global life sciences industry.”
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CRAMS

APIs &
Dosage Forms

Drug Discovery

Manufacturing
Jubilant has a presence across the entire
pharmaceuticals value chain, right from
research services for early stage drug
discovery, advance intermediates from
lab to commercial scale to APIs, and
development and supply of
dosage forms.
We are able to leverage our chemistry
knowledge, strong R&D and
manufacturing skills, accumulated over
the last 25 years, to create world-class
products and services. We have a proven
track record of quality and timeliness in
delivery that is evident from the longevity
of our customer relationships. Our
process capabilities to scale up from
milligram quantities in laboratories, to
metric tonne quantities in multi purpose
plants, are unique and unparalleled. Our
sustained and long-term customer
relationships continue to help us leverage
our strengths and expand our portfolio of
products and services that form our
complete integrated value chain.

STRATEGY AND BUSINESS MODEL
We, as an organization, have been able to
successfully evolve into a company
present across the entire pharma and life
sciences value chain, from advance
intermediates and fine chemicals to APIs,
discovery services, clinical research, and

finished dosage forms. Such a
comprehensive offerings profile, combined
with strong product and process capabilities
acquired over the past 25 years, has enabled
us to emerge as a composite
pharmaceuticals industry player. This in turn
has laid a solid foundation for us to
implement our growth strategy.
Our strategy for continued rapid growth is
three pronged, where we aim to
+ consolidate our position as the preferred

partner for the outsourcing needs of the
worldwide pharma and life
sciences industry,
“Present across
+ ensure that we steadfastly

sustain our status as reliable
partners, not competitors, to
our global customers, and

entire pharma
value chain with
strong R&D and
manufacturing skills”

+ continuously move up the value

chain through organic and inorganic
initiatives.

Outsourcing partners of choice to global
pharma and life sciences industry
Leveraging the emerging outsourcing
opportunities in global pharmaceuticals and
life sciences sector is at the core of
Jubilant's strategy for future growth. The
advantages we enjoy as an India-based
global player with formidable technological
and manufacturing expertise, reputation for
high quality and an international customer
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profile that includes some of the most
quality-conscious companies, make us
the outsourcing partners of choice for the
global pharma and life sciences industry.

Absolute commitment to partnership at
every stage
We offer products and services to
customers across the pharma and life
sciences value chain. This has enabled us
to become a one stop shop for products
and services for global pharma and
agrochem
“Our investment in R&D right from the
customers,
inception has enabled us to move up the value who regard us
chain and transform ourselves to a composite as dependable
and
pharmaceutical industry player.”
trustworthy
partners. We are therefore committed to
maintain an unwavering focus on
partnering with our customers at every
stage of the value chain without
competing with them in the market place.
This commitment distinguishes us as
reliable and long-term partners for our
customers.

Continuously moving up the
value chain and competing
in the global markets
Our progress over
the years has been
driven by a series
of strategic
initiatives that
have enabled
us to evolve
today into a
composite
pharmaceuticals
industry
player. The
key enablers
across all our
past and
ongoing
initiatives
have been our
pioneering
investments
in resultoriented R&D

and thrust on continuously moving up the
value chain, led by our knowledge base.
Innovation, therefore, has been and
continues to be the cornerstone of our
growth strategy.
Our sustained R&D efforts since inception
have enabled us to move up the value chain,
to grow and transform ourselves into a
composite pharmaceuticals industry player.
Our solid R&D establishment also allowed us
to become more efficient and attain worldclass quality standards for our products and
services, which helped us expand our
operations to the international markets.
Today, Jubilant is a global player. We
compete in the global market place and
most of our export revenues today come
from discerning customers in highly qualityconscious markets such as Europe, the US,
and Japan.
In addition to driving innovation and growth
through our own internal efforts, we have
also successfully reduced our learning time
by the acquisition of knowledge led
companies in India and Europe. These
acquisitions have accelerated our ascent
up the value chain,
complemented our
offerings
portfolio,
strengthened
our market
presence
and
contributed
to overall
performance.
We continue
to look for
similar
opportunities
in markets
such as the US
to further
enhance our
market
presence and
value
proposition.
Having defined
a clear
strategy,
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“The Company collaborates, with its customers at each stage
of their developmental and commercialization process and
offers cost effective and efficient solutions.”

we have created a business model that
supports our stated objectives and makes
us a
“We have driven innovation and
unique
growth through inhouse
player
within the
development supported by
sector. We
acquisition of knowledge led
derive our
companies.”
strengths
from our robust capabilities on both
aspects of operations – manufacturing
and services – and enjoy high levels of
operating efficiencies that gives us
competitive advantage across all product
categories.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We enjoy unique competitive advantages,
owing to the multiple strengths that have
either been acquired over the years or
resulted due to the way we manage our
operations. As we move further up the
value chain, becoming a preferred
outsourcing partner to the world's pharma

and life sciences industry, the ability to
retain and attract customers is increasingly
dependent on creating trust in the quality of
our products and making them available at
costs that help our customers enhance their
own cost competitiveness – which ultimately
lowers the cost of healthcare and benefits
the end-user.

Research and development
Jubilant Organosys is a knowledge-led
organization. The drive to be innovative and
to excel in the quality of our products have
been our core business value since the time
we began operations several years ago as a
chemicals manufacturer. We believe that our
rapid and successful ascent up the value
chain has been powered by our initial
pioneering investments in R&D activities.
Over the past 5 years, we developed 143
new products that accounted for 23% of our
revenues in FY 2005. We, today, have over
250 scientists, 70 of them PhDs, working in
R&D labs spread over a combined area of
170,000 sq. ft., equipped with the latest
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scientific
instruments and
tools. During the
year under review,
we invested about
8% of our
revenues from
pharmaceuticals
and life science segment on R&D.
“Today, we have created
a world-class R&D
organization that has
delivered in terms of
new products, new
processes, and
substantial cost
savings.”

During the year, significant investments
were made to expanding our R&D
initiatives in existing businesses and also
started the R&D work in new areas such
as formulation development, chemistry
services and clinical research.
The R&D in CRAMS business has further
expanded during the year. A team of 45
scientists are working in this area which
has resulted in 7 new products added in
CRAMS portfolio during the year. Process
development and optimization projects
for global companies were also
completed which are expected to result in
supply of intermediates / fine chemicals
in commercial quantities during the
fiscal year 2006.
The team of scientists dedicated to API

development is now close to 100 scientists.
This expansion has resulted in 12 APIs on
which R&D work has been completed and
they are ready for supply in semi-commercial
quantity. The team is now working on
another 15 APIs and is expected to finish the
R&D work on these products during the
current fiscal year. These products are
expected to be commercialized over the next
2-5 years depending on the patent expiry of
the products.
The Company is setting up a new R&D centre
for development of dosage forms. The
facility, spread over an area of
20,000 sq. ft, equipped with latest
equipment to develop new processes and
products going off patent in years to come
and also the new drug delivery systems for
products still under patent. The formulation
R&D is focusing on developing solid dosage
forms of capsules and tablets and will have
R&D scale tableting facility and capsuling
machine. We will conduct both real time and
accelerated stability studies of the products
developed in these R&D labs.
Our subsidiary company, Jubilant Chemsys
Ltd., has set up the facility to carry out
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chemical synthesis of medicinal
compounds for drug discovery
companies to facilitate their lead
optimization process. This facility has the
capacity to undertake 8-10 projects
simultaneously and about 50 scientists
can work in this facility. This medicinal
chemistry services R&D is spread in
25,000 sq. ft. area and currently employs
47 scientists. To avoid cross
contamination of data, the scientists are
extensively trained in data generation,
reporting and secrecy before they take up
the commercial projects. This R&D facility
is equipped with latest communication
equipment also to ensure instant
connectivity and real time reporting.
We are determined to continue investing
in R&D to fuel our growth in the coming
years.

Manufacturing and supply chain
Over the past 25 years, we have
accumulated extensive learnings, a wellstabilized base technology, process
efficiencies, and global scales in all our
key products. While our global scale

makes us more efficient, our vertically
integrated manufacturing facilities, located
strategically near raw material sources and
customers, allow us to be cost competitive.
The main feedstock for us is a renewable
resource, molasses, which hedges us
against petrochemical cycles that other
players face and makes our operations more
environment-friendly. In order to better meet
evolving market demand and needs, we have
also established flexible multi purpose
plants that can manufacture multiple
products based on market dynamics.
During the fiscal year 2005, we expanded
our manufacturing capacities mainly for our
CRAMS and APIs businesses. We
commissioned a new multi purpose facility
for the fine chemicals which has a reactor
capacity of 100 kl. This facility has started
commercial production in the month of
March 2005. To offer the seamless scale up
from lab scale to commercial scale, we set
up a kilo lab facility with a reactor capacity of
3.6 kl. This kilo lab, built with technical
assistance from PharmaPlan, was
commercialized in February 2005. The kilo
lab facility is now being further expanded by

“We are catalyst to
the business of our
customers and help
them in accelerating
their development
process and in
enabling their
faster reach to the
market.”
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7 kl to meet the growing demand for
process development and optimization.

“Our efficiency in
managing our supply
chain for effective
procurement of quality
materials and timely
delivery of finished
products leads to total
customer satisfaction.”

The impact on the environment guides
our investments in expanding our
operations. We have set stringent norms
for environment management and meet
international standards. We are
committed to be the zero discharge
operations and have already achieved it in
three of our manufacturing facilities in
Nira, Samlaya and Nanjangud. Our
Gajraula facility will also achieve zero
discharge status by 2006. During the year,
our Nira facility was also granted
ISO 14001 certification.

strength of our quality and reliability as a
partner. Resultantly, we have an outstanding
track record of retaining our clients with
repeat, and often enhanced, orders.
We export our products to more than 150
customers in the life sciences industry in
around 55 countries, assisted by two
marketing subsidiaries in the US and China
and subsidiaries in Europe. While growing
and strengthening our customer
relationships, we have also ensured that our
sales in terms of customer spread are
diversified, which is evident from the fact

Our API facility at Nanjangud was also
granted US FDA approval for Lamotrigine.

Customer profile and exports
We have built strong customer
relationships in the global market, on the
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that our top 20 customers contribute
only 27.6% of our sales.

World-class quality
Our partnership with customers and
vendors alike is based upon a shared
obsession with quality. Our
customers expect from us products
and services that stand up to the
best in the world. We expect the
same from our vendors and
suppliers. Internally, each member of
our 2,600-strong workforce is
committed to playing her or his role
in an organization wide quality
movement, with the ultimate
objective of consistently delivering
high quality products and services to
our customers.
Our strategy to capitalize on the
outsourcing opportunities unfolding
in the life sciences industry hinges
upon our ability to deliver high
quality products and services in a
reliable and trusted manner. The
markets and customers that we cater
to are sophisticated and discerning.
We have therefore always strived to
keep improving our technologies and
processes as well as skills of our
people to meet stringent global
standards consistently.

Velocity – a Six Sigma initiative
In 2004, we had initiated the
organization- wide ‘Velocity’
initiative. The Velocity initiative is
aimed at bringing about a positive
cultural change within the
organization, with a sharp focus on
customer-centricity, speed, quality, and
cost. This entails implementation of
process improvement methodologies and
globally accepted best practices such as
total quality management, 5S, TPM,
DMAIC, IFSS, BPMS throughout the value
chain. During FY 2005, we made
significant progress on this initiative to
next level by covering sales and
marketing, IT Services and R & D
functions also besides manufacturing
which was taken up in first phase.

Process quality with respect to customer
satisfaction
We respect and care for our customers,
working in partnership with them to satisfy
their needs and giving them the best
possible value. Through our Velocity
initiative, we have been able to achieve
better defect prevention through predictable
processes and improved customer retention
rates during the year under review.

“Globally, 15 out of
20 top pharma
companies and 7 out
of 10 top Agrochem
companies are our
customer.”
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“A company wide initiative, Velocity launched in 2004, has
brought the positive cultural change with a sharp focus on
customer centricity, speed, quality and cost.”
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Continuous improvement
Although the Velocity initiative was
launched in FY 2004, quality itself is not a
new phenomenon at Jubilant. Over the
years, we have focused on improving the
quality of our processes and products,
and this continues even today aided by
the Velocity initiative. We encourage our
people across the organization to develop
themselves and find ways to improve
their performance. Such a continuous
improvement process is helping us to
meet the high quality standards of
discerning customers worldwide.

Cross-functional team of Black Belts,
Yellow Belts, and White Belts
Our quality initiative derives its ongoing
success from the fact that every
individual in the organization is involved in
it, and it has the active support and
participation of the senior management
team and functional heads. Through
inhouse training, and lateral recruitment
wherever necessary, we now have 17 Six
Sigma black belts and 220 yellow belts at
the end of FY 2005 across all our
operational functions manufacturing,
human resource management, sales &
marketing, R&D, supply chain
management, finance, and IT services.
During the year, our Velocity initiative
undertook 90 projects of which 64 have
been completed. These initiatives are
undertaken by involving the existing
teams which would result in sustained
savings from such improvements.
In the first wave of Velocity initiative the
focus was on improvement of

manufacturing operations. In the
second wave, we recently
expanded the Velocity
initiative to cover the
sales and marketing
teams, which would
ensure better
understanding of our
customers’ need by
our teams. The
concept is based on
sharing the ideas and
developing best
practices which could
result in a win-win situation for
both our customers and us.
Going forward, we intend to continue
leveraging our technical, operational, quality,
marketing, and financial strengths to drive
future growth by engaging with international
life sciences majors and participating in the
global outsourcing opportunity.

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
The financial year 2005 has been a year of
impressive growth, the significant
improvement in the result of operations
being primarily driven by increased
contribution from the Pharma and Life
sciences business and the acquisition of PSI
and PSI supply in Europe.

Financial performance
Net sales recorded a growth of 36.2% to
Rs. 11,703 million. The revenue from the
international market increased by 83.7%
to Rs.4,202 million with sales to the
regulated markets contributing 68% of
international sales.
There was a 35.9% increase in
EBIDTA during the year to
Rs. 2,242 million. The Company
maintained its EBITDA margin at
19.2%. PBDT during the year
increased by 56.5% to
Rs. 2,022 million mainly due to
38.5% reduction in interest cost to
Rs. 220 million.
The PBIT of the company
increased by 41% to
Rs. 1861 million. The Pharma and
Life Science business delivered a
32.0% increase in PBIT to
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Rs.1,110 million, contributing 56.5% of
the overall PBIT. The Industrial Chemicals
business reported a PBIT growth of
36.3% to Rs. 830 million.
Profit before tax improved by
“Top line growth of
69.9% to Rs. 1,641 million
36% and PAT
during the year. The tax rate for
growth of 52%.”
the Company increased to 26%
during the year. Net profit
increased by 52.4% to Rs.1,192 million
resulting in an EPS (on a fully diluted
“We are a composite
basis) of Rs. 46.77 for the period.
pharmaceutical
industry player with
presence across the
pharma value chain
from drug discovery to
CRAM and APIs to
regulatory affairs and
dosage forms”

Operational performance
We have organized our
overall business in three
segments, based upon
the nature of their enduse industries and
product application.
These three business
segments are

+ Pharma and Life Science chemicals
+ Performance chemicals and
+ Industrial chemicals

We are a rapidly growing company and
within our three business areas, the Pharma
and Life Sciences business is our primary
growth driver. Accordingly, most of our
incremental investment and focus is on this
particular business, while the Industrial
Chemicals and Performance Chemicals
businesses provide us with steady cash

Financial Performance of Different Business Divisions
Business Division

Profit before
Interest and Tax

Net Sales
FY 2004

FY 2005

FY 2004

FY 2005

Pharmaceutical and
Life Science Chemicals

3,213

4,841

841

1,110

Performance Chemicals

1,584

1,668

38

25

Industrial Chemicals

3,795

5,194

609

830

Total

8,592

11,703

1,488

1,965
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In CRAMS, we have three distinct
revenue streams:
+ Custom manufacturing, where the

thrust is on the supply of advance
intermediates and fine chemicals in
commercial quantities for APIs and
agrochemicals that are already inmarket.
+ Custom research, where the focus is on

Cost leadership
through backward
integration

process development and optimization
on either FTE (Full Time Equivalent) or
molecule basis. We have recently
completed a few such contracts with
leading global companies and they have
now requested us for supply of
kilograms quantities
of the same
molecules.

enabled us to register healthy growth and
performance despite pricing pressures. Such
growth in volumes was made possible by
our entry into new markets such as Japan
and our enhanced presence in US and
Europe and addition of new products and
services to
“Delivering products from mg
cater to
to MT quantities, from preexisting
clinical stage to in-market
customers
during
products, we ensure seamless
the year.
scale up.”
We derive our
strengths in CRAMS from our market
presence and position, cost leadership,

+ Discovery, where we

partner with
innovator
pharmaceutical
companies in their
drug discovery
process by supplying
intermediates at the
pre-clinical and
clinical stages of
development.
Currently we are
supplying products
for 15 drugs,
of which four
are at the
pre-clinical
stage, two
are at
phase 1 of
the clinical
stage while
five are in
phase 2 and
four are in clinical phase 3.
These offerings, each of which is backed
by our strong chemistry expertise, R&D
backbone, world-class manufacturing
facilities, provide us with a well-rounded
business model and stability of revenue.
This business witnessed noticeable
volume growth during FY 2005, which

chemistry expertise, and a unique and novel
business model. We are globally the number
two manufacturers of pyridine and its
derivatives, which is used as a building block
for multiple pharmaceutical and
agrochemical products. On the pharma side,
pyridine-based products made by us are
today used in 229 APIs, of which 187 are
already off-patent while the remaining 42 are
going off-patent by the year 2010. On the
agro side, our products are currently used in
17 agrochemical products.
During FY 2005, we augmented our
manufacturing infrastructure for this
business by adding a third multipurpose
plant at Gajraula. This new plant, which
expands our reactor capacity and is cGMP
compliant, commenced commercial
production in March 2005. In addition to
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that, we also established kilo lab
operation at our Gajraula facility and that
too commenced commercial operations
in February 2005. This new kilo lab is built
in compliance to US FDA standards and
has been developed in technological
partnership with Pharmaplan (Germany), a
leader in kilo lab manufacturing.
Jubilant is also the world's lowest cost
manufacturer of pyridines. Our
manufacturing processes utilize
renewable bio-mass in a backward
integrated production process. Such
manufacturing integration enables us to
produce pyridines more cost effectively,
and from a more sustainable and readily
available source.
One the most significant catalysts of
growth in our CRAMS business, like in
our other pharma and life science
business units, is the robust R&D
infrastructure that we have created over
the past 25 years through pioneering
investments in this area from the time we
initiated operations. During the past 5
years, we added 29 new products
through our R&D efforts. We now have
R&D capability in over 30 complex
chemical processes and reactions that
demand world-class expertise. This
accumulated knowledge base in turn
allows us to meet the requirements of our
customers in a cost-efficient and timely
manner. We believe that our successful
entry into the regulated and highly
competitive Japanese market was
facilitated to a great extent by our high
quality and strong R&D capabilities.
Our novel capability of being able to
conduct custom synthesis and product
development work at various scales from
gram and kilogram quantities in a stateof-the-art labs and kilo lab to tonne-level
quantities in a commercial scale
multipurpose plants distinguishes us
from many other players in this sector.
Our labs and plants operate under
stringent international standards and our
customers value us for our immaculate
track record in ensuring IPR protection
and confidentiality. Resultantly, today

Jubilant Organosys is the outsourcing
partner of choice in CRAMS for more than
150 global and domestic pharmaceuticals
and agrochemical companies. We remain
confident that this business represents a
promising outlook, given the substantial
outsourcing opportunities unfolding in the
global life sciences industry.

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs)
and Dosage Forms
Our APIs and Dosage Forms business allows
us to offer a complete package of products
and services to generic pharma companies.
This business is the result of our forward
integration from CRAMS, and our
investments in R&D and well-considered
acquisitions, which have played a key role in
the rapid growth of this business.
Following our European acquisitions, our API
manufacturing capabilities and R&D
expertise are now supplemented with a
strong regulatory understanding of the
European market. This
in turn has enabled us
to enhance our position
in the European
continent and other
regulated markets. In
April 2005, we signed
an MoU to acquire a US
pharmaceutical
company to enhance
our presence and
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“Through European acquisition, our API manufacturing capabilities
and R&D expertise are now supplemented with strong regulatory supply
and finished dosage forms.”

PSI, Belgium
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“We have filed six DMFs
in US and have two US
FDA approved plants.”

procurement by our major customer
following a change in their inventory
management policies. We expect that our
Carbamazepine sales will return to normal
levels during the financial year 2006.
Another key product in our portfolio is
Oxcarbazepine, where we are expanding
our capacity from 20 TPA in FY 2005 to 75
TPA in FY 2006,
which is over
65% of the
current global
market demand of
115 TPA. The
launch of this
product has been
slightly delayed
due to the issue
of pediatric
exclusivity, which
will expire in July
2005, after which
we envisage this
product to
perform in line
with
expectations.

quantities of Azithromycin monohydrate,
another high potential API, to our
customers in Europe where this product
goes off-patent in 2006. As in the case of
our other API products, we intend to offer
this product to our customers in the US
as well, where it goes off-patent in the
year 2007.

We have initiated
the supply of
Lamotrigine,
which goes offpatent in Europe
in May 2005, to
European generic
manufacturers.

We have shipped
stocking quantities
of Lamotrigine to
our European
customers. We are
also in the process
of tying up with
generic companies
in the US, where this
product will go offpatent in November
2008. During the
year, US FDA approved the manufacturing
facility for Lamotrigine.
We have begun offering development

In order to ensure sustainable and rapid
growth over the longer term, we have
created a strong pipeline of new API
products. We have at present a pipeline
of 27 APIs that currently have a
formulations market size of
US$ 54 billion. The R&D work on 12 of
these APIs has already been completed
and these APIs are therefore ready for
commercialization which should happen
when the products goes off patent and is
ready for generic launch. R&D work is
going on for another 15 APIs.
During FY 2005, we established our third
API plant which has the flexibility to
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“Jubilant Biosys is the
biggest small molecule
kinase database
provider in the world.”

Currently, PSI has dossiers for 27
products, on which it has 32 market
authorizations for 12 of these products.
During the FY 2005, PSI has enhanced its
presence with Market authorizations in
several European markets. For the
existing dossiers, PSI is expected to
obtain 60 new market authorizations in
2005. Further, dossiers are under
development for 14 products.
We have positioned ourselves as the
outsourcing partners to generic
companies worldwide, with a unique noncompete model. Accordingly, while we
will continuously strive to be the partners
of choice for global generic drug makers
to meet their API and formulation needs,

we ourselves will not initiate such
formulation marketing activity that
competes with their products. We believe
that such an approach, with clearly
defined roles, further consolidates our
partnerships with drug companies and
results in added comfort and confidence.
This we believe is, in turn, good for our
business from the long-term perspective.
Research Services
Our research services business
capitalizes upon our strong chemistry and
process capabilities. Through our
Research Services business, we provide
discovery research services and will
provide clinical research services to
pharmaceutical and bio-tech companies.
These include providing bio and chemoinformatics databases for target
identification and lead generation,
chemistry services for lead generation
and optimisation, and bioavailability,
bioequivalence and pharmacokinetic
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initially, followed later by clinical trials.
We offer these services through three
subsidiary companies – Jubilant Biosys,
Jubilant Chemsys, and Jubilant Clinsys.
Of these, Jubilant Biosys became a
subsidiary in FY 2004 while the other two
subsidiaries were established during
FY 2005. Jubilant Biosys offers bio and
chemo informatics databases that are
used at the
stage of target
“Only Indian company
offering both bio and chemo identification
and validation in
information databases to
global discovery pharma and the drug
discovery
biotech companies”
process. We
have a range of
products, which include kinase database
where we have the largest database
globally, of more than 235,000 molecules.
We currently have a team of more than
370 scientists and IT professionals serving
more than 30 customers in the US.
Services offered by Jubilant Chemsys
play a key role in the next stage of the
drug discovery process, ranging from
early stage lead discovery and
optimisation to the identification of viable
synthetic routes required to manufacture
kilo quantities for pre-clinical and clinical
studies. We leverage our more than two
decades of chemistry knowledge to offer
chemical synthesis capabilities
on molecular and FTE basis.
To support this R&D-intensive
activity, we have 25,000 sq ft
of dedicated R&D space that
has been built as per GLP
norms to meet our
customers’ research
requirements.

could take up to the proof of concept stage
and then take it forward through
collaborative work with drug discovery
companies. We are also in discussions with
several scientific institutions to work on the
leads generated by them but were not taken
further towards commercialization process.
Through Jubilant Clinsys, we will offer
bioavailability, bioequivalence,
pharmacokinetic and clinical trials
through our CRO for our customers. We are
in the process of setting up a 46-bed
hospital and an 8-bed ICU facility, along with
all the necessary analytical facilities. Being
under one roof, this facility will obviate the
transfer of volunteers and samples from one
facility to another. This new facility, spread
over an area of 35,000 sq ft, is expected to
become functional by July 2005. Although
we will begin with phase 1 clinical studies
for new chemical entities (NCEs) in 2006, we
plan to initiate offering phase 2 and 3
studies by FY 2007.
Our Research Services business is currently
at a nascent stage but offers attractive
growth potential, and we consider it to be a
future value driver. We expect this high
growth and high margin business to help us
ramp up our profitability significantly in two
years time
Food polymers
Our food polymers business
primarily includes solid PVA,
which has multiple usages.
Our current focus is on

Jubilant is working on the
collaborative research model
which would help the Company
in creating its own IPs. We
are building on our services
model in Jubilant Biosys
and Jubilant Chemsys to
have an IP model. This
would help in
generating own
leads which we
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“A substantial part of our Organic Intermediates
output is consumed internally for value added
pharma and other speciality chemicals, in line with
our strategy to move up the value chain.”
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internally to produce life science
products. This business has performed
particularly well during FY 2005 due to
the upturn in the commodity cycle, higher
volumes and increase in acetyl prices,
although we observed some moderation
in performance during the latter half of
the year as input costs – especially
molasses – prices increased, while the
finished goods prices have had a delayed
pace of realisation improvement.
Going forward, we expect this business
to continue with consistent cash flows.

Agrovet
The Agrovet growth unit is a niche
business, focusing on plant and animal
health products, that manufactures and
markets select agrochemicals, fertilizers
and animal feed additives.
During the year, this growth unit
continued to grow in line with the
company’s slated objectives and strategy.

Performance Chemicals
This business comprises high quality
polymer-based products designed to
deliver user-specific applications and
solutions. These include emulsion
polymers for industries like coatings,
textile, paper/packaging, tyre and
woodworking solutions, as well as
speciality gases for beverages and
engineering applications.
The Performance Chemicals business is a
marginal contributor to our overall
business, contributing 14.2% of our
overall net sales and 1% of the operating
profits in FY 2005. Therefore, while its
financial performance has limited impact
on our overall profitability, it provides us

with a strong presence in important
industrial and consumer goods segments.
For example, we have created a strong
brand, Jivanjor, in consumer products for
woodworking solutions. Our Jivanjor brand
evokes a noticeably high degree of brand
recall and affinity in the marketplace and has
managed to grow at faster pace than the
overall market, which continues to be very
competitive.
During FY 2005, this business delivered a
stable performance with net sales of
Rs.1,668 million and PBIT of Rs.25 million,
compared with net sales and PBIT of
Rs.1,584 million and Rs.38 million respectively
in FY 2004. The profitability in our
performance chemicals business was under
pressure due to increase in the prices of
some of the key raw materials including VAM.
Our strengths in this business lie in a strong
nation-wide distribution network, backward
integration to key raw material derived from
the Industrial Chemicals business, and a
high level of operational efficiency. We are
the only manufacturers of VP Latex in the
country, and in adhesives, as mentioned
earlier, our Jivanjor brand has acquired
significant market share.
In terms of future outlook for this business,
our focus is on profitable growth. Towards
that end, we are working on creating
differentiated technology platforms that
would result in better margins even when
sales remain relatively stable. We are also
exploring opportunities to further tap export
potential for our products. This may include
tie-ups with international performance
chemical companies, either for joint
research or distribution.

STRENGTHENING THE BALANCE SHEET
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(FCCB)
The Company issued 1.5% Convertible
Bonds due 2009 amounting to
US$ 35 million in May 2004. These FCCBs
are convertible Rs.818.23 per share.
The proceeds were utilised for European
acquisition and capital expenditure during
FY 2005. Since the market price is higher
than the conversion price, the bond holders
started converting the bonds into equity.
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that addressing these issues are essential to
the sustainable growth of a company such
as Jubilant Organosys.

The Company has done private placement
of equity shares totalling to
Rs.2 billion on preferential
allotment basis to Citicorp
Environment
International Finance
Corporation and HPC
(Mauritius) Ltd.
Debt restructuring

Sustainable
Development

During the year the
Economic
company utilized the
internal accruals and part of
the money raised through
private placement to reduce its
debt burden. The Company also
churned its debt portfolio to lower
interest rate debt. The Company
has a policy of maintaining a
balanced portfolio of foreign currency and
rupee debt. Keeping in view this policy,
the Company reduced the foreign
currency debt after raising the FCCB.
These initiatives have resulted in interest
cost coming down to 4.53% during FY 05

as compared to 8.1% in FY 04.

CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
We, as an organisation, have always been
a pioneer in adopting and promoting
business practices that deliver
progressive financial performance, are
environment-friendly, and facilitate social
and community development. We believe

Social

We have incorporated the
concept of corporate
sustainability management and
actioned it through a
concrete set of
systems, policies and
organisational changes
that support our
commitment to
sustainable development.

Our corporate sustainability
management systems focus on
the triple bottomlines of
economic, environmental and
social achievement. We voluntarily
started reporting our performance across
these three parameters in FY 03. Today, we
are the only Indian pharmaceuticals
company that reports its progress and
commitments on sustainable development
as per Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
standards. This year
too, as in the
previous two years,
we are publishing
our corporate
sustainability report
for FY 05 which
details our
accomplishments
and areas identified
for further
improvement, all of
which is duly
verified by
independent
auditors of

international repute.
Recently, we
became the first
company in India, to
be the registered
Organazational
Stakeholder of GRI
organisation.
We believe in
providing safe
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working environment to our employees
and to ensure safe life for our associates
and communities around our areas of
operations. During the year, the training
to improve safety precautions was
significantly increased. We also provide
training to the contract labour and
transporters to ensure that during the
handling of our material also no safety
precautions are flouted.
We are committed to the protection of
the environment by using renewable
bottom lines. We will continue to assess and
identify areas where further improvement
can be affected and accordingly take steps
to ensure that the momentum for corporate
sustainability, built over the past several
years, is maintained.

OUR PEOPLE – ENABLERS OF A JUBILANT
PARTNERSHIP
By any measure, Jubilant Organosys is a
unique organisation. Few organisations have
evolved, managed change and accomplished
long-standing successful growth the way we
have. From its foundation in 1978 as a bulk
chemicals manufacturer, right through to its
present day status as a knowledge-led
composite pharmaceuticals industry player,
Jubilant owes its success and reputation as
an innovative company to its team of
dedicated and highly motivated
professionals, scientists, engineers, and
workers.

“In recognition of our
efforts, we were awarded
India's Top 5 Best
Managed Workforces
Award 2004" following a
study conducted by
Hewitt Associates and
CNBC - TV 18.”

resources wherever possible and
developing manufacturing processes and
products in a manner that minimises the
impact of our operations on the
environment and surrounding
communities. From using molasses, a
replenishable bio-mass obtained as a byproduct of the sugar industry, as the main
feed-stock to working towards improving
the quality of life of the community
around our manufacturing facilities, we
believe we have made noticeable
advances in strengthening our triple

Critical to our success is the manner in
which we have embraced our promise of
Caring, Sharing and Growing. At Jubilant, we
offer careers and not just jobs, stressing on
individual growth for each one of our 2627
employees. This is supported by a solid
value-based system of working that
incorporates competitive remuneration,
constant upgradation of skills and a worldclass working environment.
We lay considerable emphasis on
continuous learning. We have realized that
training and competency building are just
the initial steps – being a step ahead of
change to meet the demands of an everchanging business environment is more
important for a fast-growing company like
ours. We have also made sincere efforts
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towards building and maintaining a
harmonious relationship with our
workforce, which has resulted in a unique
management – workforce partnership to
achieve strategic objectives.
As an organization, we are committed to
building sustainable competitive
advantage through the quality, capability,
and ultimately the performance of our
people. We recognize the importance of
having talented leaders at all levels of our
organization to succeed in the
challenging world of business.
Resultantly, we are committed to our
ongoing process of identification,
development, and inspiration of future
leaders within the organisation. We
believe that through this commitment, we
will be able to sustainably maintain our
position as the partner of choice to the
global life sciences industry.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
RISK MANAGEMENT
We employ a set of sophisticated internal
control systems and risk management
mechanisms designed to ensure
adherence to established processes,
guidelines, and regulations as well as to
identify the opportunities and risks
inherent in our operations on an ongoing
basis.

Internal control systems – ensuring
adherence to best practices
Our internal control systems are aimed at
ensuring, among other things,
+ Resource optimization
+ Reporting and accounting accuracy and

transparency
+ Regulatory compliance

Our integrated ERP system provides us the
wherewithal to have in place a high level of
system-based checks and controls, ensuring
quick access to business information. This in
turn facilitates swift and proper decisionmaking based upon the latest MIS reports.
In addition to an internal audit department,
staffed with experienced professionals and
assisted by external audit firms, we also
have specific committees of the Board of
Directors, and also include other senior
managers in some cases, that oversee all
audit activities and assess the effectiveness
of internal control and risk management
systems on a regular basis. These
committees are:
+ The audit committee, which meets every

quarter and monitors our audit, accounting,
and financial reporting procedures.
+ The supply chain committee, which meets

every week and initiates, reviews and
approves operational effectiveness
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measures.
+ The purchase committee, which meets

once every fortnight and ensures that
we follow an efficient procurement
process.
+ The capex committee, which meets at

least twice every month and monitors
all capital expenditure initiatives, so that
our investments deliver a rate of return
that is in line with our goals.
The operations of each of our business
segments are also actively reviewed
once a month by the business heads,
CMDs, executive directors, and
management team members. In addition
to that, we also monitor the performance
of our functional activities such as
manufacturing, human resources, and
finance on a quarterly basis. These review
meetings provide direction and inputs, as
necessary, to the business and functional
units and have been key drivers of our
business success.

RISK MANAGEMENT – IDENTIFYING
AND PROACTIVELY
TAKING
MITIGATING
STEPS
We have put in
place a strong risk
management
framework, where
we actively monitor
our operating
environment, to
identify and assess
potential risks –
internal or external
– and take
appropriate steps
to preempt or
mitigate them.
Our risk
management
strategy rests on a
solid platform of
processes,
guidelines and
instruments
designed to

insulate our business operations from
unforeseen threats. Our management team
attempts to identify risks at an early stage,
evaluate their consequences and take
appropriate derisking measures on an
ongoing basis. Some of the key risks and our
initiatives to address them are briefly listed
as under:
+ Product portfolio risks: As a composite

pharmaceutical industry player, we are
aware that we need to continually innovate
and introduce new products in the market
to sustain our competitive edge. We
believe that a strong product pipeline and
entry into higher value areas like clinical
research and dosage forms, supported by
a robust R&D base significantly reduces the
risk of demand or price pressures on any of
our existing products.
+ Raw material related risks: Our integrated

manufacturing process insulates our
operations to a great extent from
significant variations in the cost or
availability of key raw material. The output
of our industrial chemicals business is
often the key ingredient for our pharma
and life sciences and performance
chemicals businesses. The basic raw
material that we use is molasses, which
shields us from the cost cycles that other
petrochem based players are subject to.
We have also one of the world's largest
storage facilities for alcohol and mollasses
and we always have the option of
importing it if molasses prices firm up in
India.
+ Currency risk: As an outsourcing partner

to companies across the globe, with a
focus on maximizing pharma and life
sciences export revenues from the
regulated markets, we are exposed to risks
associated with foreign exchange
fluctuations. We believe we have a natural
hedge against such risks to the extent that
we also have foreign currency loans.
Additionally, we also use forex risk
management techniques to hedge our
exposures.
+ Environmental risk: A strong commitment

to the environment and the communities
we operate in pervades our entire
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organisation at all levels. Effective
waste management systems, stringent
emission benchmarks, and efficient use
of natural resources form an integral
part of our operating style. We are one
of the few Indian companies to initiate
steps towards meeting three
bottomlines economic, environmental,
and social and report our performance
across each of these in a public report
every year, in line with the globally

......

accepted GRI standards.
In addition to the above, we also maintain
property and casualty insurance at our
manufacturing facilities in accordance with
customary industry practices. Jubilant has
a competent management team that
actively reviews our business strategy and
takes the measures necessary to enable us
prepare for and respond to changes in the
business environment that we operate in.

......

Recent Developments
Acquisition of pharma company in US
Jubilant Organosys Ltd. has acquired Trinity Laboratories, Inc. (Trinity) along with its wholly
owned subsidiary, Trigen Laboratories, Inc. (Trigen), a US based generic pharmaceuticals
company. Jubilant will hold a 64% equity stake in Trinity / Trigen for a cash payment of US$
12.25 million of which US$ 8.25 million will be paid to the existing shareholders and the
balance retained for growth capital. Jubilant will invest additional US$ 8.42 million until
December 2006, which will increase Jubilant's equity interest to 75%.
Trigen is in the business of generic dosage forms and has a US FDA approved cGMP
compliant manufacturing facility in Maryland, USA. Spread over an area of 60,000 sq. ft.,
this manufacturing facility currently has an annual production capacity of 650 million tablets,
which will be enhanced to 1 billion tablets, and 35 million capsules. It has 6 approved
ANDAs and another 2 ANDAs filed and awaiting US FDA approval. In addition to these, the
Company also has a pipeline of 14 products, of which ANDAs for 5 products are expected to
be filed during the calendar year 2005. These will be complemented by 10 ANDAs that
Jubilant Organosys will develop.
The acquisition is in line with our strategic intent of expanding our presence in regulated
markets. Last year, we had acquired pharmaceutical companies in Belgium which provided
us a presence in the European markets, and this US acquisition will help us in enhancing
our presence in the United States, which is the largest generic pharmaceuticals market in
the world. This provides us access to new customer relationships in the US and a US FDA
approved dosage forms manufacturing facility.

Raising of funds for growth through FCCB
The Company has raised US$ 75 million (approx. Rs 325 crore) by way of placement of
FCCB with an upsizing option up to US$ 25 million. These funds will be utilized for
acquisitions, direct investments in overseas subsidiaries, capital expenditure, or any other
permissible uses. The funds raised will further strengthen our balance sheet and capital
structure, and will be deployed to finance our organic and inorganic growth initiatives,
primarily in the pharma and life sciences business.
Cautionary statement
In this annual report, statements describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations
may be ‘forward-looking’ statements with in the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
may differ materially or substantially from those expressed or implied. Important factor that could affect the
company’s operation include global and domestic demand and supply conditions, raw material pricing and
availability, currency fluctuations and significant changes in the politics, economics and environment in India
or key markets abroad and any litigations.
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Seventh Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2005, reporting a strong performance driven by your Company’s strategy to be a composite pharmaceuticals
industry player delivering products and services to the global life sciences industry across the pharmaceuticals value chain.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year ended 31st March
[Rs/million]
2005

2004

Sales and Other Income

12318

9554

Net Sales

11145

8690

EBITDA

2064

1659

Interest

213

358

1851

1301

348

322

1503

979

370

177

PAT

1133

802

Profit brought forward from previous year

1064

457

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

2197

1259

162

84

23

11

- Transfer to General Reserve

350

100

Balance to be carried forward

1662

1064

PBDT
Depreciation
PBT
Provision for Taxation

Which the Directors have appropriated as follows:
- Proposed Dividend on Equity shares
- Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares

OPERATIONS
Financial Year 2004-2005 has been a year of impressive growth, the significant improvement in the result of operations
being primarily driven by increased contribution from the Pharmaceutical and Life Science Chemicals business which
has grown organically and through international acquisition. The growth in this business was driven by increased sales
to high growth regulated markets of USA, Europe and Japan. The Industrial Chemicals business also did well during
the year due to higher price realization for its products. Net sales recorded a growth of 29.8 % to Rs. 11145 Million as
compared to Rs. 8690 Million in the previous year. Revenues from Exports increased 59.5% to Rs. 3644 Million from
Rs. 2285 Million, with increased exports to our key markets of US, Europe and China. EBITDA at Rs. 2064 million in FY
2005, compared with Rs. 1659 in the previous year, recorded a growth of 24.4%. However, operating margins were
lower mainly due to increase in cost of some of the key raw materials.
Profit before tax (PBT) improved to Rs. 1503 Million (13.5% of net sales) from Rs. 979 Million (11.3% of net sales), an
increase of 53.5%.
Profit after tax (PAT) increased to Rs.1133 Million (10.2% of net sales) from Rs. 802 Million (9.2% of net sales), an
increase of 41.3%.
In line with the Company’s strategy to continuously move up the value chain, during the year, your company entered
new businesses of development, licensing and supply of dosage forms in Europe through acquisition of PSI and PSI
supply. Your Company also entered the medicinal chemistry services business and is setting up chemical research
business through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Jubilant Chemsys Ltd. and Jubilant Chinsys Ltd.
Your Company alongwith its subsidiaries now have presence across the value chain right from early stage drug
discovery services to custom research and manufacturing services for advance intermediates and fine chemicals to
API, dosage forms, regulatory affairs services and clinical research.
Pharmaceuticals and life science chemicals business continues to be the growth driver for your Company. To meet
the growing customers demand, your Company has expanded the manufacturing capacities for its key business of
CRAMS and API. CRAMS business added a new multipurpose plant and a kilo lab operation at our Gajraula facility. In
API business, a semi commercial and multi purpose facility and pilot plant were set up at Nanjangud.
Your Company has significantly ramped up the R&D for the existing businesses of CRAMS and API. Your Company is
also setting up a new formulations development R&D center equipped with latest scientific equipment which will be
fully functional during FY 2006.
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Your company believes in respecting the IPRs of others and at the same time developing and protecting its own IPRs.
Patents are most valuable assets of any knowledge-based organization such as Jubilant. Your Company has developed
several novel processes for APIs, fine chemicals, performance chemicals and feed additives. It has filed patent
applications on all significant processes developed through its R&D activities. To strengthen its presence in global
market, the Company has filed 61 patent applications out of which 5 patents are granted and 9 are published in various
countries including United States, Canada, Europe and India.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS
On the consolidated basis, the net sales for FY2005 increased by 36.2% to Rs. 11,703 million, with revenues from the
international market rising by 83.7% to Rs. 4,201 million. There was a 35.9% enhancement in EBIDTA during the year
to Rs. 2,242 million. PBDT during the year increased by 56.5% to Rs. 2,022 million due to 38.5% reduction in interest
cost to Rs. 220 million. Profit before tax improved by 69.9% to Rs. 1,641 million whereas the Profit after tax increased
by 52.4% to Rs. 1,192 million resulting in an EPS (on fully diluted basis) of Rs. 46.77 for the period.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors recommend a dividend of 125% i.e. Rs. 6.25 per share, on equity shares of Rs. 5 each, for the year
ended 31st March 2005. This will absorb Rs.185 million (inclusive of tax).

APPROPRIATIONS
It is proposed to transfer Rs. 350 million to General Reserve. An amount of Rs.1,662 million is proposed to be retained
in Profit and Loss Account.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(a) FCCB ISSUE
During FY2005, the Company successfully issued 1.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2009 (FCCB 2009)
for an aggregate value of US $ 35 million. The Bonds are convertible at any time between June 14, 2004 and April 15,
2009 by holders into fully paid equity shares of Rs.5 each of the Company or Global Depositary Shares (“GDSs”) each
representing one equity Share at an initial conversion price of Rs.818.23 per share with a fixed rate of exchange of Rs.
44.805 = U.S.$1. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The Bonds may also be
redeemed, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Company at any time on or after May 14, 2007 and prior to
May 8, 2009, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. Unless previously converted, redeemed or purchased and
cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed on May 15, 2009 at 113.70% of their principal amount. The FCCBs are listed
on Singapore Stock Exchange. The GDSs arising out of conversion of FCCBs are listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
The FCCB 2009 proceeds were utilized for European acquisition and capital expenditure.
Assuming full conversion of FCCBs into equity shares, 19,16,544 shares would be allotted taking the paid up capital
to Rs. 139 million.
On part conversion of US $ 0.5 million of FCCB 2009, the Company allotted 27,379 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.
5 each.
As on 31st March, 2005, FCCBs of US $ 34.5 million were outstanding.

(b) PRIVATE EQUITY PLACEMENT
During the year under review, the Company allotted 2,424,273 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.5 each, at a premium
of Rs.820 per share, amounting to Rs. 2 billion, on private placement basis to two foreign financial investors viz.
Citicorp International Finance Corporation and HPC (Mauritius) Limited in accordance with SEBI guidelines.

SUBSIDIARIES
To have a clear business focus to service our global customers and to enable international acquisition, your Company
created six new subsidiaries (four new international subsidiaries and two new Indian subsidiaries) in addition to two
existing subsidiaries. Thus, the total number of subsidiaries of your company at present stands at eight. Brief
particulars of each of the subsidiaries are given below:
1.

Jubilant Biosys Limited - It is a subsidiary of your Company since 2003-04. Currently, your Company holds
66.98% of its equity. Jubilant Biosys is an innovative informatics company offering bio/chemo informatics
databases to global drug discovery pharma and biotech companies. During the year, the company expanded
its business operations in USA and its databases are used by global customers for their early stage drug
discovery programme.

2.

Jubilant Chemsys Limited - It became a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company during the financial year
2005. Jubilant Chemsys Ltd. offers medicinal chemistry services to drug discovery companies. The company
has set up an R&D center in Noida to cater to global pharmaceutical companies on FTE or molecule basis.
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3.

Jubilant Clinsys Limited - It became a wholly owned subsidiary of Jubilant Organosys Ltd. during financial
year 2005. A clinical research organization (CRO), it would initially be providing bio equivalence and bio
availability studies for generic pharmaceutical companies and would conduct phase I clinical trials for drug
discovery companies. A 54 bed facility, including 8 bed ICU, is being set up to undertake these studies and
would start commercial operations in 2005-06.

4.

Jubilant Organosys USA Inc. - This is an existing wholly owned marketing subsidiary undertaking sales and
distribution in North American market.

5.

Jubilant Organosys (Shanghai) Limited - A wholly owned subsidiary incorporated during the financial year
2005 essentially for sales and distribution of your Company’s products in China.

6.

Jubilant Pharma N.V. - This company was incorporated during FY 2005 as a wholly owned subsidiary to hold
80% of the equity of the two acquired Belgium companies.

7.

Pharmaceutical Services Incorporated N.V. -This Belgium company became subsidiary of Jubilant Organosys
Limited by virtue of its becoming subsidiary of Jubilant Pharma N.V. during the financial year 2005. Jubilant
Pharma N.V. holds 80% equity of this company. This company offers regulatory affairs services, which
includes dossier development, market authorization and EU release, to European generic companies.

8.

PSI supply N.V. - This Belgium company became subsidiary of Jubilant Organosys Ltd. by virtue of its
becoming subsidiary of Jubilant Pharma N.V. during FY 2005. Jubilant Pharma N.V. holds 80% equity of this
company. PSI supply is involved in development and supply of dosage forms to generic companies in
European market.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Your company is presently not accepting fixed deposits from the public. The existing fixed deposits are being paid on
maturity. The total amount of fixed deposits held as on 31st March 2005 was Rs. 111.2 million. There were no
overdue deposits. There were, however, 415 unclaimed deposits amounting to Rs. 6.1 million. Of these, 40 deposits
amounting to Rs0.6 Million have since been repaid/claimed

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Report and a certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with Stock Exchanges, are attached
as Annexure C.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
In keeping with its continued commitment to high standards of Corporate Governance, your Company has voluntarily
decided to compile and present financial statements that conform to US GAAP. The reconciliation of significant
differences between Consolidated Profit After Tax determined in accordance with Indian GAAP and Consolidated Net
Income determined in accordance with US GAAP is enclosed as part of Annual Report. However, the full US GAAP
accounts are given on the web-site of the Company i.e. www. jubl.com.
Your Company believes that a sustainable growth is possible only through the partnership approach with all the
stakeholders of the Company. Your Company has adopted a comprehensive Corporate Sustainability Management
System that focuses on triple bottomline reporting on economic, environment and society. The Company significantly
ramped up its sustainability reporting by covering all the parameters as per GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) standards.

DIRECTORS
During the year, pursuant to issuance of shares to Citicorp International Finance Corporation and HPC (Mauritius)
Limited on private placement basis, Mr. Ajay Relan, nominee of these institutions, joined the Board as an Additional
Director and holds office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Notice under section 257 of the Companies Act
1956, has been received from a member, proposing Mr. Relan’s candidature as Director.
Mr. Sanjeev Kapur has been appointed by the Board as Alternate Director to Mr. Ajay Relan.
Mr. Surendra Singh, Dr. J M Khanna and Dr Naresh Trehan, Directors of the Company, retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Report required to be made pursuant to section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
[Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors] Rules, 1988 is attached as Annexure - A.

EMPLOYEES
As required under the provisions of section 217(2A) of the Companies Act 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
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of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, a Statement of employees is attached as Annexure -B.

AUDITORS
K N Gutgutia & Co., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and offer themselves for re-appointment. They have confirmed that their re-appointment, if made, shall be within the
limits laid down in Section 224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

AWARDS
The efforts of your Company to be the best in each and every area of its business and functions have been recognized
by various organizations.
During the year, your company was given the following awards:
•

Hewitt-CNBC TV-18 award for Top 5 Best Managed Workforce in India

•

Six Sigma Quality award in All India CII Convention

•

Greentech Safety award in chemical industry for outstanding achievement in the field of safety

•

Best HR Practices award by Centre for International Businesses

•

PC Acharya award for Development of Indigenous Technology by ICMA

•

DSIR award for Innovation in chemicals and allied industries

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AFTER
31ST MARCH, 2005
1.

Your Company has signed a Memorandum of Understanding to acquire majority stake in a US Company engaged in
the business of Generic Drugs, subject to due diligence and signing of definitive agreements. Your Company proposes
to invest upto US $ 20. 25 million (equivalent to Rs.89.10 crores approx.) in tranches, to acquire upto 75% equity
stake in that Company. It is expected that this acquisition would help your Company to establish itself in the US
markets.

2.

Your Company is proposing to raise up to US $ 100 million in the global markets either through FCCB or other Equity
related instruments subject to members’ approval for which an EGM has been convened on 3rd May, 2005. These
funds would be utilized for acquisitions, direct investments in joint ventures / subsidiary companies, new projects,
capital expenditure, general corporate purpose or any other use as may be permitted.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In compliance of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors of your Company confirm:
•

that in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures.

•

that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on 31st March 2005 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2005.

•

that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

•

that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
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Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude the co-operation and assistance received from the Government Authorities,
Banks and other Lenders. Your Directors thank the Shareholders, Depositors, Customers, Vendors and other business
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by the employees at all levels.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

NOIDA
April 16, 2005

Shyam S Bhartia
Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report
Annexure - A
ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 217 (1) (e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS
IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988.
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a)

Energy conservation measures taken:

1.

Reduction of steam consumption in Distillery by improving heat recovery from waste steam.

2.

Reduction of power consumption in distillery by improving efficiency in Fermentation section.

3.

Reduction in power consumption at biogas plant by optimizing organic loading in one of the two reactors without
affecting the biogas generation.

4.

Reduced Power consumption at 3CP plant by optimising air requirement in reactors.

5.

Reduced LDO consumption by recovering heat from vent gases of reactor and optimizing DM water consumption in
the 3CP reactors.

6.

Reduced steam consumption by effective utilisation of flash steam and condensate.

7.

Generation of chilled water from ammonia vaporisation in P&P plant.

8.

Reduced LDO consumption in pyridine plant by optimising air requirement to reactor.

9.

Reduction in power consumption at CO2 plant by changing piping and electric motor.

10.

Reduction in power consumption for cooling water by proper sizing of pump .

11.

Replaced electrical heaters with steam heaters at lube oil separators.

12.

Replaced old motors with high efficiency motors.

13.

Installed capacitors for reducing power losses.

14.

Installed photo-sensors for the operation of street & plant lighting.

15.

Reduced power consumption in refrigeration plant by charging refrigerant.

16.

Use of exhaust steam of CO2 absorbers in distillery.

17.

Replacement of pump with new energy efficient unit in DM plant.

18.

Provided auto shut-off system for cooling tower fans based on basin temperature.

19.

Change in grinding process in corn cob plant by eliminating the middle stage of grinding.

20.

Reduction of FO consumption by reducing inlet temperature of dryer.
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b)

Additional investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
Sr. No.

Proposal for reduction of consumption of energy

1.

Rationalizing cooling water distribution.

2.

Replacement of electrical heaters with steam heaters at WDG.

3.

Revamping of WHRBs to increase steam generation at WDG.

4.

Replacement of existing SAP air blower with efficient blower.

5.

Reducing power distribution losses.

6.

Efficiency improvement in oil/gas fired boiler.

7.

Elimination of steam distribution losses.

8.

To reduce steam consumption by heat recovery.

9.

Capacity optimization of two fermented wash circulation pumps to reduce power consumption.

10.

Replacement of three old air compressors in acetic acid plant with energy efficient unit.

11.

Use of flue gas analyser for monitoring O2 level.

12.

Recovering condensate from latex plant and choline plant.
Rs. 24.25 million is expected to be invested in the above proposals.

(c)

Impact of measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on the cost of production of
goods.
•

Reduction in steam & power consumption norms in all plants

•

Reduction in steam & power cost

•

Reduction in specific fuel consumption on products

(d)

1.

Saving due to Conservation of Energy

:

Rs. 28 Million per annum approx.

2.

Saving due to the proposal b(1) to b(12)

:

Rs. 20 Million per annum approx.

Total Energy Consumption and energy consumption per unit of production.
FORM - A

A.

Power and Fuel Consumption

1.

2004-05

2003-04

37,915,701

43,202,641

142.51

165.09

3.76

3.82

81,140,593

76,787,974

KWH/LTR

3.70

3.85

Rs./KWH

2.96

2.99

Electricity
A. Purchased
i)

Units

ii)

Total Amount

iii) Rate/unit

KWH
Rs./million
Rs./KWH

B. Own Generation
Through DG
i)

Units

ii)

Unit per litre of RFO/LDO

iii) Cost / unit

KWH
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Through Steam Turbine Generator*
i)

Units

KWH

ii)

Unit per MT of Steam

KWH/LTR

iii) Cost / unit
2

46,915,940

53,176,380

328.85

331.36

1.93

1.72

222,602.25

201,253.16

Rs./KWH

Coal**
Quantity

3

MT

Total Cost

Rs./Million

Average Rate

Rs./MT

490.58

386.03

2,203.85

1,918.13

27,126

24,267

Furnace Oil
Quantity

4

MT

Total Cost

Rs./Million

Average Rate

Rs./MT

327.88

272.68

12,086.91

11,236.64

41,235,094

64,016,786

21.39

44.62

0.52

0.70

Others/Internal Generation
Internal Generation-Biogas

*

B.

Quantity

NM3

Total Cost***

Rs./Million

Average Rate

Rs./NM3

Steam is produced in boilers using coal/fuel oil/gas.

**

E grade coal is used for power generation and C/D grade is used for steam generation.

***

No raw material cost as it is produced from waste water only.
Consumption per Unit of Production
2004-05

2003-04

842.65

775.66

6.09

6.62

Pharmaceuticals & Life Science Chemicals
Electricity

KWH/MT

Steam

MT/MT

Furnace Oil

LT/MT

59.73

64.78

Bio Gas

NM3/MT

465.31

507.36

Electricity

KWH/MT

207.84

232.27

Steam

MT/MT

0.12

0.17

Furnace Oil

L/MT

4.75

5.09

Bio Gas

NM3/MT

-

-

Electricity

KWH/MT

130.71

137.36

Steam

MT/MT

1.13

1.14

Furnace Oil

L/MT

2.14

2.35

Bio Gas

NM3/MT

8.45

9.33

Performance Chemicals

Industrial Chemicals

B.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
(a) Research and Development
The Company has R&D centers at Noida, Gajraula, Nanjangud and Samlaya. The Company has 194 R & D Employees
out of which 55 are doctorates and others are post graduates and graduates. R&D supports the activities of various
businesses through new product development, diversification, process development, absorption of technology and
establishing the technology on plant scale.

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company:
(i) Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients and Dosage Form
•

Process development of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs)
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•

Improvements in the processes for the manufacture of APIs

•

Creation of intellectual property through development of new synthetic routes

(ii) Biotechnology
•

Microbial processes for the treatment of industrial effluents

•

Bio composting

•

Processes for the manufacture of speciality and fine chemicals using bio-conversion routes

(iii) CRAMS
•

Product/process developments in the field of pyridine and its derivatives and heterocyclic chemistry

•

Process improvements in the manufacture of key products

•

Chiral compounds

(iv) Contract Research
•

Advance intermediates for pharmaceuticals and agrochemicals

•

Synthesis of new compounds for drug discovery, pre-clinical and clinical studies

(v) Performance Chemicals

2.

3.

•

Development of speciality polymers

•

Development of ethoxylates & emulsifiers

Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D
•

Strong position in knowledge based businesses

•

Partners of choice for global pharmaceuticals and agrochemical companies

•

Global leadership in select segments of our business

•

Generation of own IPRs to provide competitive edge

•

Major growth in export of our products

•

Competitiveness in cost and quality

Future action plan
•

Process developments for identified active pharmaceutical ingredients

•

Process developments for identified dosage forms

•

Process development of new derivatives of Pyridine and other heterocyclic chemicals

•

New Drug Delivery System research

•

Bio transformations for the manufacture of fine and speciality chemicals

•

Synthesis of chiral compounds

•

Improvements in the fermentation technology and effluent treatment
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•

4.

Development of new products in the field of polymers and adhesives for application in coating, textile,
footwear, paper, auto, electronic and other industries

Expenditure on R&D
Rs. million

(b)
1.

(a)

Capital

226.36

(b)

Recurring (R&D expenses/chemicals)

119.67

(c)

Total

346.03

(d)

Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover

3.10%

(e)

R & D expenditure as a percentage of Pharmaceuticals & Life Science Chemicals turnover

7.75%

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
Technologies developed for manufacturing the products have been commercialized very quickly through in-house
efforts related to design of plants, scale up of the processes on pilot scale and supporting production team in optimizing
/establishing the processes in the plant.

2.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import
substitution etc.
A large number of new products have been introduced in all the segments of our business. There has been a major
emphasis on developing and commercialising products for export which has resulted in growth in our export earnings.
Continuous improvements in cost & productivity has made our products competitive in national and international
markets.

3.

Information about imported technology (imported during the last five years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year;

Technology Imported

Year of import

Has technology been
fully absorbed

If not fully absorbed, areas
where this has not taken place

-------------------------------------- NIL -----------------------------------

C.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(a)

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for
products and services; and export plans
• Activities relating to exports
Your Company has a strategic focus on increasing the exports (including incentives) to regulated markets.
During FY2005, exports was Rs. 3644 million as compared to Rs. 2285 million in the previous year, recording
a growth of 59.5%. Exports contributed 32.6% of net sales of the Company during FY2005 as compared to
26.6% during the previous year.
The Company exports more than 35 products to around 55 countries worldwide. To expand our international
presence, we have increased our penetration in existing markets by servicing more customers.
• Initiatives taken to increase exports
Jubilant has more than 130 global customer relationships in the life sciences industry. Out of the top 20 global
pharmaceutical companies, 15 are now our customers whereas out of the top 10 global agrochemical
companies, 7 are our customers. This indicates the quality of our customer relationships. With the presence
across the pharmaceutical value chain, the focus is on increasing the depth of relationship by engaging our
customers at every stage of the value chain.
We believe that quality of products should be backed by reliability in supply. To provide better services to our
customers, your Company set up a wholly owned subsidiary in China, Jubilant Organosys Shanghai Ltd. in
addition to existing marketing subsidiary in USA.
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• Development of new export markets for products and services
Your Company has added new international markets during the fiscal year 2005. Some of the key markets
added were Portugal, Luxembourg, Mexico, Uruguay, Switzerland and Czech Republic. We are focused on
further increasing our presence in North American market and have increased the size of team based in USA
to expand our CRAMS and API business.
With the acquisition of PSI and PSI supply in Belgium during the fiscal year 2005, we have increased our
presence in Europe and have added around 50 new customer relationships. Your Company has increased its
focus now on developing markets of Spain, Ireland and Finland in Europe.
• Export plans
Your Company has a focus on leveraging its presence across the pharmaceuticals value chain as a composite
pharmaceuticals industry player. Individual business units will work in tandem on identification of new
opportunities in the global market and tapping the same.
The impetus is on reaching out to the new markets with focus on regulated markets of USA, Europe and Japan
and the other major export destination China.

(b)

Total foreign exchange used and earned
Rs. million
2004-05

2003-04

Total Foreign Exchange Used

2157.72

1135.79

Total Foreign Exchange Earned

3396.95

2161.73
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Statement U/S 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 and Forming Part of Directors’ Report for the year Ended 31 st March, 2005.
S.
No.

Name

Designation & Nature of Duties

Qualification

Total
Date of
Age
Working Commencement of
Experience
Employment
(Years)

Remuneration
(Rs.)

Previous employment held

Designation

Name of the Company

A. Employed for full year in receipt of remuneration for the year which in aggregate was not less than Rs. 2,400,000 p.a.
1.

Agarwal Dr. Ashutosh

Head of R&D Organisation

D.Phil. Synthetic
Organic Chemistry

24

20 August 98

47

2,483,979

DGM-Organic Chemical Business Ballarpur Industries Ltd.

2.

Bang S*

Executive Director
(Manufacturing & Supply
Chain Operations)

M. Tech (Chemical
Engineering)

32

1 February 97

54

3,758,080

President

3.

Dubey Dr. Sushil Kumar

Head - Pharma (R&D)

M.Sc., Ph.D.

23

24 February 03

50

2,683,645

Vice President

Zydus Cadila Healthcare Ltd.

4.

Gupta Kulbhushan

Head of Corporate Quality &
Six Sigma

B.E. (Mechanical)
Diploma in Operations
Management

11

18 August 03

33

2,878,092

Quality Leader Training/
Development

IGE India Ltd.

5.

Khanna Dr. J M*

Executive Director &
President (Life Sciences)

M. S. (Organic
Chemistry), Ph.D.

39

16 August 02

64

6,814,101

President (R & D)

Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd.

6.

Puri Dr. Sukhbir

Business Unit Head (Alcoholic
Beverages)

M. Sc. (Chemistry), Ph.D
(Physical Chemistry)

25

1 April 04

55

2,435,010

Director Supply Chain - India &
Russia Hub

UDV India Ltd.

7.

Sankaraiah R.

Executive Director (Finance)

B. Sc., FCA.

21

9 September 02

46

4,097,854

General Manager - Finance

SRF Ltd.

8.

Singh S N*

Executive Director &
President (Chemicals)

B. E. (Chemical
Engineering)

44

14 December 81

67

5,117,784

General Manager

Indian Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

Enpro India Ltd.

B. Employed for part of the year and in receipt of remuneration which in aggregate was not less than Rs. 200,000 p.m.
1

Bhaskar Rajesh

Head-R&D (Dosage Forms)

M Pharma - Pharmaceuticals

19

26 July 04

44

1,600,637

Associate Director-Pharma

Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd.

2.

Kamalakar Bundla Venkat

Business Unit Head-Dosage Forms

Master in Personnel
Management

17

24 May 04

41

2,598,882

Director of Operations - India

Niche Generics Ltd.

3.

Malhotra M L

Chief of R & D

M. Sc.

41

1 December 03

62

2,609,100

Section Head (R&D)

I.E.L. Ltd.

4.

Malik Rajiv

Business Unit Head Chemistry Services

MBA - Finance

16

11 May 04

38

2,833,713

Head-Operations

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Ltd.

5.

Ramaswamy K P M

Business Unit Head
Consumers Products

B. Sc. Chemistry, Physics

25

28 October 02

47

1,882,915

Divisional Manager (West)

Asian Paints (I) Ltd.

6.

Tandon Piyush

Growth Unit Head - Niche
Business (AP)

B. E.(Hons) Chemical
Engineering, M.Sc. (Hons)
Economics

18

22 November 04

41

928,225

Assistant Vice President
Business Development

Sanmar Speciality Chemicals Ltd.
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Notes
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

*Employment of these are contractual. Employments of others are governed by the Rules and Regulations of the Company from time to time.
All above persons are/were full time employees of the Company
None of the above employees is related to any directors of the company.
No employee out of above, falls within the meaning of Section 217(2A) (a)(iii) of the Companies Act, 1956.
Remuneration Comprises salary, allowances and taxable value of perquisites.
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Annexure – C
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
a)

Company’s Philosophy
The Company is driven by the fundamental objective of maximising shareholder value by employing its assets and
resources in opportunities that generate the greatest returns and position it for sustained growth in the long-term,
guided by the promise of “Caring, Sharing, Growing”.
“We will with utmost care for the environment, continue to enhance value; for our customers by providing innovative
products and economically efficient solutions; and for our shareholders through sales growth, cost effectiveness and
wise investment of resources.”
In line with the afore-mentioned promise, your Company has adopted a comprehensive Corporate Sustainability
Management System that focuses on triple bottomline reporting on economic, environment and society. This was
put in place in fiscal 2003 and the Company has since annually reported on progress made, through public reports on
corporate sustainability.
During the year under review, the Company significantly ramped up its sustainability reporting by covering all the
parameters as per GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) standards. The Company has a stated policy on sustainability which
clearly articulates its approach towards sustainable development through a well laid process for identification of
stakeholders and a formal programme for interaction with them to take their feedback and take action to mitigate the
risks indicated through such interactions. This will not only ensure long term sustainability of the Company but would
also help in enhancing shareholder value.
The Company believes in transparency in reporting. It recognises the importance of sustained and constructive
communication with all stakeholders including investors, lenders, vendors, customers and the community surrounding
its operating facilities as a key element in its overall Corporate Governance framework. Jubilant Organosys, through
multiple forms of corporate and financial communication such as Annual Reports, Corporate Sustainability Reports,
Results, Announcements, Media Releases, implements continuous, efficient and relevant communication to all its
stakeholders, Research Analysts and business associates.

b)

Board of Directors
The Board comprises of eleven Directors out of which six are Non-Executive Directors, two Managing Directors and
three Executive Directors. During the year under review, 7 Board Meetings were held on 22nd April, 2004, 28th April,
2004, 27th July, 2004, 21st September, 2004, 30th October, 2004, 10th November, 2004 and 29th January, 2005. The
composition of the Board of Directors and attendance of Directors at the Board meetings, Annual General Meeting as
also number of other directorships/committee memberships including chairmanships in Indian public limited companies
are as follows:
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Name of the Director

Attendance
at last AGM

No. of Board
Meetings
attended

Category of
Director

Other
Directorships

Committee
memberships
(including
Chairmanship)**#

Mr Shyam S Bhartia

Yes

7

CMD

12

-

Mr Hari S Bhartia

No

5

CCMD

10

1

Dr. J M Khanna

Yes

6

ED

3

-

Mr S N Singh

Yes

6

ED

2

1

Mr Shyam Bang

Yes

7

ED

1

-

Mr Arabinda Ray

Yes

7

NED/ID

1

2 (1)

Mr Bodhishwar Rai

Yes

5

NED/ID

13

10 (5)

Mr Surendra Singh

No

7

NED/ID

6

8 (3 )

Dr. Naresh Trehan

No

4

NED/ID

6

2(1)

Mr H K Khan

No

6

NED/ID

2

2

Mr Ajay Relan*

Not
Applicable

1

NED

8

6

Mr Sanjiv Kapur
(Alternate Director
to Mr. Ajay Relan)*

Not
Applicable

—

NED

1

2

CMD - Chairman & Managing Director; CCMD - Co-Chairman & Managing Director
NED - Non Executive Director; ED- Executive Director; ID - Independent Director
* Nominee of Citicorp International Finance Corporation and HPC (Mauritius) Limited, appointed w.e.f. 29/1/2005.
** Committees for this purpose include Audit Committee, Investors Grievance Committee and Remuneration Committee
only.
# includes the Committee positions in the Company.
Note : Following the appointment of Mr. Ajay Relan as Director on 29th January, 2005, the Company has 6 Non-Independent
Directors compared to 5 Independent Directors. The Company is in process of locating a suitable person for appointment as
independent director.

c)

Committees of the Board
The Board of Directors have constituted Committees of Directors with adequate delegation of powers to discharge
urgent business of the Company. The Committees under the Corporate Governance are (a) Audit Committee (b)
Investors Grievance Committee (c) Remuneration Committee. The Committees meet as per the business needs.

1)

Audit Committee
(i)

Terms of reference:
To review all matters specified in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and section 292A of the Companies
Act, 1956, such as to oversee the financial reporting system and process, to review the Financial Statements
of the Company before submission to the Board and to review reports of the Internal Auditors, Statutory
Auditors and discuss their findings, suggestions, internal control systems, scope of audit, observations of
the auditors and other related matters etc., recommending appointment/re-appointment and remuneration
of auditors, and to select and review major accounting policies followed by the Company. The minutes of
the Audit Committee meetings are circulated to the Board of Directors.
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ii)

Composition
The Committee comprises of 4 Non-Executive Directors of which 3 are independent. The Executive Directors
are the permanent invitees. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The Internal Auditors
and External Auditors are also invited to attend the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met
5 times during the year on 28th April, 2004, 27th July, 2004, 15th September, 2004, 30th October, 2004 and
29th January, 2005. The attendance of members at the meetings was as follows:

Name of the Member

Status

No. of meetings
attended

Category of
Director

Mr Bodhishwar Rai

Chairman

3

NED/ID

Mr Arabinda Ray

Member

5

NED/ID

Mr Surendra Singh

Member

5

NED/ID

Mr Ajay Relan

Member

Not Applicable

NED

NED – Non Executive Director; ID – Independent Director

2)

Investors Grievance Committee
(i)

Terms of reference:
The Committee has been formed to approve the matters relating to transfer/transmission of shares, issue
of duplicate certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of dividend, review / redressal of investors’
grievances etc.

ii)

Composition
The Committee comprises of 2 Non Executive Directors viz. Mr. H K Khan and Mr. Bodhishwar Rai and one
Executive Director - Mr. S.N. Singh. Mr. H. K. Khan is the Chairman of the Committee. The Company
Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.
The Board has designated Mr. Lalit Jain, Company Secretary as the “Compliance Officer “.

iii)

Investors’ Complaints received and resolved during the year
The Company had 18511 investors as on 31.03.2005. During the year under review, the Company has
received 830 (78,564 shares) cases of share transfer/transmissions/transposition out of which 556 (51,767
shares) were transferred and 274 (26,797 shares) were rejected on account of technical reasons. During the
year the Company has received 457 complaints of which 454 complaints were resolved. 3 complaints were
pending as on March 31, 2005.

3)

Remuneration Committee
(i)

Terms of reference:
The Committee is empowered to decide and approve the remuneration of the Executive Board Members of
the Company.

(ii)

Composition
The Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive/independent Directors namely, Mr. Arabinda Ray,
Mr. Bodhishwar Rai and Mr. Surendra Singh. Mr. Arabinda Ray is the Chairman of the Committee.
The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.
The Committee had no occasion to meet during the year.

d)

Details of remuneration paid to directors for the year 2004-05
i)

Mr. Shyam S. Bhartia, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Hari S. Bhartia, Co-Chairman & Managing Director
were re-appointed for a period of five years each w.e.f. April 01, 2002. Mr. S.N. Singh and Mr. Shyam Bang,
Executive Directors were re-appointed for a period of five years each w.e.f. November 01, 2003. Dr J.M. Khanna,
was appointed on August 16, 2002 as Executive Director for a period of five years.
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Remuneration including perquisites, commission and retirement benefits paid to directors for the year 2004-05
was as follows:

(Amounts in Rupees)
Mr. Shyam
S. Bhartia
Salary

Mr. Hari
S. Bhartia

Mr. S .N.
Singh

Mr. S. Bang

Dr. J.M.
Khanna

1,500,000

1,500,000

2,824,725

2,059,800

3,597,975

14,000,000

14,000,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

1,643,996

1,128,571

2,302,965

1,712,561

3,180,460

Stock Option

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Bonus/ Exgratia

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Contribution to
Superannuation
Fund

225,000

225,000

423,709

308,970

539,696

Contribution to
Provident Fund

180,000

180,000

338,967

247,176

431,757

17,548,996

17,033,571

5,890,366

4,328,507

7,749,888

Commission
Perquisites

TOTAL

The above excludes the provision for gratuity as the same is calculated on overall company basis.

SERVICE CONTRACTS, NOTICE PERIOD, SEVERANCE FEES.
The appointments of Managing Directors and Executive Directors are contractual. The appointments of the
Executive Directors are terminable by the Company by giving 3 months notice or salary in lieu thereof.
ii)

Sitting fees for Board Meetings/ Committee Meetings paid to the Non-Executive Directors for year ended 31st
March, 2005 were
Mr. Arabinda Ray

:

Rs. 155,000

Mr. Bodhishwar Rai

:

Rs. 180,000

Mr. Surendra Singh

:

Rs. 170,000

Mr H K Khan

:

Rs. 125,000

Dr. Naresh Trehan

:

Rs. 60,000

Mr. Ajay Relan

:

Nil

Apart from this, a sum of Rs.100,000 each was paid/payable as commission to the non-executive directors in
term of approval No.2/109/2002-CD.VII dated 30.5.2003 obtained from the Central Government.

e)

Remuneration Policy
Remuneration policy aims at encouraging and rewarding good performance/contribution to company objectives.

f)

General Body Meetings
(i)

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Year

Date

Time

Location

2003-2004

15-09-2004

11.30 a.m.

RegisteredOffice:
Bhartiagram, Gajraula District
Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar, U.P.

2002-2003

26-09-2003

11.30 a.m.

Same as above

2001-2002

23-09-2002

11.30 a.m.

Same as above
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ii)

Whether any Special resolutions passed through Postal Ballot last year
No

iii)

Whether any Special resolutions are proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot
No

g)

h)

Disclosures
(i)

There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, directors or the management,
their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
Related party transactions are given at Note No. 18 of Schedule ‘O’ of the accounts.

(ii)

No non- compliances have taken place nor have any penalties or strictures been imposed on the Company by the
Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three
years.

Means of Communication
(i)

The Company has sent half yearly unaudited financial results to each shareholder during the year.

(ii)

The quarterly, half- yearly and annual financial results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately
after they are approved by the Board. The results are published in leading Business Newspapers of the country
like The Economic Times and The Hindu Business Line, general interest national newspapers like The Times of
India, Hindustan Times and The Pioneer and the regional newspapers like Amar Ujala and Dainik Jagran in
accordance with the guidelines of Stock Exchanges.

(iii) The results are also posted on the website of the Company at http://www.jubl.com. The website also displays
official news release. The results are also posted on the official website of SEBI http://www.sebiedifar.com.
(iv) Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.
(v) Your Company has well laid out plans for communication to institutional shareholders and brokers. A detailed
investors communication is sent through e-mail to all the leading Indian and international analysts on both buy
and sell side and fund managers. During the financial year the company organised Earnings Calls on quarterly
basis, which were well attended by the analysts and fund managers. The Company also organised one to one
meetings with investors in Mumbai post the announcement of quarterly results.
To keep the international investors informed on the developments in the Company, your Company made investor
presentations during the company roadshows and investor conferences in USA, Europe, Singapore and Hong
Kong.

i)

General Shareholder’s Information
(i)

Date, time and venue of the 27th Annual General Meeting : As per notice of AGM

(ii) Tentative Financial Calendar- 2005-06
(Subject to change)
First Quarter Results

Last week of July , 2005

Half Yearly Results

Last week of October, 2005

Third Quarter Results

Last week of January, 2006

Audited Annual Results for the year

Last week of May, 2006
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(iii) Dates of Book Closure
As per notice of AGM

(iv) Listing on Stock Exchange and Stock codes
The names of the Stock Exchanges at which the equity shares of the Company are listed and the respective stock
codes are as under:

S.No.

Name of the Stock Exchange

Stock Code

1.

The Stock Exchange Mumbai

530019

2.

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

JUBILANT

(v) Market price data
High/low of market price of the Company’s equity shares traded on the Stock Exchanges during 2004-05 was as
follows:

Month

National Stock
Exchange

The Stock Exchange,
Mumbai

High (Rs.)

Low (Rs.)

High (Rs.)

Low (Rs.)

April, 2004

750.00

634.00

750.00

627.50

May, 2004

728.50

484.70

720.00

483.50

June, 2004

590.00

492.00

600.00

493.00

July, 2004

650.00

540.50

680.00

535.00

August, 2004

660.00

625.00

665.00

624.00

September, 2004

775.00

646.00

758.75

645.50

October, 2004

801.00

741.55

794.00

740.00

November, 2004

880.00

765.00

875.00

765.00

December, 2004

849.00

818.00

860.00

817.00

January, 2005

880.00

800.00

849.90

741.20

February, 2005

850.00

801.05

825.00

802.00

March, 2005

878.00

801.00

876.00

804.50

(vi) Performance of the Company’s equity shares in comparison to BSE Sensex

The above chart is based on the monthly closing prices of the shares of the Company and monthly closing BSE
Sensex.
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(vii)

Registrar and Transfer Agent
The Company has appointed M/s Alankit Assignments Limited, 2E/21, Alankit House, Jhandewalan Extension,
New Delhi 110 055 as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for physical as well as electronic connectivity with the
depositories for dematerialised shares.

(viii)

Share Transfer System
Investors Grievance Committee and designated officials of the Company are authorised to approve transfers of
securities. Share transfers which are received in physical form are processed and the share certificates returned
within a period of 14 days from the date of receipt subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respects.
The dematerialised shares are transferred directly to the beneficiaries by the depositories.

(ix)

Disclosures
In accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and subsequent amendments the
company has implemented a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Equity Shares of the company for
observance by its Directors and other identified persons.
The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer in this regard.

(x)

Unclaimed Dividends
Dividends pertaining to the financial years upto and including 1993-94 remaining unclaimed have been transferred
to the General Revenue Account of the Central Govt. Shareholders having valid claims of unpaid dividend for any of
these financial years may approach the Registrar of Companies, U.P. & Uttaranchal, Kanpur.
Dividends pertaining to the financial years 1994-95 to 1996-97 remaining unpaid have been transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the Fund) established under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 (the
Act). As per said Section, no claims are allowed from the Fund.
In respect of unpaid/unclaimed dividends for the year 1997-98 onwards, the shareholders are requested to write to
the Company. Dividends remaining unclaimed for seven years from the date of transfer of unpaid dividend account
will be transferred as per Section 205A(5) of the Act to the Fund. Reminders have been sent to the shareholders for
claiming unpaid dividend amount.

(xi)

Information pursuant to Clause 49 VI (A) of the Listing Agreement
Information pertaining to particulars of Directors to be appointed and re-appointed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting is included in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

(xii)

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors
The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Certificate is annexed.

(xiii)

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2005
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(xiv)

(a)

Dematerialisation of Shares
The shares of the Company fall under the category of compulsory delivery in dematerialised mode by all
categories of investors. The Company has signed agreements with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). As on 31st March, 2005, 2,29,75,777 equity
shares of the Company (88.66% of the paid-up capital) were in dematerialised form.

(b)

Liquidity
The Equity Shares of the company are frequently traded on the National Stock Exchange as well as on The
Stock Exchange Mumbai (in Group B1).

(xv)

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
The Company issued 1.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2009 (FCCB 2009 ) aggregating US $ 35,000,000,
in the year 2004-05. The Bonds are convertible at any time between June 14, 2004 and April 15, 2009 by holders
into fully paid equity shares of Rs.5 each of the Company or Global Depositary Shares (“GDSs”) each representing
one equity Share at an initial conversion price of Rs.818.23 per share with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of
Rs. 44.805 = U.S.$1. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The Bonds may also be
redeemed, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Company at any time on or after May 14, 2007 and prior to
May 8, 2009, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. The outstanding Bonds remaining after conversion will be
redeemed on May 15, 2009 at 113.70% of their principal amount. Assuming full conversion of FCCB’s into equity
shares, 19,16,544 shares would be allotted taking the paid up capital of the Company to Rs. 13.90 crores. As on 31st
March,2005, FCCB’s of US $ 34,500,000 were outstanding.
The FCCB’s are listed on Singapore Stock Exchange . The GDSs are listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

(xvi)

Location of the Plants
Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar, U.P
Block 133, Village Samlaya, Taluka Savli, District Vadodara, Gujarat
Village Nimbut, Nira, District Pune, Maharashtra
51-56 KIADB Industrial Area, Nanjangud,Mysore, Karnataka

(xvii)

R & D Centres
Central R & D: C-26, Sector –59, Noida, U.P.D-12, Sector 59, Noida, U.P.
Gajraula R & D: Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar, U.P
Nanjangud R & D:51-56 KIADB Industrial Area, Nanjangud,Mysore, Karnataka
Samalya R & D: Block 133, Village Samalya, Taluka Savli, District Vadodara, Gujrat

(xviii)

Address for Correspondence
The Company Secretary
Jubilant Organosys Limited
Plot No.1A, Sector-16-A
Noida, U.P. 201 301
Tel: +91 120 2516601/ 2516611
Fax: +91 120 2516629
e-mail : lalit_jain@jubl.com
Website : http://www.jubl.com

Extent to which Non-Mandatory Requirements have been adopted:
The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements:

1.

Remuneration Committee
The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee, the composition, terms of reference and other details of the
same are given hereinabove.

2.

Shareholder Rights
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The Company has sent half-yearly declaration of financial performance, including summary of the significant events,
for the first half of the year under review to each household of shareholders.

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING
AGREEMENT WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGES
To the Members of Jubilant Organosys Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Jubilant Organosys Limited (“the Company”)
for the year ended on 31st March, 2005, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the stock
exchanges, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company and the Report on Corporate Governance
as approved by the Board of Directors.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
We certify that the Company has complied with, in all material respect, the mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreements except that the number of independent directors was short by one
during the period 29th January, 2005 to 31st March, 2005.
We have been explained that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as
per the records maintained by the Company and put before the Investors Grievance Committee.
For K.N. Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place

: Noida

Date

: 16th April, 2005

B.R. Goyal
Partner
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Auditors’ Report
To the members of Jubilant Organosys Limited
1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Jubilant Organosys Limited as at 31st March 2005, the related Profit and
Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto, and the cash flow statement of the Company for the
period ended on that date, which we have signed under reference to this report. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

2.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An Audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227
(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we enclose in the Annexure hereto a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4.

Further to our comments mentioned in the Annexure referred to in above paragraph we report that:
a)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper Books of Account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of the books of the Company.
c)

The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by the report are in agreement
with the Books of Account of the Company.

d) In our opinion, the Profit & Loss Account, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement comply with the mandatory
Accounting Standards referred to in Sub-Section 3 (c) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.
e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of written representations received from
the Directors as on 31st March 2005 of the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that
none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2005, from being appointed as a Director in terms of clause (g)
of Sub Section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.
f)

The Company has received proper returns from branches not visited by us.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said Accounts,
read with the notes thereon and Significant Accounting Policies, there on give the information required by the
Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:
(i)

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2005.

(ii)

In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(iii)

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

For K.N. Gutgutia & Company
Chartered Accountants

Place: Noida
Dated: 16th April 2005

B.R. Goyal
Partner
Membership No. 12172
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
Re: Jubilant Organosys Limited
Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date.
i)

ii)

iii)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)

As per the information and explanation given to us physical verification of fixed assets has been carried out in
terms of the phased programme of verification of its fixed assets adopted by the Company. In our opinion the
frequency of verification is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

(c)

During the year the Company has not disposed off any substantial/ major part of fixed assets.

(a)

As per the information furnished, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management.
In our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of stock, the frequency of the physical verification is
reasonable.

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, procedures of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company
and the nature of its business.

(c)

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. In our opinion, discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of stocks were not material in relation to the operations of the Company and the same have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(a)

There was only one company covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,1956
to which the Company has granted loan. The maximum amount involved during the year was Rs. 82.40 million
and the year end balance of loan granted to such party was Rs. 51.20 million.

(b)

In our opinion the rate of interest and other terms and condition on which loan has been granted to the said
Company listed in register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,1956 are not prima facie, prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

(c)

The said party has repaid a part of principal amount on demand and has been regular in the payment of interest.

(d)

There is no overdue amount of loan granted to the said company.

(e)

The Company had not taken any loan from any company covered in the register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, paragraphs 4 (iii) (e) (f) & (g) of the Order are not applicable.

iv)

v)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase
of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not
observed any continuing failure to correct major weakness in internal control system.
(a)

Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, we are of the opinion that the transactions that need to be entered into the register maintained
under Section 301 have been so entered.

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance
of contracts or arrangements entered in the register under Section 301 have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices, wherever comparable prices are available, at the relevant
time.

vi)

In the case of public deposits received by the Company, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 58A, 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,1956 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 1975 have been complied with. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board
or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

vii)

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

viii)

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of the Cost Records under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies
Act,1956 in respect to the companies’ certain products. We have broadly reviewed the Books of Account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Order made by the Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records for
certain products of the Company and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained. We are, however, not required to and have not carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and
records.

ix)

(a)

According to the informations and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the Company is regular
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investors education
and protection fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty,
cess and other statutory dues wherever applicable. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2005 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b)

According to the records of the Company, the dues of sale tax, income-tax, customs, wealth-tax, service tax,
excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of disputes and the forum where the dispute is
pending are as under:
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Name of the
statue

Nature of the
dues

Amount
Rs./millions

1.

Excise Duty

2.

3.

4.

Central
Excise Act

Service
Tax
SalesTax
Act

Zila
Panchayat
Act

Period to which
the amount relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

0.56

July 2003-March 2004

Addl. Commissioner
(Appeals)

Excise Duty

0.98

February 2003September 2004

Deputy Commissioner
(Appeals)

Excise Duty

6.59

August 1996

Commissioner
(Appeals)

Excise Duty

3.68

May 1999-December 2000

Tribunal

Excise Duty

0.57

July 1995-September 1995

High Court

Excise Duty

5.76

April 1999

High Court

Service Tax

1.19

April 1999-March 2003

Commissioner(Appeals)

Penalty

0.40

April 1999-March 2003

Commissioner(Appeals)

Sales Tax Demand

8.18

1997-2004

Deputy Commissioner
(Appeals)

Penalty

0.12

April 2004

Deputy Commissioner
(Appeals)

Sales Tax Demand

0.79

1997-1998

Tribunal

47.20

2000-2001

High Court

230.00

2000-2001

High Court

0.20

2000-2001

High Court

2000-2001

High Court

Damages
Penalty
Taxes
Recovery Charges

27.74
st

x)

There are no accumulated losses of the Company as on 31 March, 2005. The Company has not incurred any cash losses during
the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xi)

Based on our audit procedures and the information given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

xii)

Based on our examination of the records and the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans and/ or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xiii)

Clause (xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company as the Company is not a Chit Fund Company or nidhi /mutual benefit
fund/ society.

xiv)

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others
from bank or financial institutions.

xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans raised during the year have been applied for the
purpose for which they were raised.

xvii)

According to the information & explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we
report that the no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long term investment.

xviii)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year to parties/companies covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

xix)

During the year covered by our audit report the Company has not issued secured debentures.

xx)

The Company has raised monies through public issues (Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds) during the year covered by our
report. The management has disclosed the end use of money (including Rs. 1.44 million, temporarily deployed as Fixed Deposit
with a Bank, pending utilization-Note 7(A) of Schedule “O” ) so raised and the same has been verified by us.

xxi)

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, by the management, we report
that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For K.N. Gutgutia & Company
Chartered Accountants

Place: Noida
Dated: 16th April 2005

B.R. Goyal
Partner
Membership No. 12172
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Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,

Schedules

2005

2004

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital

A

129.58

117.32

Reserves & Surplus

B

4,830.52

1,996.38
4,960.10

Loan Funds

2,113.70

C

Secured Loans

2,038.15

Unsecured Loans

1,619.73

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

D

3,857.66
352.34
3,657.88

4,210.00

857.70

741.62

9,475.68

7,065.32

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets

E

Gross Block

8,359.50

7,161.53

Less: Depreciation

3,083.57

2,825.21

Net Block

5,275.93

4,336.32

Capital Work-in-Progress

929.70

Investments

F

Current Assets, Loans and Advances

G

405.99
6,205.63

4,742.31

990.23

148.89

Inventories

1,762.05

1,282.80

Sundry Debtors

1,784.38

1,455.05

159.62

208.35

1,249.01

811.42

4,955.06

3,757.62

2,039.53

1,379.93

691.29

225.48

2,730.82

1,605.41

Cash & Bank Balances
Loans and Advances

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

H

Liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assets
Miscellaneous Expenditure

I

2,224.24

2,152.21

55.58

21.91

9,475.68

7,065.32

(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Notes to Accounts & Significant Accounting Policies

O

Schedule “A” to “I” and “O” referred above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Profit and Loss Account
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

Schedules

2005

2004

INCOME
Sales & Services

J

Less: Excise Duty on Sales

12,179.63

9,454.33

(1,034.31)

(864.64)

Net Sales & Services
Other Income

K

Increase/(Decrease) in Finished & Process Stocks

L

11,145.32

8,589.69

138.61

99.32

248.63

(55.48)

11,532.56

8,633.53

9,468.63

6,975.08

EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing & Other Expenses

M

Depreciation (Net)
Less: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve for Depreciation on

356.85

331.13

(9.15)

(9.15)

Revalued Amounts (Refer Note 1 (B) (v) of Schedule “O”)

Interest

N

Profit Before Tax
Current Tax Provision including Wealth Tax
Deferred Tax Liability

347.70

321.98

213.19

357.55

10,029.52

7,654.61

1,503.04

978.92

256.16

87.20

116.08

177.51

-

(63.00)

Less: Withdrawn from Reserve (Refer Note 15(B) of Schedule “O”)

116.08

114.51

(2.13)

(24.85)

370.11

176.86

Profit After Tax

1,132.93

802.06

Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year

1,063.98

457.03

Balance Available For Appropriation

2,196.91

1,259.09

Tax Adjustments for Earlier Years (Net) (Refer Note 15(C) of Schedule “O”)

APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Distributed Profits on Equity Shares
(Including Rs.0.08 million on a/c of Education
Cess on Dividend for F.Y 03-04)

161.96

84.32

22.79

10.79
184.75

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance Carried To Balance Sheet

95.11

350.00

100.00

1,662.16

1,063.98

Basic Earnings Per Share ( In Rupees)

O

46.94

34.18

Diluted Earnings Per Share ( In Rupees)
Notes to Accounts & Significant Accounting Policies

O
O

44.49

34.18

Schedule “J” to “O” referred above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Cash Flow Statement
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities :
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustment for :
i) Depreciation
ii) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net of Profits)
iii) Interest (Net)
iv) Amortization/Write Off (VRS Expenses)
v) Provision for Doubtful Debts
vi) Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment
vii) Bad Debts/Irrecoverable Advances Written Off
viii) Unrealized Exchange Difference
ix) Interest on Income Tax Refunds
x) Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Non-Trade)
xi) Extraordinary Items
xii) Income from Current Investment
(Non Trade) -Dividend

2004

1,503.04
347.70
0.94
213.19
13.42
24.49
13.04
(61.49)
(2.96)
(0.05)
(88.74)

978.92
321.98
1.04
357.55
2.28
11.99
14.31
1.56
(103.83)
(46.70)
(0.23)
-

(3.19)

(0.21)
456.35
1,959.39

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustment for :
i) Trade and other Receivables
ii) Inventories
iii) Miscellaneous Expenditure

578.51
479.25
47.09

559.74
1,538.66
621.87
(59.09)
24.19

1,104.85
854.54
591.48
1,446.02

i) Current Liabilities & Provision
Cash inflow from Operations
Deduct :
i) Interest Paid
ii) Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds)

235.66
174.51

Add :
i) Interest on Income Tax Refunds
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Operating Activities
B. Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities :
Outflow
i) Acquisition/Purchase of Fixed Assets/CWIP
ii) Purchase (Sale) of Investments (net) (Including
in Subsidiaries)
iii) Loans to other Companies (net)
(Including to Subsidiaries)
Deduct :
Inflow
i) Sale of Fixed Assets
ii) Interest Received
iii) Dividend Received
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Investing Activities
C. Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities
Inflow
i) Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital (Net
of Share Issue Expenses- Rs.12.03 million and
(Including Share Premium of Rs.1987.90 million)
ii) Proceeds from Long Term & Short term
Borrowings (After adjustment of Rs.88.74 million
in relation to remission of liability)
iii) Proceeds from issue of Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (Net of expenses- Rs.59.32 million)

586.97
951.69
283.77
1,235.46
395.75
57.97

410.17
2.96
1,038.81

453.72
46.70
828.44

1,763.58

823.77

841.29
1.20

(14.57)
14.50
2,606.07

10.24
11.39
3.19

823.70
25.36
15.74
0.21

24.82
(2,581.25)

41.31
(782.39)

1,988.00
(1,968.70)

199.21

1,508.86

1,528.16

Deduct :
Outflow

i)

Dividend Paid (including Corporate Dividend
Tax & Education Cess)

34.45

136.45
34.45
1,493.71
(48.73)
208.35

1)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of Year
(Including Balance in Dividend Accounts)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the close of the Year
159.62
(Including Balance in Dividend Accounts)
Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever found necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

208.35

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172
Date : 16th April, 2005

136.45
62.76
108.81
99.54

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal
Noida

199.21

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Schedules Forming Part of the Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
A.

2005

2004

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
60,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each
(Previous Year 29,200,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each)
2,500,000 Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.
(Previous Year 4,040,000 Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.)

300.00

146.00

250.00

404.00

550.00

550.00

129.60

117.34

129.60

117.34

129.56

117.30

0.02
129.58

0.02
117.32

Issued & Subscribed
25,919,755 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each
(Previous Year 23,468,103 Equity Shares
of Rs.5 each)

Paid up
25,913,355 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 23,461,703 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each)
Add: Equity Shares Forfeited
(Rs.5 paid up on 3,200 Equity Shares- face value of Rs.10 each )

Notes:
1)

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature, Allahabad and Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi, Delhi, and as contained in the Opening Reference Balance Sheet annexed to the Scheme, the paid
up share capital of the company reduced during the year 2002-03 by cancellation of 476,550 Equity shares and 374,684
Equity shares of Rs.5 fully paid up held by erstwhile Vam Investments Ltd and Vam Leasing Ltd respectively as
investments in the company.

2)

Pursuant to the Special Resolution of members passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 6th December,
2004, the Company allotted on 20th December, 2004, 2,424,273 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.5 each, at a premium
of Rs.820 per share, on private placement basis to two foreign investors. The shares are under lock in for one year from
the date of allotment.

3)

During the year 2004-05, the Company issued 1.5% Convertible Bonds due 2009 (Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
or “FCCBs”) for an aggregate value of US$ 35 million. The Bonds are convertible at any time between June 14, 2004 and
April 15, 2009 by holders into fully paid equity shares of Rs.5 each of the Company or Global Depositary Shares
(“GDSs”) each representing one equity Share at an initial conversion price of Rs.818.23 per share with a fixed rate of
exchange of Rs. 44.805 = U.S.$1. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. During the
year, upon exercise of conversion option of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) amounting to
US$ 0.50 million 27,379 equity shares were allotted. Assuming full conversion of FCCBs into equity shares, 1,916,544
equity shares would be issued, resulting in eventual number of equity shares being 27,802,520.The paid up capital then
would be Rs.139.0 million.

4)

Paid up capital includes :
a)

8,798,139 Equity shares of Rs.5 each fully paid were allotted and issued as bonus shares by capitalization of Capital
Redemption Reserve in accordance with the resolution passed by the shareholders dated
February 28, 2004.

b) 328,804 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted and issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile
Ramganga Fertilizers Ltd. with the Company for consideration other than cash (152,356 equity shares of Rs.5 each
allotted to Vam Investments Ltd and 31,884 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each allotted to Vam leasing Ltd were cancelled
during the year 2002-03 - refer note no 1 above).
c)

1,012,800 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted and issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation to shareholders
of erstwhile Anichem India Ltd. and of erstwhile Enpro Specialty Chemicals Ltd. with the Company for consideration
other than cash (324,194 equity shares of Rs.5 each allotted to Vam Investment Ltd and 342,800 equity shares of
Rs.5 each allotted to Vam leasing Ltd were cancelled during the year 2002-03 -refer note no. 1 above).
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Schedules Forming Part of the Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st
March, 2004
B.

Additions/
Created
during the year

Deductions

As at 31st
March, 2005

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

22.82

22.82

9.86

9.86

Amalgamation Reserve

13.21

13.21

Securities Premium Account (1)

87.75

Revaluation Reserve (2)

37.02

Debenture Redemption Reserve

99.90

Capital Redemption Reserve

General Reserve (3)

661.84

2,010.17

104.92

1,993.00

9.15

27.87
99.90

350.00

10.14

932.40

1,001.70
3,168.36

Add : Surplus as per Profit & Loss Account

1,063.98

1,132.93

534.75

1,662.16

Total

1,996.38

3,493.10

658.96

4,830.52

Previous Year

1,405.57

902.06

311.25

1,996.38

Notes :
(1)

a) Additions denote premium on issue of shares on preferential basis and on conversion of FCCB.
b) Deductions denote an amount of Rs.59.32 million for Foreign Currency Convertible Bond issue expenses,
Rs.33.57 million as proportionate provision for premium on redemption of FCCB and Rs.12.03 million as Share Issue
Expenses.

(2)

Refer Note 1B(v) of Schedule “O”.

(3)

Deduction denotes adjustment on account of impairment of assets identified in accordance with requirement of
Accounting Standard 28 (AS-28).
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
C.

2005

2004

740.60

1469.30

359.58

784.33

5.45

1.70

845.03

1,165.33

87.49

437.00

2,038.15

3,857.66

LOANS

Secured
A.

Loans From Bank
-Term Loans
[Including Rs. 240.60 million (Previous year Rs.131.10 million)
in foreign currency]
-Working Capital
[Including Rs. 322.98 million (Previous year Rs.717.50 million)
in foreign currency]
-Vehicle Loans

B.

Loans From Others
-Term Loans
[Including Rs. 136.70 million (Previous year Rs.628.19 million)
in foreign currency]
-Working Capital
[Including Rs. 87.49 million (Previous year Rs. 437.00 million)
in foreign currency]
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
C.

2005

2004

1,509.20

-

105.14

232.53

5.39

119.81

1,619.73

352.34

LOANS (Contd.)

Unsecured
1.5 % Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (Refer Note 7(A) of Schedule “O”)
Fixed Deposits
Deferred Sales Tax Credits

Notes :
1.

Term Loans from Punjab National Bank, Export Import Bank of India and Indian Bank and Long Term Foreign Currency
Loan of USD 5 million from Export Import Bank of India are secured by a first charge by way of :a)

mortgage of the immovable assets and charge by way of hypothecation on the movable assets, both present and
future [Save & except Book Debts and Bankers Goods as per Note 2 below and specified exclusions listed in notes
i to iv below] pertaining to the Company's manufacturing facilities located at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba Phoolay
Nagar, Uttar Pradesh and at Village Samlaya, Taluka, Savli, District Vadodara, Gujarat.
i

specified land and buildings situated at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar, Uttar Pradesh and constructed out of the financial assistance granted by HDFC.

ii

land and building located at Plot No 1A, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

iii

land & building of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients Unit located at Nanjangud, Mysore, Karnataka.

iv

immovable assets of the Company situated at Nimbut Village, District Nira, Pune, Maharashtara

b) hypothecation of fixed assets [other than land and building as mentioned in a (iii)] both present and future pertaining
to the Company's manufacturing unit situated at Nanjangud, Mysore, Karnataka;

2.

c)

such charges to rank pari-passu amongst the said chargeholders;

i)

Working Capital Facilities sanctioned by Consortium of Banks and notified Financial Institutions comprising of ICICI
Bank Limited, Corporation Bank, Punjab National Bank, Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited, Canara Bank, Syndicate
Bank, Indian Bank, Export Import Bank of India, ING Vysya Bank Ltd., ABN Amro Bank and Standard Chartered Bank
are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari passu inter-se Banks, of the entire Book Debts of
the Company and Inventories both present and future at the manufacturing facilities at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba
Phoolay Nagar, Uttar Pradesh at Nimbut Village, District Nira, Pune, Maharashtra and at Village Samlaya, Taluka,
Savli, District Vadodara, Gujarat (save and except Book Debts and Inventories related to IMFL business at Nimbut
Village,District Nira, Pune, Maharashtra and the modification of charge for excluding these assets is pending) and at
Nanjangud, Mysore, Karnataka;

ii)

The Company also has a Commercial Paper programme aggregating Rs. 2000 million within the overall Working
Capital Limits sanctioned to it by the Working Capital Consortium. As on 31.03.05, there was no outstanding against
the same. The Company has availed Rs. 550 million against the said facility during the year (Previous year Rs. 500
million).

3.

Loans availed for financing purchase of vehicles are secured by a first charge by way of an exclusive hypothecation of
the vehicles purchased out of the loan proceeds in favour of the lender.

4.

Secured Loans includes loans of Rs. 281.30 million (Previous year Rs. 485.10 million) repayable within one year.
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
D.

2005

2004

911.01

773.38

53.31

31.76

857.70

741.62

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(Refer Note 15A of Schedule "O")
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FIXED ASSETS

(Rs./million)
GROSS BLOCK-COST/BOOKVALUE
Total
as at
31st, March
2004

Additions/
adjustments
during the
year

(a) Free Hold

118.00

35.68

(b) Lease Hold

120.09

Description

Deductions/
adjustments
during the
year

DEPRECIATION

Total
as at
31st, March
2005

Total
as at
31st, March
2004

Provided
during
the year

Deductions/
adjustments
during the
year

NETBLOCK
Total
as at
31st, March
2005

As at
31st
March
2005

As at
31st
March
2004

Land
153.68

153.68

118.00

120.09

120.09

120.09

Buildings
(a) Factory

267.82

67.25

335.07

54.58

11.99

66.57

268.50

213.24

(b) Others (1)

352.74

24.54

377.28

50.81

11.04

61.85

315.43

301.93

Plant &
Machinery(2)

5,950.94

1,100.11

84.81

6,966.24

2,594.88

292.17

70.46

2,816.59

4,149.65

3,356.06

16.27

19.52

7.73

28.06

4.83

2.63

2.26

5.20

22.86

11.44

Office Equipments

121.27

30.21

0.75

150.73

44.42

15.06

0.41

59.07

91.66

76.85

Furniture & Fixtures

108.23

12.98

1.99

119.22

23.13

7.46

0.84

29.75

89.47

85.10

37.29

27.48

64.77

11.53

7.63

19.16

45.61

25.76

Vehicles

Intangibles
a) Internally generated
- Patents/product
development
b) Other
- Rights

44.36

44.36

16.51

8.87

25.38

18.98

27.85

TOTAL

7,137.01

1,317.77

95.28

8,359.50

2,800.69

356.85

73.97

3,083.57

5,275.93

4,336.32

Previous Year

6,644.79

562.68

45.94

7,161.53

2,513.61

331.13

19.53

2,825.21

Capital Work in Progress, Capital Advances & Project Expenses Pending Capitalization

929.70

405.99

6,205.63

4,742.31

NOTES :
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(1)

Building includes Rs.500 being cost of share in Co-operative Housing Society.

(2)

Adjustment/Deduction in Plant & Machinery includes Rs. 10.14 million (Net) being adjustment on account of write off due to impairment of Assets( in accordance with AS-28),
which has been adjusted to General Reserve.

(3)

Capital Work in Progress includes Rs. 36.75 million being expenses incurred on Product Development (intangibles) pursuant to AS-26
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
F.

2005

2004

INVESTMENTS : (Long Term)
Number

Face value
per unit

Unquoted (at cost)
Trade Investments
In Subsidiary Companies
A) Fully paid Equity Shares

25,000
(25,000)

US$1

- Jubilant Organosys (USA) Inc.

1.09

1.09

200,000
(-)

US$1

- Jubilant Organosys (Shanghai) Ltd.

8.80

-

13,900,000
(-)

Euro 1

743.79

-

1,999,766
(-)

Rs.10

- Jubilant Chemsys Ltd.

20.00

-

1,999,766
(-)

Rs.10

- Jubilant Clinsys Ltd.

20.00

-

295,600
(295,600)

Rs.10

- Jubilant Biosys Ltd.

147.80

147.80

- Jubilant Chemsys Ltd.
6% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares fully paid.

30.00

-

- Jubilant Clinsys Ltd.
6% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (Rs.5 paid up)

18.75

-

990.23

148.89

- Jubilant Pharma N.V. (Belgium)

B) Preference Shares
3,000,000
(-)
3,750,000
(-)

Rs.10

Rs.10

Notes:
(1) Figures in ( ) indicates in respect of previous year.
(2) During the year, the following current investments (Non-Trade) were purchased and sold:
i)

65,675,086 Units of HDFC Liquid Fund -Premium Plan & Cash Management Fund-Savings Plan-at Cost of
Rs. 714.00 million.

ii)

24,998,500 Units of PNB Mutual Fund -Principal Cash Management Fund- at Cost of Rs. 250.00 million.

iii) 24,919,013 Units of SBI Mutual Fund-Magnum Institutional Income-Savings- at Cost of Rs. 250.00 million.
iv) 42,188,752 Units of ICICI Mutual Fund-Prudential ICICI Liquid Plan Institutional Plus- at Cost of Rs. 500.00 million.
v) 31,333,292 Units of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund-GCCD Grindlays Cash Fund- at Cost of Rs. 320.00 million.
vi) 49,972,015 Units of HSBC Mutual Fund-HSBC Cash Fund- at Cost of Rs. 500.00 million.
vii) 30,000,000 Units of ABN Amro Mutual Fund-ABN Amro Cash Fund- at Cost of Rs. 300.00 million.
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
G.

2005

2004

- Raw Materials

580.32

439.78

- Stores, Spares, Process Chemicals, Catalyst, Fuels & Packing Material

403.00

313.83

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current Assets
Inventories : (Including in Transit & with Third Parties)
(at lower of cost or net realisable value)

- Process Stocks

272.19

172.94

- Finished Goods (including Trading Goods)

506.54

356.25

1,762.05

1,282.80

75.20

68.51

-

13.13

- Other Debts - Good

1,709.18

1,386.54

(Includes Subsidy receivable From State Government Rs.19.50 million
(Previous Year Rs.13.60 million))

1,784.38

1,468.18

-

13.13

1,784.38

1,455.05

3.97

5.06

-

1.24

125.60

139.41

Sundry Debtors
Unsecured
- Over Six Months - Good
(Includes Subsidy receivable From State Government Rs.18.34 million
(Previous Year Rs.34.25 million))
- Doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Cash & Bank Balances
- Cash in hand and as Imprest
- Cheques/Drafts in hand
- With Scheduled Banks
- On Current Accounts
- On Dividend Account
- On Deposit Accounts (1)
- With Non Scheduled Banks in Current Account [With ICICI Bank UK Ltd
(Previous year with Bank of China)] (2)

5.30

6.67

24.63

55.85

0.12

0.12

159.62

208.35

Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, Considered good)
- Loans to Subsidiary (including interest accrued)
- Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received (3)
- Deposits
- Deposits with Excise / Sales Tax Authorities (4)
- Advance Payment of Income Tax/Wealth Tax (including TDS)

55.73

50.00

519.42

340.05

87.68

78.90

258.59

191.52

327.59

150.95

1,249.01

811.42

4,955.06

3,757.62

(1)

Includes: a) Margin Money - Rs.1.33 million (Previous Year Rs.28.04 million) b) Rs.1.44 million (Previous Year Rs.Nil)
being unutilized money raised from the issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds.

(2)

Maximum Balance outstanding during the Year Rs.1,517.43 million with ICICI Bank UK Ltd (Previous Year Rs.Nil) and
With Bank of China -Rs.0.17 million (Previous Year Rs.0.47 million).

(3)

Includes Rs.250.89 million (Previous Year Rs.123.62 million) Export Benefits Receivables.

(4)

Deposit against disputed demands -Rs.110.58 million (Previous Year Rs.98.09 million)
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,

2005

2004

1,247.53

736.16

600.23

463.45

Trade Deposits & Advances

86.04

72.55

Interest Accrued but not due

24.55

29.67

Other Liabilities

67.38

54.35

- Unclaimed/unpaid Dividends

5.30

6.67

- Unclaimed Fixed Deposits

7.68

14.83

- Interest on Unclaimed Matured Fixed Deposits

0.82

2.25

2,039.53

1,379.93

28.32

7.88

For Dividends on Equity Shares

184.67

33.08

For Income Tax & Wealth Tax

375.26

119.10

For Retirement/Post retirement Employee Benefits

97.79

73.30

For Others(1)

33.57

-

691.29

225.48

2,730.82

1,605.41

55.58

21.91

55.58

21.91

H.

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A)

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors and Expenses Payable
Acceptances

Investors Education and Protection fund shall be credited with the
following amount namely:

Sundry creditors include,dues to small scale industrial undertakings.

B)

Provisions

Total (A+B)
(1)

Includes proportionate provision for premium on
redemption of FCCB -Rs.33.57 million

I.

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses
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Schedules Forming Part of the Profit And Loss Account
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,
J.

2004

12,145.80

9,451.42

SALES & SERVICES
Sales
Manufacturing Services (Refer Note 16 of Schedule “O” )
(1) Includes Rs.15.76 million being value of captively produced
ENA used for the said services

K.

2005

33.83 (1)

2.91

12,179.63

9,454.33

Income from Current Investments (Non-Trade) - Dividend

3.19

0.21

Insurance/Other Claims (Net)

1.43

5.53

Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Non-Trade) (3)

0.05

0.23

-

10.75

Exceptional Item (Refer Note 5 of Schedule “O”)

88.74

-

Miscellaneous Receipts (1)

45.20

82.60

138.61

99.32

OTHER INCOME

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) (2)

(Includes Sale of unserviceable spares, used drums, residual catalyst etc.)
(1) Includes:

a)

Income from utilities provided Rs.0.53 million - Previous year Rs.2.44 million
(Tax Deducted at source Rs.0.09 million - Previous year Rs.0.25 million).

b)

Processing Charges of Rs.0.52 million - Previous year Rs.2.06 million
(Tax Deducted at source Rs.0.01 million - Previous year Rs.0.04 million).

c)

Interest on Income Tax Refunds of Rs.2.96 million (Previous year Rs.46.70 million).

d)

Bad Debts recovered Rs. 5.62 million.

(2) In respect of disposal of land & building during the F.Y 2003-04.
(3) Previous year figures represents, profit on sale of 3000 equity shares of Canara Bank.

L.

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN FINISHED AND PROCESS STOCKS

Stock at close -Process

272.19

172.94

Stock at close -Finished

506.54

356.25

778.73

529.19

-

0.69

Stock Adjustment ; Pursuant to acquisition of IMFL Business - Process
- Finished

-

6.58

Stock at commencement -Process

172.94

191.24

Stock at commencement -Finished

356.25

369.96

529.19

568.47

249.54

(39.28)

(0.91)

(16.20)

248.63

(55.48)

Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks
Less: Increase/Decrease of Finished & Process Stock of IMFL Business
(Refer Note 16 of Schedule “O”)
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(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

2004

251.93

231.06

Raw & Process Materials Consumed

5,642.48

3,638.80

Power and Fuel

1,022.46

907.41

M.

MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES

Purchases - Traded Goods

Excise Duty (Net)

25.23

4.50

Stores, Spares, Chemicals, Catalyst and Packing Materials consumed

578.47

541.67

Processing Charges

114.73

89.97

Repairs - Plant & Machinery

197.69

154.45

- Buildings

12.23

14.64

542.04

474.63

Contribution to Provident and Superannuation Fund

71.02

60.20

Staff Welfare Expenses

58.13

51.86

Rent (Net of recoveries)

30.69

27.05

Rates & Taxes

23.60

14.96

Insurance [Net of recoveries -Rs.8.19 million (PY -Rs.7.42 million)]

39.40

32.33

Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion

46.09

52.79

Traveling & Other Incidental Expenses

99.74

91.55

Offices Maintenance (including Water, Electricity & Repairs to office
equipments & others)

41.71

34.48

Vehicle Maintenance (Including vehicle Taxes, Insurance & Driver Cost)

25.13

25.90

Printing & Stationery

12.34

12.15

Communication Expenses

38.45

35.88

Staff Recruitment & Training

31.59

19.63

1.19

0.48

Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Gratuity and Allowances

Donation (6)
Auditors Remuneration (5) - As Auditors

0.95

0.92

- for Taxation Matters

0.28

0.27

- for Certification/Advices/Other Matters

0.84

0.58

- out of Pocket Expenses

0.10

0.02

Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges
Freight & Forwarding (including Ocean freight)
Amortisation/write off - (VRS Expenses)
Directors’ Sitting Fees

48.98

39.74

215.65

180.03

13.42

2.28

0.71

0.40

Directors’ Commission

28.60

13.65

Miscellaneous Expenses

15.54

11.79

Financial Charges (incl. Bank Charges, Fixed Deposit expenses
& Foreign Exchange fluctuations net gain of Rs.120.05 million (PY net gain of
Rs.191.79 million)) (3)

(39.55)

(91.53)

Discounts & Claims to Customer and Other Selling Expenses

182.25

205.02

Commission on Sales (4)

58.59

40.61

Lease Rentals & Hire Purchase charges

21.15

29.57

Loss on sale/disposal/discard of Fixed Assets

0.94

11.79

Loss on sale of Raw Materials

0.80

-

13.04

13.55

9,468.63

6,975.08

Bad Debts / irrecoverable Advances written off /provided for

Jubilant Organosys Ltd.

77

Schedules Forming Part of the Profit And Loss Account
SCHEDULE “M” (CONT.)
(1)

The above expenses are netted off, after taking into account credit of Rs. 10.92 million (Previous year Rs.9.18 million).

(2)

The above total expenditure includes :
a)

Expenditure incurred on R&D of Rs.119.68 million (Previous Year Rs.91.69 million) under various heads of accounts

b)

Prior period adjustments determined during the years are adjusted to respective heads of account of
Rs.3.69 million (Previous Year of Rs.2.25 million)

(3)

Total foreign exchange gain of Rs.123.32 million (Previous year Rs.222.02 million) is adjusted against total foreign
exchange losses of Rs.3.27 million (Previous year Rs.30.23 million) as disclosed above. Foreign Exchange loss includes
Rs.1.23 million (Previous year exchange gain of Rs.119.51 million) in respect of Loan Liabilities. Financial charges
includes Rs.24.15 million (Previous year- Rs.37.03 million) being one time charges paid for restructuring of long term
loans.

(4)

Includes Rs.Nil million (Previous year Rs. 7.91 million) to a wholly owned Subsidiary Company and Provision for liability
of Rs.Nil million (Previous year Rs.35.40 million), no longer required, reversed & netted off.

(5)

Excluding Rs. 0.97 million, being payment for Certification/Audit of FCCB documents.

(6)

Includes Rs.1.19 million as contribution to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund.
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

2004

On Debentures

0.12

13.48

On Term Loans

144.18

239.30

On Deposits

16.71

34.89

On FCCB

23.05

-

N.

INTEREST

On Overdrafts & other Borrowings (2)
Less: Interest Income [Tax deducted at source Rs.1.66 million
(Previous year Rs. 2.30 million)]

45.05

85.62

229.11

373.29

15.92 (1)
213.19

15.74 (1)
357.55

Including Rs.Nil million (Previous year Rs. 0.04 million)
Interest Income on Investments
(1) Includes Rs.4.53 million (Previous year Rs.2.07 million) charged to Subsidiary Company.
(2) Includes Rs.8.99 million (Previous year Rs.2.54 million) as Discounting Charges on Commercial Papers.
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Notes to the Accounts
O.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Notes to the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2005 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date.

1.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A.

Basis of Accounting
The Accounts of the Company (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) are prepared under historical cost
convention and in accordance with the relevant applicable Accounting Standards using the accrual basis of accounting.

B.

C.

a.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation

i.

Fixed Assets are recorded at cost inclusive of such expenses as referred to in (viii) hereunder and/or at the
revalued value as ascertained by approved valuers and at book value in case of Assets acquired at the time of
amalgamation of certain entities with the Company and at such fair value as ascertained by the valuer in case of
acquisition of manufacturing facilities as a going concern and the cost incidental to and /or attributable to such
acquisition.

ii.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method except in case of Plant & Machinery at Nira & Savli plants
which is on Written Down Value Method in terms of rates mentioned and in the manner specified in Schedule
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 (as amended), on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets as mentioned in
iii, v, vi, vii & viii hereunder and on the revalued portion of the assets at the rates suggested by the valuers and/
or at such rate arrived at with reference to residual life. Certain plants were classified as continuous process
plants from the financial year ended 31-03-2000 and such classification has been done on technical assessment,
(relied upon by the auditor being a technical matter) and depreciation has been provided accordingly.

iii.

a)

Depreciation, in respect of assets added/installed upto 15th December, 1993, is provided at the rates
applicable at the time of additions/installations of the assets as per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,
1956;

b)

Depreciation, in respect of assets added/installed during the subsequent period, is provided at the rates,
mentioned in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 read with Notification dated 16th December, 1993
issued by Department of Company Affairs, Government of India;

iv.

Intangibles Assets consisting of Patents/Rights/ New Product Development (acquired/self generated) are
capitalised and are amortised over a period of 5 years.

v.

Freehold Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinery was last revalued in the year 1991-92 on the basis of report
obtained from an Approved Valuer and Rs.245.65 million was added to the Gross Block of such assets and
accordingly depreciation has been provided on the revalued figures. The first revaluation of said assets was
done during the year 1987-88. A sum of Rs.9.15 million (Previous Year Rs. 9.15 million) has been transferred
from Revaluation Reserve to Profit and Loss Account, which represents the difference between the depreciation
on the revalued value and the original cost of the assets.

vi.

Depreciation on assets added/disposed off during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the month of addition/disposal.

vii.

Insurance spares / standby equipments are capitalised as part of the mother assets and are depreciated at the
applicable rates.

viii.

Interest on loans & other financial charges and preoperative expenses including Trial Run Expenses (Net) for
projects and/or substantial expansion upto the date of commencement of commercial production/ stabilization
of the project are capitalized.

ix.

Certain employee perquisite – related assets are depreciated over five years, being the period of the perquisite
scheme.

b.

Leased Assets: Amortization/charging off

(i).

Leasehold Land value is not amortized in view of the long tenure of the unexpired lease period/ conversion to
freehold at the expiry of lease tenure.

(ii).

Other lease assets: Assets acquired under finance lease from 1st April 2001 are capitalized at the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payment in line with the Accounting Standard 19 issued
by the Institute Of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). In respect of other leases, lease rentals are charged to
Profit and Loss Account.

Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
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Cost include all direct costs, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of overheads and such other costs incurred as
to bring the inventory to its present location and condition inclusive of excise duty wherever applicable. Cost formula
used is based upon weighted average cost.

D.

Investments
Long Term quoted investments (non-trade) are valued at cost unless there is a permanent fall in their value as at the
date of Balance Sheet.
Unquoted investments in subsidiaries being of long term nature, are valued at cost and no loss is recognised for the
fall, if any, in their net worth, unless the diminution in value is other than temporary. Investment in foreign subsidiary
companies are expressed in Indian currency at the rates prevailing on the date when the remittance for the purpose
was made / foreign currency balance abroad was used, as the case may be.

E.

Taxation
Current Tax provision is made, taking into consideration the various benefits / concessions to which the Company is
entitled to as well as the normal tax provisions and the contentions of the Company and also the fact that certain
expenditure becoming allowable on payment being made before filing of the return of income.
In accordance with Accounting Standard 22 – Accounting for Taxes on Income, issued by the ICAI, the deferred tax for
timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets (reviewed at each balance sheet date) arising from timing differences are recognized to the extent
there is reasonable/virtual certainty, as the case may be, that the assets can be realized in future.

F.

Conversion or translation of Foreign Currency items
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on/or closely approximating to the date
of transactions. Current Assets and liabilities (other than relating to fixed assets) are restated at the rate prevailing at
the period end or at the forward rate where forward cover for specific asset/liability has been taken. The difference
between the period end rate and the exchange rate at the date of the transaction is recognized as income or expense
in the profit and loss account. In respect of forward exchange contracts, the difference between the contract rate and
the rate on the date of transaction is recognized as income or expense in the profit and loss account over the life of the
contract.
In the case of liabilities incurred for the acquisition of imported fixed assets, the loss or gain on conversion (at the rate
prevailing at the period end or at the forward rate where forward cover has been taken) is included in the carrying
amount of the related fixed assets.

G.

Contingent Liabilities
Liabilities, though contingent, are provided for if there are reasonable prospects of such liabilities maturing. Other
contingent liabilities, barring frivolous claims, not acknowledged as debts, are disclosed by way of note.

H.

Research & Development
Revenue expenditure on Research & Development are included under the natural heads of expenditure. Capital
expenditure on Research & Development are treated in the same manner as expenditure on other fixed Assets.

I.

Retirement Benefits
- Provision for Gratuity and leave encashment are made on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to the Profit &
Loss Account.
- Contributions to Superannuation fund are given to LIC, (which administers the fund) and is charged to Profit & Loss
Account.
- Employer’s contribution to Employees Provident Fund is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

J.

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of
such assets upto the date as mentioned in Note No.B (a) viii above. Other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in
the year in which they arise.

K.

Revenue Recognition
Sales include excise duty, export incentives and subsidies but excludes Inter Divisional transfers and Sales Tax. In
Order to comply with the Accounting Standard Interpretation ASI 14 issued by ICAI, Sales (including excise duty) and
Net Sales (excluding excise Duty) is disclosed in Profit & Loss Account.
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Export incentives/ benefits are accounted for on accrual basis and as per the principles given under AS-9 (Revenue
Recognition).

L.

Miscellaneous Expenditure / Amortisation
Miscellaneous expenditure consists of expenditure in respect of compensation payable as per the terms of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme of the company and the same are amortised over a period of thirty six months commencing from
the month in which payment / liability arise.

M.

Segment Accounting
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with accounting policies of the Company. Revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to operating
activities of the segments (taking in account the nature of products and services and risks & rewards associated with
them) and internal management information systems and the same is reviewed from time to time to realign the same
to conform to the Business Units of the company. Revenue, expense, assets and liabilities which are common to the
enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as “Common
Revenue/Expense/Assets/Liabilities”, as the case may be.

N.

Impairment of Fixed Assets
In compliance with the Accounting Standard on Impairment of Assets (AS 28) issued by ICAI applicable w.e.f 01.04.2004,
the company has started identifying the assets which are subject to impairment test and adjusted the same in the
manner specified under the said Standard.

2.

3.

Capital Commitments
a)

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (Net of Advances)
Rs. 486.10 million (Previous Year Rs. 285.13 million) [Advances Rs.84.27 million (Previous Year Rs.99.72
million)].

b)

Rs 18.75 million in respect of investment in partly paid up 6% Optionally Convertible Non Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Jubilant Clinsys Ltd. (A wholly owned subsidiary).

Contingent liabilities
a)

Claims/Demands/Disputes against which appeals are pending and not acknowledged as debts on account of:
(Rs./million)

2004-05

2003-04
16.73*

- Central Excise

Rs. million

16.73*

- Sales Tax

Rs. million

10.20

5.09

- Income Tax

Rs. million

-

24.15

- Service Tax

Rs. million

1.59

-

- Others

Rs. million

2.53

-

*Amount deposited Rs. 16.73 million
The Company has been advised that its contentions in the matter of disputed demands are legally tenable and hence
the possibility of these maturing is remote.
b)

The Company has challenged the levy of transport fee by State of Maharashtra on consumption of rectified spirit
and molasses in the Nira factory. The order of State imposing the levy was stayed by the Hon’ble Mumbai High
Court on October 22, 2001. The Company has been advised that the levy of transport fee on rectified spirit and
Molasses by State is not tenable. However the company has deposited Rs. 6.28 million under protest out of the
total transport fee of Rs. 59.83 million.

c)

Outstanding guarantees furnished by Banks on behalf of the company including in respect of Letters of Credits/
Bonds is Rs.1004.57 million (Previous Year Rs. 372.59 million).

d)

Exports obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of five/eight
years on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty (duty saved Rs 81.56 million) remaining
outstanding is Rs. 652.51 million (Previous year Rs. 153.37 million). Similarly export obligation under advance
licence scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials (duty saved Rs 66.24 million) by the Company,
remaining outstanding is Rs.611.59 million (Previous year Rs. 232.69 million).
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e)

The Company has challenged the increase in denaturing fee by the state of Uttar Pradesh w.e.f April 01, 2004 on
denaturing of rectified spirit in the Gajraula factory, before the Hon’ble Allahabad High Court and the writ petition
has been admitted by the said court. The Company has deposited Rs 3.50 million under protest.

f)

Zila Panchayat at J.P. Nagar served a notice demanding a compensation of Rs.277.40 million allegedly for creating
lagoons on their lands, percolation of poisonous water stored in lagoons resulting in loss of crops, cattle of the
farmers and poisonous fly ash on national highway which caused loss to the health, eyes and skin of people.
District Magistrate issued a recovery certificate alongwith 10% collection charges inflating the demand to
Rs.305.14 million. In the opinion of the Company, the Zila Panchayat has no justification in raising this demand.
The demand was challenged in Hon’ble High Court and the court stayed the demand till further orders.

4.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court has quashed the levy of licence fee by State of Uttar Pradesh on captive consumption
of denatured spirit in the Gajraula factory. While passing the judgment, the Hon’ble Court inadvertently recorded
that licence fee has not been collected by the State Govt. This has been sought to be corrected by moving
rectification application. Consequent to that the Company is entitled to a refund of Rs. 84.06 million.

5.

Other Income includes exceptional item of Rs. 88.74 million being the difference between the amount of deferred
sale tax loans and the amount of payment made (being the Net Present Value of such Deferred Sales Tax Loan)
before the completion of deferred period, pursuant to notification issued by the Government of Maharastra
consequent to the scheme of pre payment.

6.

(A) Loans and advances includes;
Loans to subsidiary company including interest accrued thereon, namely, Jubilant Biosys Ltd. – Rs. 55.73 million
(Previous year Rs. 50.00 million) {Maximum amount due at any time during the year Rs. 82.40 million (Previous
year Rs. 50.00 million)}

7.

(B)

Sundry Debtors as shown in Schedule “G” is net after giving the effect of sale of receivables amounting to
Rs. Nil million (Previous year – Rs. 76.95 million)

A)

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)
The company issued 1.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds amounting to US$ 35 million on May 14, 2004
due for redemption on May 15, 2009. The bond holders have an option to convert these bonds into Equity Shares
or Global Depository Shares (GDS) determined at an initial conversion price of Rs 818.23 per share at a fixed rate
of exchange of Rs. 44.805 = US$ 1. The conversion price will be subject to certain adjustments. Further the
Company has an option of early redemption of these bonds at any time on or after May 14, 2007 subject to certain
conditions. Unless previously converted, redeemed, or purchased and cancelled, these bonds will be redeemed
on May 15 2009 at 113.70 % of their principal amount. These proceeds have been used for funding the new
projects, expansion of existing units, overseas investments, expansion and acquisitions and balance of Rs.1.44
million has been temporarily deployed as Fixed Deposit with a bank pending utilization.
In accordance with the terms of the issue, 27,379 Equity Shares have been issued up to March 31, 2005 to the
bondholders holding FCCB’s aggregating US$0.50 million who have exercised the option to convert. The balance
bonds, net of exchange difference, outstanding as of March 31, 2005 are included under ‘Unsecured Loans’.

B)

Private Placement of Equity Shares
During the year, the Company allotted 2,424,273 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.5 each, at a premium of Rs.820
per share, on private placement basis to two foreign investors viz. Citicorp International Finance Corporation and
HPC (Mauritius) Limited. The proceeds have been used for debt reduction, capital expenditure, expansion plans
and other corporate purposes.

8.

9.

(a)

Assets aggregating Rs 49.00 million (previous year - Rs. 84.95 million) have been acquired on financial lease
during the earlier years. The obligation for future lease rentals in respect of such assets aggregate to Rs.12.10 million.
(Previous year - Rs. 30.73 million) payable within a period of 2 years. Lease rentals payable during the year 200506 is Rs 10.62 million and balance amount of Rs. 1.48 million is payable in the year 2006-07.

(b)

The Company’s significant operating leasing arrangements are in respect of premises (residential, offices, godown
etc.). These leasing arrangements, which are cancelable, range between 11 months and 9 years generally and are
usually renewable by mutual agreeable terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as expenses.

Capitalization of Interest, Pre-operative and Trial Run expenses
In line with the applicable Accounting Standards, interest on funds utilized and preoperative expenses including trial
run expenses (net) for projects and/or substantial expansions have been capitalized up to the date of commercial
production/stabilization of the project, amounting to Rs. 86.29 million (Previous Year Rs. 40.29 million). All preoperative
expenditure including interest of Rs. 18.99 million (Previous Year Rs 12.94 million) so capitalized and Trial Run
Expenditures (net of trial run receipts) accumulated as Capital work in progress has been allocated to respective Fixed
Assets.
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10.

(A) The Company, through its wholly owned Subsidiary Jubilant Pharma N.V, acquired 80 % equity stake (put and call
option for balance 20 % at the end of six years from the date of acquisition) in Belgium based pharmaceutical
companies, Pharmaceuticals Services Incorporated N.V. and PSI Supply N.V. for a consideration of Rs. 743.79
million in cash. The economic benefits of these investments accrue to the Company effective April 1, 2004.
(B)

The Company has invested in Jubilant Chemsys Ltd. and Jubilant Clinsys Ltd. to engage in chemistry services
and clinical research respectively, consequently these Companies have become wholly owned subsidiaries.

(C)

The Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Jubilant Organosys (Shanghai) Ltd., in Free Trade Zone of
China primarily for trading activities.

11.

Hitherto, the company has been recognizing inter-division transfers for captive consumption as sales and the value of
such inter-division transfers was included in material consumption, With effect from the financial year ended March
31, 2005; pursuant to the clarification on Accounting Standard-9(AS-9), on Revenue Recognition, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India; the Company has discontinued the said method of recognizing interdivision transfer as sales and material consumption and the previous year figures have been restated accordingly. The
above change in method of revenue recognition has resulted in reduction in Sales(Gross) by Rs.2,747.74 million
(Previous year Rs. 2,302.76 million) and with a corresponding reduction in the amount of material consumption.
However, such change, has no impact on the profit of the Company.

12.

In compliance with Accounting Standard 28 (AS-28) relating to Impairment of Assets issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company has identified and assessed its assets for impairment and provided, Rs.
10.14 million towards provision for impairment of assets as at April 01, 2004 and the same has been adjusted against
the opening General Reserve.

13.

Sundry Creditors include:
i.

14.

The Small Scale/ancillary industrial undertaking to whom the amount is outstanding for more than 30 days are:
Vel make Seals

D. R. Scientific Works

Manik Engineers

Dhruv Packaging

Span Engineers

Silver Tone Gravu-Flex Pvt. Ltd.

Virava Chemicals

Rodricon Industries

Millenium Chemi Pharma

O S M Engineering

Mander Engineering

Micro Engineers

Sunil Kumar & Bros

Dhatukarm Engineers

Premium Energy Transmission Ltd

Vimal Hi-Tech Pvt.Ltd.

Arihant Gujrat Plastic Industries

A K Sales Corporation

Century Thread Works

Polybond Pharmaceuticals

Pious Printers

Niranjan Containers Pvt. Ltd.

Enkay Containers

Parkaire Engineering Co.Pvt. Ltd.

Makewell Plasticizers Pvt Ltd.

Multi -Max Engineering.Works

Parth Chemical & Metals Enterprises

Chhaya Packers & Printers Pvt. Ltd.

Metro Polyprints

Basant Plastics

K L J Organic Limited

Pahwa Plastics Pvt. Ltd

Polybond Pharmaceuticals

Bloom Packaging Pvt. Ltd

ii.

There are no amounts overdue to small scale and / or ancillary industrial suppliers on account of Principal and / or
interest as at the close of the year.

iii.

The above disclosures are based on the information/documents available with the Company.

The Company has an investment of Rs.147.80 million in the Share Capital of its Subsidiary, Jubilant Biosys Ltd (JBL).
In addition, the Company has a loan outstanding from JBL of Rs.51.20 million as at 31st March 2005. As per the latest
available Audited Financial Statements of JBL, its accumulated losses have resulted in partial erosion of its net worth.
However, in view of the projected revenue streams in the future years, in the opinion of the management, no provision
is required to be made on the above accounts.
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15.

(A) Deferred Assets and Liabilities are attributable to the following items:
(Rs./million)

As at

31.03.05

31.03.04

33.26

26.69

0.84

0.36

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuity
Amount disallowed u/s 43 B
Provision for doubtful debts
Deduction allowed under section 35D

-

4.71

19.21

-

53.31

31.76

909.98

772.58

1.03

0.80

911.01

773.38

857.70

741.62

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated Depreciation
Payments under Voluntary Retirement Scheme

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(B)

An amount of Rs. Nil million (Previous Year Rs. 63.00 million) has been withdrawn from reserves to offset the charge
arising on reversal of deferred tax assets.

(C)

Adjustment for Tax of earlier years represents : a) Rs. Nil million (Previous Year Rs 18.00 million) is due to reversal of
excess of provision of Tax in earlier years ascertained upon the revision in the method of calculation of MAT for the
previous years based on the legal advice and b) Rs.2.13 million (Previous Year Rs. 6.85 million)-on account of credits/
refunds relating to earlier years.

(D)

The Company has been granted approval by the Department of Scientific and Industrial Research for its new in-house
research and development center at Noida. The Company has made an application for approval for claiming weighted
deduction under section 35 (2AB) of the Income Tax Act 1961 and the tax computations have been made accordingly.

16.

The bottling unit of the company situated at Nira holds a potable liquor license for Indian Made Foreign Liquor (IMFL) and
the same is bottling IMFL on the order of another company and is charging bottling fee.
The Accounts recognise Revenue and Expenditure, only to the extent the Company enjoys beneficial Interest.
In Compliance with the requirements of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the following information is given
hereunder in respect of the transactions where the Company does not enjoy beneficial Interest.

(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

2004

636.33

108.73

(397.38)

(90.32)

Other Income

5.58

0.88

Increase/(Decrease) in Finished & Process Stocks

0.91

16.20

Raw & Process Materials Consumed

(49.81)

( 8.57)

Stores, Spares, Chemicals, Catalyst &Packing Materials consumed

(73.90)

(9.95)

Sales
Excise Duty

Rates & Taxes

-

(0.01)

Insurance (Net of recoveries)

(0.45)

( 0.03)

Other Expenses

(0.16)

( 0.01)

Freight & Forwarding (including Ocean Freight)

(5.71)

( 0.99)

(77.33)

(13.02)

Discounts & Claims to Customers & Other Selling Expenses
Purchase of trading material

(4.25)
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17.

Segment Reporting :
i)

ii)
iii)

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard on “Segment Reporting” ((AS-17) Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ) the Company’s Primary Business Segments are organized around
customers on industry and product lines as under :
a. Pharmaceuticals & Life Science Chemicals : Pharmaceuticals (API’s), Custom Research & Manufacturing
Services (CRAMS) and Food Polymers.
b. Performance Chemicals : Industrial Products for tyres, textiles and coatings; Speciality Gases and
Consumer Products for woodworking solutions.
c. Industrial Chemicals : Organic Intermediates, Agri and Animal Nutrition Products.
Inter Segment Transfer Pricing: Inter Segment transfer prices are based on market prices.

The Financial information about the primary business segments is presented in the table given below:
(Rs./million)
Particulars

1)

Revenue
Less: Inter Segment Revenue
Less: Excise Duty on Sales
Net sales

2)

3)

5)

178.84

210.08

234.53

220.21

Industrial
Chemicals
2005
2004
5,995.85 4,423.87
181.19
194.01
620.94
434.35

Total
2005
12,360.82
181.19
1,034.31

2004
9,648.34
194.01
864.64

4,283.85

3,210.51

1,667.75

1,583.67

5,193.72

3,795.51

11,145.32

8,589.69

Segment results
Less : Interest (Net)
Other un-allocable expenditure
(net of un-allocable income)

965.48

853.55

24.71

38.25

830.06

608.99

1,820.25
213.19
104.02

1,500.79
357.55
164.32

Total Profit Before Tax

965.48

853.55

24.71

38.25

830.06

608.99

1,503.04

978.92

5,790.46

3,947.13

798.10

765.83

3,881.75

3,238.67

10,470.31
1,736.19

7,951.63
719.10

5,790.46

3,947.13

798.10

765.83

3,881.75

3,238.67

12,206.50

8,670.73

Segment Liabilities
Add: Common Liabilities

515.38

554.73

265.50

247.31

1,258.46

551.60

2,039.34
691.48

1,353.64
251.77

Total Liabilities

515.38

554.73

265.50

247.31

1,258.46

551.60

2,730.82

1,605.41

Segment Capital Employed
Add: Common Capital Employed

5,275.08

3,392.40

532.60

518.52

2,623.29

2,687.07

8,430.97
1044.71

6,597.99
467.33

Total Capital Employed

Capital Employed
(Segment Assets - Segment Liabilities)
Segment Assets
Add: Common Assets
Total Assets

4)

Pharmaceuticals &
Perfomance
Life Science Chemicals
Chemicals
2005
2004
2005
2004
4,462.69
3,420.59 1,902.28
1,803.88

5,275.08

3,392.40

532.60

518.52

2,623.29

2,687.07

9,475.68

7,065.32

Segment Capital Expenditure
Add: Common Capital Expenditure

892.01

414.66

37.13

14.08

381.44

130.63

1,310.58
7.19

559.37
3.31

Total Capital Expenditure

892.01

414.66

37.13

14.08

381.44

130.63

1,317.77

562.68

Depreciation(Net)
Add: Common Depreciation

157.91

127.24

25.92

26.96

155.17

159.88

339.00
8.70

314.08
7.90

Total Depreciation

157.91

127.24

25.92

26.96

155.17

159.88

347.70

321.98

Notes :

1)
2)
3)

iv)

The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the Primary segment
Segments have been identified and reported taking into account the nature of products and services, the
differing risk and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems.
The Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each
of the segments and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

Secondary Segment Reporting : Geographical
(Rs./million)
Particulars

India
2005
2004
Revenues
8,716.50
7,363.34
Less: Inter Segment Revenue
181.19
194.01
Less: Excise Duty on Sales
1,034.31
864.64
Net sales
7,501.00
6304.69

Americas & Europe
2005
2004
2,437.20 1,312.60

China
2005
2004
682.40 390.70

2,437.20

682.40

1312.60

390.70

Asia & Others
Total
2005
2004
2005
2004
524.72 581.70 12,360.82 9,648.34
181.19 194.01
1,034.31 864.64
524.72 581.70 11,145.32 8,589.69
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18 A.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has entered into transactions with the related parties:

a.

Related parties where control exists
- Subsidiaries
Jubilant Pharma N.V.,
Pharmaceutical Services Incorporated N V.,
Jubilant Organosys (USA) Inc,
Jubilant Clinsys Ltd.,

b.

Jubilant Organosys (Shanghai) Ltd.,
PSI Supply N V.,
Jubilant Chemsys Ltd.,
Jubilant Biosys Ltd

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
- Associates
Jubilant Enpro Private Ltd.
- Others
Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust

c.

I. Key Management Personnel
Mr. Shyam.S.Bhartia, Mr. Hari.S.Bhartia, Mr. S.N.Singh, Mr. Shyam Bang, Dr. J.M.Khanna, Mr. R. Sankaraiah

II. Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Ms Shobhana Bhartia, Ms Sudha Singh, Ms Shobha Bang, Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh, Ms Chitra Sankaraiah

d.

Transactions with related parties during the period
(Rs./million)

Particulars
Expenses recharged to other
companies for facilities provided
Asset purchased during the year
Asset sold during the year
Sale of Finished Goods
Export Commission
Company’s Contribution to PF Trust
Inter-Corporate Deposits Given
Inter-Corporate Deposits Received Back
Inter-Corporate Deposits Outstanding
Interest on Inter-Corporate Deposits
Investments in Equity Share capital
Investment in 6% optionally convertible
Non-cumulative Redeemable preference shares
of Rs 10 each
Remuneration and related expenses
Fixed Deposits outstanding at the year end
Interest on Fixed Deposits during the year
Rent paid to the relatives
Note:

Subsidiaries

Associates

Key Mgmt.
Personnel & Relatives

Others

10.40
(0.34)
(0.62)
18.84
(0.05)
843.69
(212.05)
(7.91)
(-)
32.40
(54.00)
31.20
(4.00)
51.20
(50.00)
4.53
(2.07)
792.59
(77.80*)
48.75
(-)

8.08
(7.96)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
54.99
(42.67)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

58.47
(35.14)
0.76
(5.10)
0.42
(0.57)
1.62
(-)

(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)
(-)

Managerial remuneration – Details as per Note 19 of Schedule “O”.
Figures in ( ) indicates in respect of previous year.
* Against the advance, the Company was allotted 778,000 10% optionally Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
shares of Rs. 100/ each by Jubilant Biosys Ltd. (JBL). The Company has exercised the option of conversion of the
said preference shares into 155,600 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of JBL.
• Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
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18 B.

PROMOTOR GROUP
Group companies
The company is controlled by Mr. Shyam S Bhartia/Mr. Hari S Bhartia group (“the promoter group”), being a group as
defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Act, 1969.
The persons constituting the promoter group include individuals and corporate bodies who/which jointly exercise,
and are in a position to exercise, control over the Company. The names of these individuals and bodies corporate are
Mr. Shyam S Bhartia, Mr. Hari S Bhartia, Mrs. Shobhana Bhartia, Mrs.Kavita Bhartia, Mr.Priyavrat Bhartia, Mr.Shamit
Bhartia, Ms. Aashti Bhartia, Master Arjun S Bhartia, Best Luck Vanijya Private Ltd., Denon Dealers Private Ltd., Enpro
Exports Private Ltd., Enpro Finance Private Ltd., Enpro Investments Private Ltd., Jaytee Private Ltd., Jubilant Enpro
Private Ltd., Jubilant Securities Private Ltd., Jubilant Capital Private Ltd., Kavita Commercial Private Ltd., Klinton
Agencies Private Ltd., Marketex Mercantiles Private Ltd., Marshall Mercantiles Private Ltd., Shobhna Commercial
Private Ltd., Sepeedage Vinimay Private Ltd., Rance Investment Holdings Ltd., Cumin Investments Ltd., Torino
Overseas Ltd., Value Leasing Ltd., Vam Holdings Ltd., VOCL Investments Ltd., Volvo Holdings Ltd., Westcost Vyapaar
Private Ltd., Nikita Resources Private Ltd.

19.

Details of Remuneration to the Managing Directors, Executive Directors & other Directors under section 198 of the Companies
Act 1956
(Rs./million)

2004-05

2003-04

11.48

10.21

i)

Salaries

ii)

Perquisite Value of Housing Facility

6.79

6.03

iii)

Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund

3.10

2.76

iv)

Perquisite value of other Benefits

3.18

2.49

v)

Commission to Managing Directors( Previous year Rs.6.50 million to each)

vi)

Commission to other Directors (Excluding Executive Directors)

13.00 **

28.00 **

0.65 *

0.60
53.15

35.14

1,503.04

978.92

53.15

35.14

0.71

0.40

347.70

321.98

1,904.60

1,336.44

347.70

321.98

1,556.90

1,014.46

31.00

20.00

28.00

13.00

0.60

0.65*

The above excludes provision for gratuity where calculation are on overall Company basis.

Calculation of Profit in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 for
the purpose of calculation of commission payable to Directors.
Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account
Add: Managerial Remuneration as above
Directors Sitting Fees
Depreciation(Net) as per Accounts
Net Profit
Less: Depreciation under Section 350 of the Companies Act 1956
Net Profit in accordance with Section 198 (I) /349 of Companies Act 1956
for calculation of Commission to Directors
Commission @ 1% to each Managing Director (Rounded amount)

Restricted to:
**Managing Directors (Previous year Rs.6.50 million to each)
Other Directors (Excluding Executive Directors) Rs.0.10 million each
(Previous Year Rs.0.10 million each)
* Including Rs.0.15 million relating to Previous years.
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20 (A). Capacities, Stocks, Production And Turnover
S.

Class of Goods

no.

Quantitative Capacity*
Denomination

Opening Stock Production

Turnover

Installed Quantity

Rs./
million

Qty @@ Quantity

Closing Stock

Rs./ Quantity
Rs./
million
million

1.

Alcohol

KBL
KBL

157,700
(151,800)

2,872
(5,908)

29.72
(61.09)

82,507
(125,246)

798
(36)

22.75
(0.61)

2

Organic including
Speciality Chemicals &
its Intermediates

MT
MT

# 387,545
#(374,724)

19,356
(3,942)

227.95
(224.45)

367,771
(348,795)

185,799
(146,575)

8,360.26
(6,071.53)

3

Polymers including
Co-polymers & VP Latex/
SBR latex

MT
MT

31,100
(32,100)

498
(460)

24.08
(25.32)

24,144
(23,925)

24,000
(23,860)

1,455.64
(1,264.52)

647
(498)

45.61
(24.08)

4

Single Super Phosphate

MT
MT

132,000
(132,000)

6,622
(9,505)

16.50
(23.72)

118,273 121,133
(118,115) (120,998)

446.17
(423.71)

3,762
(6,622)

10.81
(16.50)

5

Sulphuric Acid

MT
MT

57,750
(57,750)

264
(244)

0.58
(0.55)

60,359
(56,147)

25,041
(19,909)

79.89
(57.43)

634
(264)

1.06
(0.58)

6

Dry & Acqueous
Choline Chloride &
Ethyoxylates

MT
MT

22,000
(22,000)

305
(49)

11.38
(4.90)

8,690
(9,407)

5,505
(5,379)

250.78
(228.70)

139
(305)

5.41
(11.38)

7

Feed Premixes

MT
MT

3,500
(3,500)

64
(80)

1.35
(2.55)

2,188
(1,707)

2,007
(1,726)

79.08
(52.07)

244
(64)

8.31
(1.35)

8

Agri Chemicals

KL
KL

(-)

43
(8)

5.27
(0.99)

480
(238)

471
(203)

31.58
(20.35)

52
(43)

5.30
(5.27)

9

Active Pharma Ingredients
(API)

MT
MT

218
(202)

5
(5)

12.24
(23.29)

139
(179)

128
(179)

1098.80
(1,064.25)

17
(5)

61.75
(12.24)

10,800
176
(10,800) ##(229)

22.26
(-)

3,985
(595)

(-)

(-)

149
(176)

23.86
(22.26)

10 IMFL

KBL
KBL

2,544
(2,872)

61.98
(29.72)

10,685 276.20
(19,356) (227.95)

*

Under the Industrial Policy Statement dated 24th July,1991 and the notifications issued thereunder, no licensing is
required for the Company’s products.

#

Does not include Acetic Acid recovery from Vam Plant.

##

Stocks acquired on acquisition of IMFL business at Nira, Pune.

@@ Includes products manufactured by Contract Manufacturers on conversion basis wherever applicable.

Notes:
a)

Acetaldehyde is also produced which is mainly for captive consumption.

b) Closing Stock has been arrived at after considering Captive Consumptions.
c)

Installed capacities are as certified by the Management, being a technical matter and relied upon by the Auditors
accordingly.

d) Formaldehyde is also produced which is mainly used captively as process chemicals.
e) V.P. Latex / SBR Latex installed capacity is on wet basis.
f)

Difference in quantitative tally represent materials damaged / obsolete / issue for sample etc.

g) Previous year production for IMFL is from 10th February 2004.
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20. (B) Particulars in respect of Trading goods.
Particulars
i)

ii)

Quantity

Rs./million

Quantity

Rs./million

Agrochemicals (Ltr.)

25,862.00

4.93

24,384.00

3.11

Organic Manure(MT)

-

-

-

-

Other Organic Chemicals (MT)

-

-

-

-

Others

-

-

3.67

-

-

-

9,977.75

23.61

Agrochemicals (Ltrs.)

835,793.00

29.55

305,720.00

21.41

Organic Manure (MT)

1,537.05

2.11

3,548.05

5.70

Other Organic Chemicals (MT)

5,242.53

166.77

2,533.51

108.18

Others

1,036.09

53.50

432.62

72.16

-

-

9,977.75

28.04

Agrochemicals (Ltrs.)

800,211.00

38.39

304,242.00

24.91

Organic Manure (MT)

956.30

4.19

3,548.05

14.94

Other Organic Chemicals (MT)

5,242.53

218.57

2,533.51

122.19

Others

1,036.09

59.71

432.77

78.18

Agrochemicals (Ltrs.)

61,444.00

4.95

25,862.00

4.93

Organic Manure (MT)

580.75

1.30

-

-

Other Organic Chemicals (MT)

-

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

Purchases

Sales
Fertilizers (MT)

iv)

2003-2004

Opening Stock

Fertilizers (MT)

iii)

2004-2005

Closing Stock

20. (C) Raw Materials Consumed
2004-2005

2003-2004

Items

Quantity

Rs./million

Quantity

Rs./million

Molasses(MT)

343,513

927.80

532,660

842.06

Alcohol(KL)

106,360

1,738.84

51,546

578.11

Process Chemicals (MT)

71,552

1,808.02

44,748

1,198.90

Rock Phosphate (MT)

70,465

206.75

67,102

171.35

Sulphur etc(MT)

29,945

113.05

25,452

104.22

2,533,990

120.15

3,412,704

139.65

Chemicals for Latex [MT]

1,892

171.88

1,960

177.62

Chemicals for API [MT]

5,083

422.24

4,992

354.67

-

133.75

-

72.21

Chemicals for Feed Additive (Kgs)

Others [MT] (none of which individually
account for more than 10% of total consumption)

5,642.48

3,638.80
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Notes to the Accounts
20.(D) Value of imported and indigenous raw materials, stores and spare parts consumed and percentage thereof for the year.
2004-2005

2003-2004

Rs./million

%

Rs./million

%

- Imported

2,542.41

45.06

1,141.97

31.38

- Indigenous

3,100.07

54.94

2,496.83

68.62

5,642.48

100.00

3,638.80

100.00

93.07

16.09

97.61

18.02

485.40

83.91

444.06

81.98

578.47

100.00

541.67

100.00

Consumption of Raw Materials

Consumption of Stores, Spares Chemicals, Catalysts
& Packing Material Consumed
- Imported
- Indigenous

2004-05

2003-04

Rs. million

1,132.93

802.06

Number of Ordinary shares at the beginning
of the period

Nos

23,461,703

14,663,564

Shares issued on 18th March 2004 as Bonus shares

Nos

-

8,798,139

Shares issued on 20th Dec 2004 on preferential basis

Nos

2,424,273

-

Shares issued on 16th March 2005 on conversion of FCCB

Nos

27,379

-

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares for Basic EPS

Nos

24,133,729

23,461,703

The Nominal Value per Ordinary Share

Rupees

5

5

Earning Per Share(Basic)

Rupees

46.94

34.18

Profit after Tax for Basic EPS

Rs. million

1,132.93

802.06

Add: Interest payable on outstanding Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds

Rs. million

23.05

-

Less: Tax Impact on the above Interest

Rs. million

8.44

-

Profit After Tax for Diluted EPS

Rs. million

1,147.54

802.06

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares for Basic EPS

Nos

24,133,729

23,461,703

Add:Adjustment for Options related to Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds

Nos

1,661,431

-

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for Diluted EPS

Nos

25,795,161

23,461,703

Rupees

44.49

34.18

20. (E) Earning Per Share
Profit after Tax for Basic EPS

Earning Per Share (Diluted)
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(Rs./millions)

2004-05

2003-04

Technical Knowhow Fee/Services/Royalty/
Patent/Consultancy

13.79

4.45

-

Travel /Entertainment Expenses

15.06

14.11

-

Commission on Export Sales

20.57

20.58

-

Overseas Office Expenses

0.85

4.58

-

Interest on FCCB

11.92

-

-

Others

45.08

24.61

1,726.88

753.70

31.58

112.31

20. (F) Expenditure in foreign currency (on remittance basis)
-

20. (G) Value of Imports on C.I.F. basis
-

Raw Materials

-

Spare, Process Chemicals & Catalyst

-

Capital Good

121.99

65.24

-

Trading Goods

168.61

130.47

1.39

3.13

3

3

1,114,089

696,306

2003-2004

2002-2003

20. (H) Remittance in Foreign Currency on account of Final Dividend
a)

Amount of Dividend Remitted (Net of Tax)*

b)

Number of Non-Resident Shareholders

c)

Number of Equity Shares held by Non-Resident Shareholders

d)

The Year to which Dividend related

Remittance in Foreign Currency on account of Interim Dividend
a)

Amount of Dividend Remitted (Net of Tax)*

2.61

b)

Number of Non-Resident Shareholders

c)

Number of Equity Shares held by Non-Resident Shareholders

d)

The Year to which Dividend related

3
696,306
2003-2004

*excluding for those shareholders for whom Dividend has been
credited to their N.R.I. Account in India.

20. (I) Earnings in Foreign Exchange

21.

-

Export Sales (FOB Value)

-

Interest Income on Bank Deposits (overseas)

3,393.82

2,161.73

3.13

-

Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever found necessary to conform to this year’s
classification.

Signatures to Schedule “A” to “O” forming part of the Balance Sheet and Profit And Loss Account
In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile
I.

Registration Details
Registration No.

2

0

4 6

Balance Sheet Date

3

1

Date

2

4

0

3

State Code No.
2

Month

0

0

2

0

5

Year

II. Capital Raised During the Year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Public Issue *

Rights Issue

1

3

7

N

I

L

* consequent upon conversion of FCCB
Bonus Issue
N

Private Placement

I L

1

2

1

2

1

6

8

6

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabilities
9

4

7 5

Total Assets

6

8

6

9

4

7

5

Source of Funds
Paid-up-Capital
1

2 9

Reserves & Surplus

5

8

3

4

Secured Loans
2

0

3 8

8

3

0

5

1

9

Unsecured Loans

1

4

5

1

6

1

9

7

3

9

2

3

2

Deferred Tax Assets & Liability (Net)
8

5 7

7

0

0

Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
6

2

0 5

6

3

Investments
5

9

Net Current Assets
2

2

2 4

2

3

9

0

Misc. Expenditure
5

5

5

5

8

4

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover **
1

1

2

8 3

Total Expenditure
9

3

8

9

7

8

0

8

8

9

** Includes other Income
+

Profit/Loss Before Tax

-

1

5

0

3

0

4

+

9

1

Earnings Per Share in Rs.
4

6

.

9

Profit/Loss After Tax

-

1

3

2 9

3

5

Dividend Rate (%)

4

1

2

5

V. Generic names of the three Principal Products/Services of the Company (as per monetary terms)
Item Code (ITC No.)
2

9 3

3

3

1

.

0

Product Description

0

P Y R

I

D

I

N E

3

0 0

4

9

0

.

8

1

C A R B A M A Z E P

2

9 2

1

5

9

.

9

0

C

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

N E

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172
Date : 16th April, 2005

I

T A L O P R A M
For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Noida

I

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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(a)

Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus
(adjusted for debit balance
in Profit & Loss Account
where applicable)

Jubilant Biosys Jubilant Chemsys Jubilant Clinsys Jubilant Organosys USA
Ltd.
Ltd.
Ltd.
Inc#

Jubilant Organosys
(Shangai) Ltd.#

Jubilant Pharma NV#

Pharmaceuticals Services
Incorporated NV#

PSI Supply NV#

(Rs./million)

Chinese RBM

Euro

Euro

Euro

(Rs./million)

(Rs./million)

US$

(Rs./million)

(Rs./million)

(Rs./million)

(Rs./million)

(Rs./million)

4.41

50,00

38.75

25,000.00

1.09

1,652,837.50

8.80

13,900,000.00

743.79

500,000.00

28.34

62,000.00

3.51

95.28

-11.15

-3.15

-127788.00

-5.59

449280.09

2.33

1,989,592.00

156.68

956957.00

54.23

34,029.00

1.93

Total Assets
(Fixed Assets + Current
Assets)

205.55

53.39

43.12

2506134.00

109.64

31,952,295.57

169.13

2,160,614.00

122.44

3,655,255.00

207.14

1,265,129.00

71.69

(d) Total Liabilities
(Debts + Current Liabilities)

105.86

14.54

7.52

2608,922.00

114.13

29,850,178..13

158.00

5,741.00

0.33

2,235,298.00

126.67

1,068,308.00

60.54

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

37,000.00

2.10

Nil

Nil

(c)

(e)

(f)

Details of Investments
(except in case of
investments in subsidiaries
Turnover (including Other
Income)

(g) Profit before Taxation
(h) Provision for Taxation
(i)

Profit After Taxation

(j)

Proposed Dividend

103.73

9.63

Nil

9,533,670.00

427.59

66,012,875.32

358.24

2,004,357.00

113.75

6,010,650.00

341.11

2,812,681.00

159.62

18.76

-11.15

-3.15

-319,102.00

-14.09

488,347.92

2.65

1,989,592.00

112.91

2,706,825.00

153.61

479,447.00

27.21

Nil

Nil

Nil

220.00

0.01

39,067.83

0.21

Nil

Nil

928,499.00

52.69

150935.00

8.57

18.76

-11.15

-3.15

-319,322.00

-14.10

449,280.09

2.44

1,989,592.00

112.91

1,778,326.00

100.92

328512.00

18.64

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Notes:
# The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries have been converted into Indian Rupees on the basis of appropriate exchange rates.
The Ministry of Company Affairs, Government of India vide its letter dated 8th June, 2005 has granted approval under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956 for the financial year ended on 31.03.2005 whereby the Balance Sheet,
Profit & Loss Account, Director’s Report and Auditor’s Report of the subsidiaries and other documents required to be attached under Section 212(1) of the Act are not required to be attached to the Company’s Accounts. Hence, the
same are not being attached. However, the annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related detailed information will be made available to the members of the holding and susbsidiary companies seeking such information
at any point of time. The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will also be kept open for inspection by any investor in its Head Office and that of the subsidiary companies concerned.

Section 212

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (2004-05)
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Auditors’ Report
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JUBILANT ORGANOSYS LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF JUBILANT ORGANOSYS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES.
1

We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Jubilant Organosys Limited (‘the Company’) and its
subsidiaries, namely Jubilant Organosys (USA), Inc., Jubilant Biosys Ltd, Jubilant Clinsys Ltd, Jubilant Chemsys Ltd,
Jubilant Organosys(Shanghai) Ltd, Jubilant Pharma NV,(and its step down subsidiary namely, Pharmaceutical Services
Incorporated N.V. & PSI supply N.V.), ( the Company and its subsidiaries constitute ‘the group’) as at 31st March 2005, the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year then ended and annexed thereto and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Jubilant Organosys
Limited’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in India. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatements.
An audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate audited financial statements of Jubilant Organosys Limited, and its
subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

4

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us and on consideration of the separate audit report on
individual audited financial statements of Jubilant Organosys Limited, and its aforesaid subsidiaries, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:
a)

In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of ‘the group’ as at March 31, 2005;

b)

In the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the consolidated results of operations of ‘the group’ for the
year ended on that date; and

c)

In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows of ‘the group’ for the year
ended on that date

For K.N. Gutgutia & Company
Chartered Accountants

Place: Noida
Dated: 16th April 2005

B.R. Goyal
Partner
Membership No. 12172
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,

Schedules

2005

2004

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital

A

129.58

117.32

Reserves & Surplus

B

4,915.33

1,980.67

Minority Interest
Loan Funds

5,044.91

2,097.99

50.50

39.09

C

Secured Loans

2,056.15

3,857.66

Unsecured Loans

1,662.62

352.34
3,718.77

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

D

4,210.00

857.86

741.67

9,672.04

7,088.75

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets

E

Gross Block

9,443.15

7,343.89

Less: Depreciation

3,151.13

2,839.60

Net Block

6,292.02

4,504.29

976.80

445.80

Capital Work-in-Progress

Investments

F

Current Assets, Loans and Advances

G

7,268.82

4,950.09

2.10

-

Inventories

1,937.46

1,314.28

Sundry Debtors

1,765.29

1,421.00

375.74

227.45

Cash & Bank Balances
Loans and Advances

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

1,219.89

768.70

5,298.38

3,731.43

2,222.82

1,386.18

730.02

228.50

H

Liabilities
Provisions

2,952.84

Net Current Assets
Miscellaneous Expenditure

I

(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Notes to Accounts & Significant Accounting Policies

1,614.68
2,345.54

2,116.75

55.58

21.91

9,672.04

7,088.75

O

Schedule “A” to “I” and “O” referred above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Jubilant Organosys Ltd.

95

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

Schedules

2005

2004

INCOME
Sales & Services
Less: Excise Duty on Sales
Net Sales & Services
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Finished & Process Stocks

J

12,736.96
(1,034.31)

9,456.65
(864.64)
11,702.65
166.41
387.81
12,256.87

K
L

8,592.01
99.52
(32.12)
8,659.41

EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing & Other Expenses
M
Depreciation (Net)
Less: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve for Depreciation on
Revalued Amounts Refer Note 1 (C) (v) of Schedule “O”)

Interest

10,013.87
390.55
(9.15)

N

Profit Before Tax
Current Tax Provision including Wealth Tax
Deferred Tax Liability
Less: Withdrawn from Reserve (Refer Note 13(B) of Schedule “O”)

381.40

326.18

220.36
10,615.63
1,641.24
317.64

357.64
7,693.13
966.28
89.27

116.08
-

177.53
(63.00)
116.08
(2.13)
431.59
1,209.65
(17.72)
1,191.93
1,048.35
2,240.28

Tax Adjustments for Earlier Years (Net) (Refer Note 13(C) of Schedule “O”)

Profit After Tax
Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associate
Minority Interest

PROFIT AFTER TAX AND LOSS OF ASSOCIATE/MINORITY INTEREST
Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year

Balance Available For Appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Distributed Profits on Equity Shares
(Including Rs.0.08 million on a/c of Education
Cess on Dividend for F.Y 03-04)
Transfer to General Reserve
Transfer to Legal Reserve

7,009.31
335.33
(9.15)

161.96
22.79

Balance Carried To Balance Sheet

114.53
(24.80)
179.00
787.28
(8.90)
3.99
782.37
461.09
1,243.46
84.32
10.79

184.75
350.00
2.84
1,702.69

95.11
100.00
1,048.35

Basic Earnings Per Share (In Rupees)

O

49.39

33.35

Diluted Earnings Per Share (In Rupees)

O

46.77

33.35

Notes to Accounts & Significant Accounting Policies

O

Schedule “J” to “O” referred above form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities :
Net profit before tax
Adjustment for:
i) Depreciation
ii) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net of Profits)
iii) Interest (Net)
iv) Amortization/write off (VRS Expenses)
v) Provision for Doubtful Debts
vi) Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment
vii) Bad Debts/Irrecoverable Advances Written Off
viii) Unrealised Exchange Difference
ix) Interest on Income Tax Refunds
x) Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Non-Trade)
xi) Extraordinary Items
xii) Income from Current Investment
(Non Trade) -Dividend
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustment for:
i) Trade and other Receivables
ii) Inventories
iii) Miscellaneous Expenditure

1,641.24
381.40
7.95
220.36
13.42
25.04
12.99
(61.49)
(2.96)
(0.05)
(88.74)
(3.19)

504.73
2,145.97

480.47
623.18
47.09
1,150.74
995.23
557.50
1,552.73

i) Current Liabilities & Provision
Cash inflow from Operations
Deduct:
i) Interest Paid
ii) Direct taxes Paid(net of refunds)

240.76
198.21

Add:
i) Interest on Income Tax Refunds
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Operating Activities
B. Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities :
Outflow
i) Acquisition/Purchase of Fixed Assets/CWIP
ii) Purchase (Sale) of Investments (net)
iii) Loans to other Companies (net)
iv) Payment for Businesses Acquisition of Jubilant
Pharma N V Belgium (net of cash acquired)
i)
ii)
iii)

Sale of Fixed Assets
Interest Received
Dividend Received

438.97
2.96
1,116.72
1,955.49
(0.05)
-

Inflow

i)

78.36
13.86
3.19
95.41
(2,594.96)

ii)
iii)
iv)
Deduct :
Outflow

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital
(Net of Share Issue Expenses- Rs.12.03 million and
Including Share Premium of Rs.1987.90 million)
Proceeds from Long Term & Short term Borrowings
(after adjustment of Rs.88.74 million in relation to
remission of liability)
Proceeds from issue of Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds(net of expenses- Rs.59.32 million)
Contribution by Minority

(0.21)
#
#
586.62
(35.74)
24.19
#
#
#

966.28

565.64
1,531.92

575.07
956.85
294.21
1,251.06
454.62
46.70
843.14

#
878.36
(14.57)
(35.50)

734.93

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Investing Activities
C. Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities

#
326.18
1.26
357.64
2.28
11.99
15.70
1.56
(103.83)
(46.70)
(0.23)
-

395.85
58.77

2,690.37
Deduct :
Inflow

2004

#
25.66
15.74
0.21
#

1,988.00

-

(1,952.63)

199.21

1,508.86

-

(28.36)

(828.29)

41.61
(786.68)

(3.99)
1,515.87

i)

Dividend Paid (including Corporate Dividend
Tax & Education Cess)

34.45

136.45

136.45
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) in course of Financing Activities
58.77
D. Effect of Exchange Differences on translation of Foreign
Currency Cash and Cash Equivalents
(3.48)
1.60
Net Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents(A+B+C+D)
(0.30)
116.83
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of Year
(Including Balance in Dividend Accounts)
227.45
106.27
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalents on consolidation of Jubilant Biosys Ltd
4.35
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalents on consolidation of Jubilant Pharma NV
148.59
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the close of the Year
375.74
227.45
(Including Balance in Dividend Accounts)
Note: 1) Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever found necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

34.45
1,481.42

195.22

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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Schedules Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
A.

2005

2004

Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each
(Previous Year 29,200,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each)

300.00

146.00

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.
(Previous Year 4,040,000 Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.)

250.00

404.00

550.00

550.00

Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each
(Previous Year 23,468,103 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each)

129.60
129.60

117.34
117.34

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 23,461,703 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each)
Add: Equity Shares Forfeited
(Rs.5 paid up on 3,200 Equity Shares- face value of Rs.10 each)

129.56

117.30

0.02
129.58

0.02
117.32

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
60,000,000
2,500,000

Issued & Subscribed
25,919,755

Paid up
25,913,355

Notes:
1)

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature, Allahabad and Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi, Delhi, and as contained in the Opening Reference Balance Sheet annexed to the Scheme, the paid
up share capital of the company reduced during the year 2002-03 by cancellation of 476,550 Equity shares and 374,684
Equity Shares of Rs.5 fully paid up held by erstwhile Vam Investments Ltd and Vam Leasing Ltd respectively as
investments in the Company.

2)

Pursuant to the Special Resolution of members passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 6th December,
2004, the Company allotted on 20th December, 2004, 2,424,273 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.5 each, at a premium
of Rs.820 per share, on private placement basis to two foreign investors. The shares are under lock in for one year from
the date of allotment.

3)

During the year 2004-05, the Company issued 1.5% Convertible Bonds due 2009 (Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
or “FCCBs”) for an aggregate value of US$ 35 million. The Bonds are convertible at any time between June 14, 2004 and
April 15, 2009 by holders into fully paid equity shares of Rs.5 each of the Company or Global Depositary Shares
(“GDSs”) each representing one equity Share at an initial conversion price of Rs.818.23 per share with a fixed rate of
exchange of Rs. 44.805 = U.S.$1. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. During the
year, upon exercise of conversion option of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds(FCCB) amounting to
US$ 0.50 million, 27,379 equity shares were allotted. Assuming full conversion of FCCB’s into equity shares, 1,916,544
equity shares would be issued, resulting in eventual number of equity shares being 27,802,520.The paid up capital then
would be Rs.139.0 million.

4)

Paid up capital includes :
a)

8,798,139 Equity shares of Rs.5 each fully paid were allotted and issued as bonus shares by capitalization of Capital
Redemption Reserve in accordance with the resolution passed by the shareholders dated
February 28,2004.

b) 328,804 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted and issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile
Ramganga Fertilizers Ltd. with the company for consideration other than cash (152,356 Equity shares of Rs.5 each
allotted to Vam Investments Ltd and 31,884 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each allotted to Vam leasing Ltd were cancelled
during the year 2002-03 - refer note no 1 above).
c)

1,012,800 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted and issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation to shareholders
of erstwhile Anichem India Ltd. and of erstwhile Enpro Specialty Chemicals Ltd. with the Company for consideration
other than cash (324,194 Equity shares of Rs.5 each allotted to Vam Investment Ltd and 342,800 equity shares of
Rs.5 each allotted to Vam leasing Ltd were cancelled during the year 2002-03 -refer note no. 1 above).
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st
March, 2004
B.

Additions/
created
during year

Deductions

As at 31st
March, 2005

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

22.82

22.82

9.86

9.86

Amalgamation Reserve

13.21

13.21

Securities Premium Account (1)

87.75

Revaluation Reserve (2)

37.02

Debenture Redemption Reserve

99.90

Capital Redemption Reserve

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Legal Reserve
General Reserve (3)

2,010.17

104.92

1,993.00

9.15

27.87
99.90

1.60

41.52

43.12

-

2.84

2.84

660.16

350.00

10.14

932.32

1,000.02
3,212.64

Add : Surplus as per Profit & Loss Account

1,048.35

1,191.93

537.59

1,702.69

Total

1,980.67

3,596.46

661.80

4,915.33

Previous Year

1,407.95

883.97

311.25

1,980.67

Notes :
(1) a) Additions denote premium on issue of shares on preferential basis and on conversion of FCCB.
b) Deductions denote an amount of Rs.59.32 million for Foreign Currency Convertible Bond issue expenses,
Rs.33.57 million as proportionate provision for premium on redemption of FCCB & Rs.12.03 million as Share Issue
Expenses.
(2) Refer Note 1 C(v) of Schedule “O”.
(3) Deduction denotes adjustment on account of impairment of Assets identified in accordance with requirement of
Accounting Standard 28(AS-28).
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
C.

2005

2004

758.60

1,469.30

359.58

784.33

5.45

1.70

845.03

1,165.33

87.49

437.00

2,056.15

3,857.66

LOANS

Secured
A.

Loans From Bank
-

Term Loans
[Including Rs. 240.60 million (Previous year Rs.131.10 million)
in foreign currency]

-

Working Capital
[Including Rs. 322.98 million (Previous year Rs.717.50 million)
in foreign currency]

-

B.

Vehicle Loans

Loans From Others
-

Term Loans
[Including Rs. 136.70 million (Previous year Rs.628.19 million)
in foreign currency]

-

Working Capital
[Including Rs. 87.49 million (Previous year Rs. 437.00 million)
in foreign currency]
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Schedules Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,

2005

2004

1,509.20
14.03

-

28.86

-

105.14
5.39
1,662.62

232.53
119.81
352.34

C. LOANS (Contd.)
Unsecured
1.5 % Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (Refer Note No 7(A) of Schedule “O”)
Short Term Loans From a Bank
[Including Rs. 14.03 million (Previous year Rs. Nil) in foreign currency]
Other Loans From a Bank
[Including Rs. 28.86 million (Previous year Rs. Nil) in foreign currency ]
Fixed Deposits
Deferred Sales Tax Credits

Notes:
1.

Term Loans from Punjab National Bank, Export Import Bank of India and Indian Bank and Long Term Foreign Currency Loan
of USD 5 million from Export Import Bank of India are secured by a first charge by way of:
a)

mortgage of the immovable assets and charge by way of hypothecation on the movable assets, both present and
future [Save & except Book debts and Bankers Goods as per Note 2 below and specified exclusions listed in notes i
to iv below] pertaining to the Company’s manufacturing facilities located at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba Phoolay
Nagar, Uttar Pradesh and at Village Samlaya, Taluka, Savli, District Vadodara, Gujarat.
i

specified land and buildings situated at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar, Uttar Pradesh and constructed
out of the financial assistance granted by HDFC.

ii

land and building located at Plot No 1A, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

iii

land & building of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients unit located at Nanjangud, Mysore, Karnataka.

iv

immovable assets of the Company situated at Nimbut Village, District Nira, Pune, Maharashtara

b) hypothecation of fixed assets [other than land and building as mentioned in a (iii)] both present and future pertaining
to the Company’s manufacturing unit situated at Nanjangud, Mysore, Karnataka;
2.

c)

Such charges to rank pari-passu amongst the said chargeholders;

i)

Working Capital Facilities sanctioned by Consortium of Banks and notified Financial Institutions comprising of ICICI
Bank Limited, Corporation Bank, Punjab National Bank, Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited, Canara Bank, Syndicate Bank,
Indian Bank, Export Import Bank of India, ING Vysya Bank Ltd., ABN Amro Bank and Standard Chartered Bank are
secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari passu inter-se Banks, of the entire Book Debts of the
Company and Inventories both present and future at the manufacturing facilities at Bhartiagram, District Jyotiba
Phoolay Nagar, Uttar Pradesh, at Nimbut Village, District Nira, Pune, Maharashtra and at Village Samlaya, Taluka, Savli,
District Vadodara, Gujarat (save and except Book Debts and Inventories related to IMFL business at Nimbut Village,
District Nira, Pune, Maharashtra and the modification of charge for excluding these assets is pending) and at Nanjangud,
Mysore, Karnataka;

ii)

The Company also has a Commercial Paper Programme aggregating Rs. 2000 million within the overall Working Capital
Limits sanctioned to it by the Working Capital Consortium. As on 31.03.05, there was no outstanding against the same.
The Company has availed Rs. 550 million against the said facility during the year (Previous year Rs. 500 million).

3.

Loans availed for financing purchase of vehicles are secured by a first charge by way of an exclusive hypothecation of the
vehicles purchased out of the loan proceeds in favour of the lender.

4.

Secured Loan from Indian Bank, New Delhi is secured by way of charge on the whole of the moveable properties of
Jubilant Biosys Ltd situated at Bangalore including its plant & machinery, machinery spares, computers, tools and accessories
and other movables, both present and future, whether installed or not and whether now lying loose or in case or which are
now lying or stored in or about or shall hereafter from time to time.

5.

Secured Loans includes loans of Rs. 285.80 million (Previous year Rs. 489.60 million) repayable within one year.
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
D.

2005

2004

911.17

773.43

53.31

31.76

857.86

741.67

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(Refer Note 13A of Schedule “O”)
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E.

FIXED ASSETS

(Rs./million)
GROSS BLOCK-COST/BOOK VALUE

Description

Total
as at
31st,March
2004

Additions/
consequent
of
Consolidation

Additions/
adjustments
during the
year

Deductions/
adjustments
during the
year

35.68

10.48

DEPRECIATION
Total
as at
31st,March
2005

Total
as at
31st,March
2004

Additions/
consequent
of
Consolidation

Provided
during
the year

NET BLOCK
Deductions/
adjustments
during the
year

Total
as at
31st,March
2005

As at
31st
March
2005

As at
31st
March
2004

Land
(a) Free Hold

118.00

(b) Lease Hold

120.09

10.48

153.68

1.05

1.05

120.09

153.68

118.00

120.09

120.09

Buildings
(a) Factory

267.82

(b) Others (1)

352.74

Plant & Machinery(2)

67.25
86.04

54.58

86.18

377.28

50.81

11.99
20.87

66.57

268.50

213.24

11.04

20.87

61.85

315.43

301.93

1,142.81

84.81

7,009.55

2,594.88

292.72

70.46

2,817.15

16.27

2.70

23.23

7.73

34.47

4.83

2.70

2.89

2.26

8.16

26.31

11.44

Office Equipments

133.20

20.77

87.03

1.27

239.73

47.27

13.35

21.40

0.55

81.47

158.26

85.93

Furniture & Fixtures

113.96

3.95

32.60

2.01

148.50

23.39

2.66

8.90

0.84

34.11

114.39

90.57

239.03

22.81

33.63

56.44

182.59

127.31

44.36

16.51

8.87

25.38

Vehicles

5,951.54

335.07

24.68

4,192.40 3,356.66

Intangibles
a) Internally generated
- Patents/product development

150.12

88.91

b) Other
- Rights

44.36

Goodwill on Consolidation

51.27

690.12

TOTAL

7,319.37

814.06

1,502.19

192.48

9,443.15

2,815.08

40.63

391.44

96.03

3,151.13

Previous Year

6,645.08

128.99

616.38

46.56

7,343.89

2,513.76

10.13

335.35

19.64

2,839.60

741.39

Capital Work in Progress,Capital Advances & Project Expenses Pending Capitalization

18.98

27.85

741.39

51.27

6,292.02 4,504.29

976.80 445.80
7,268.82 4,950.09

NOTES :

Jubilant Organosys Ltd.

(1) Building includes Rs.500 being cost of share in Co-operative Housing Society.
(2) Adjustment/Deduction in Plant & Machinery includes Rs. 10.14 million(Net) beiing adjustment on account of write off due to impairment of Assets( in accordance with AS-28), which has been adjusted to General
Reserve.
(3) Capital Work in Progress includes Rs. 36.75 million being expenses incurred on Product Development(intangibles) pursuant to AS-26
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Schedules Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
F.

2005

2004

2.10

-

2.10

-

INVESTMENTS : (Long Term)
Number

Face value
per unit

Unquoted (at Cost)
Non Trade Investments

37

Euro 1000

37 Bonds of KBC Equiplus Digi-Opport 2 Kap

Notes:
(1)

Figures in ( ) indicates in respect of previous year

(2)

During the year, the following current investments(Non-Trade) were purchased and sold:
i)

65,675,086 Units of HDFC Liquid Fund -Premium Plan & Cash Management Fund-Savings Plan-at Cost of
Rs. 714.00 million.

ii)

24,998,500 Units of PNB Mutual Fund -Principal Cash Management Fund- at Cost of Rs. 250.00 million.

iii)

24,919,013 Units of SBI Mutual Fund-Magnum Institutional Income-Savings- at Cost of Rs. 250.00 million.

iv)

42,188,752 Units of ICICI Mutual Fund-Prudential ICICI Liquid Plan Institutional Plus- at Cost of
Rs. 500.00 million.

v)

31,333,292 Units of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund-GCCD Grindlays Cash Fund- at Cost of
Rs. 320.00 million.

vi)

49,972,015 Units of HSBC Mutual Fund-HSBC Cash Fund- at Cost of Rs. 500.00 million.

vii)

30,000,000 Units of ABN Amro Mutual Fund-ABN Amro Cash Fund- at Cost of Rs. 300.00 million.
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(Rs./million)

As at 31st March,
G.

2005

2004

- Raw Materials

583.12

439.78

- Stores, Spares, Process Chemicals,Catalyst,Fuels & Packing Material

403.59

313.83

1.36

-

272.19

172.94

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current Assets
Inventories : (Including in Transit & with Third Parties)
(at lower of cost or net realisable value)

- Overseas Traded Goods
- Process Stocks
- Finished Goods (including Trading Goods)

677.20

387.73

1,937.46

1,314.28

137.83

58.11

Sundry Debtors
Unsecured
- Over Six Months - Good
(Includes Subsidy receivable From State Government Rs.18.34 million
(Previous Year Rs.34.25 million))
- Doubtful

1.16

13.13

- Other Debts - Good

1,627.46

1,362.89

(Includes Subsidy receivable From State Government Rs.19.50 million
(Previous Year Rs.13.60 million))

1,766.45

1,434.13

1.16

13.13

1,765.29

1,421.00

- Cash in hand and as Imprest

4.46

5.07

- Cheques/Drafts in hand

0.89

1.53

- On Current Accounts

135.25

147.57

- On Dividend Account

5.30

6.67

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Cash & Bank Balances

- With Scheduled Banks

- On Deposit Accounts (1)
- With Non Scheduled Banks in Current Account (2)

25.46

56.68

204.38

9.93

375.74

227.45

531.24

342.78

0.15

-

Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, Considered good)
- Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received (3)
- Unbilled Revenues
- Deposits
- Deposits with Excise / Sales Tax Authorities (4)
- Advance Payment of Income Tax/Wealth Tax (including TDS)

91.84

83.41

269.03

191.52

327.63

150.99

1,219.89

768.70

5,298.38

3,731.43

(1)

Includes: a) Margin Money - Rs.1.33 million (Previous Year Rs.28.04 million) b) Rs.1.44 million (Previous Year Rs.Nil)
being unutilized money raised from the issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds.

(2)

Includes Current Account with Bank of China, Rs.17.63 million (Previous year Rs.0.12 million), Chase operating
A/c USA Rs.8.25 million (Previous year Rs.9.52 million), J P Money Market A/c USA Rs.0.19 million (Previous year
Rs.0.29 million), ICICI UK Ltd Rs.0.12 million (Previous Year Rs.Nil) & ING Brussels Rs.178.19 million (Previous Year Rs.Nil).

(3)

Includes Rs.250.89 million (Previous Year Rs.123.62 million) Export Benefits Receivables.

(4)

Deposit against disputed demands -Rs.110.58 million (Previous Year Rs.98.09 million)
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Schedules Forming Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Rs./millions)

As at 31st March,

2005

2004

1,406.31

741.81

Acceptances

600.23

463.45

Trade Deposits & Advances

105.73

72.55

Interest Accrued but not due

24.55

29.67

Other Liabilities

72.20

54.95

- Unclaimed/unpaid Dividends

5.30

6.67

- Unclaimed Fixed Deposits

7.68

14.83

- Interest on Unclaimed Matured Fixed Deposits

0.82

2.25

2,222.82

1,386.18

28.32

7.88

For Dividends on Equity Shares

184.67

33.08

For Income Tax & Wealth Tax

411.71

120.73

For Retirement/Post retirement Employee Benefits

99.73

74.69

For Others(1)

33.91

-

730.02

228.50

2,952.84

1,614.68

H.

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A)

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors and Expenses Payable

Investors Education and Protection fund shall be credited
with the following amount namely:

Sundry creditors include,dues to small scale industrial undertakings.

B)

Provisions

Total (A+B)
1)

I.

Includes proportionate provision for premium on redemption of FCCB -Rs.33.57 million

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses

55.58

21.91

55.58

21.91
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Schedules Forming Part of the
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
(Rs./millions)

For the year ended 31st March,
J.

2004

12,276.50

9,446.51

315.29

-

9.63

-

101.71

7.23

SALES & SERVICES
Sales
Licensing & Regulatory Fees
Contract Research Fees
Drug Discovery Informatics Services
Manufacturing Services (Refer Note 14 of Schedule “O” )

33.83 (1)

9,456.65

Income from Current Investments (Non-Trade) - Dividend

3.19

0.21

Insurance / Other Claims (Net)

1.43

5.53

Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Non-Trade) (3)

0.05

0.23

-

10.75

Exceptional Item ( Refer Note 5 of Schedule “O”)

88.74

-

Miscellaneous Receipts (1)

73.00

82.80

166.41

99.52

Includes Rs.15.76 million being value of captively produced ENA
used for the said services

OTHER INCOME

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets(Net) (2)

(Includes Sale of unserviceable spares, used Drums,residual catalyst, etc.)
(1)

Includes:

a)

Income from Utilities provided Rs.0.53 million - Previous year Rs.2.44 million (Tax Deducted at
source Rs.0.09 million-PY Rs.0.25 million).

b)

Processing Charges of Rs.0.52 million - Previous year Rs.2.06 million (Tax Deducted at source
Rs.0.01 million-PY Rs.0.04 million).

c)

Interest on Income Tax Refunds of Rs.2.96 million (Previous year Rs.46.70 million).

d)

Bad Debts recovered Rs. 5.62 million.

(2)

In respect of disposal of land & building during the F.Y 2003-04.

(3)

Previous year figures represents, profit on sale of 3000 equity shares of Canara Bank.

L.

2.91

12,736.96
(1)

K.

2005

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN FINISHED AND PROCESS STOCKS

Stock at close

-

Process

272.19

172.94

Stock at close

-

Finished

677.20

387.73

949.39

560.67

- Process

-

0.69

- Finished

-

6.58

Stock Adjustment ; Pursuant to acquisition of IMFL Business

Stock at commencement

-

Process

172.94

191.24

Stock at commencement

-

Finished

387.73

378.08

560.67

576.59

388.72

(15.92)

(0.91)

(16.20)

387.81

(32.12)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Stocks
Less: Increase/Decrease of Finished & Process Stock of
IMFL Business(Refer Note 14 of Schedule “O” )
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Schedules Forming Part of the
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

2004

303.69

231.06

Raw & Process Materials Consumed

5,701.21

3,638.80

Power and Fuel

1,022.46

907.41

M.

MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES

Purchases - Traded Goods

Excise Duty (Net)

25.23

4.50

Stores, Spares, Chemicals,Catalyst & Packing Materials consumed

606.97

541.67

Processing Charges

134.42

89.97

Repairs- Plant & Machinery

207.43

154.45

14.61

14.64

- Buildings
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Gratuity & Allowances

671.78

488.63

Contribution to Provident & Superannuation Fund

74.02

60.20

Staff Welfare Expenses

61.11

52.30

Rent (Net of recoveries)

38.30

27.63

Rates & Taxes

27.55

14.96

Insurance [Net of recoveries -Rs.8.19 million (PY -Rs.7.42 million)]

44.47

32.67

Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion

51.64

54.32

Traveling & Other Incidental Expenses

119.08

96.09

Offices Maintenance (including Water, Electricity & Repairs to office
equipments & others)

57.29

35.22

Vehicle Maintenance (Including Vehicle Taxes,Insurance & Driver Cost)

25.94

25.90

Printing & Stationery

13.83

12.15

Communication Expenses

42.89

37.26

Staff Recruitment & Training

35.19

19.63

1.26

0.48

Donation (6)
Auditors Remuneration (5) - As Auditors

1.72

0.94

- for Taxation Matters

0.31

0.27

- for Certification/Advices/Other Matters

0.84

0.58

- out of Pocket Expenses

0.10

0.02

Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges

119.78

41.69

Freight & Forwarding (including Ocean freight)

250.83

190.08

13.42

2.28

Amortisation/write off -(VRS Expenses)
Directors’ Sitting Fees

0.71

0.40

Directors’ Commission

28.60

13.65

Miscellaneous Expenses

26.94

12.15

Financial Charges (incl. Bank Charges, Fixed Deposit expenses
& Foreign Exchange fluctuations net gain of Rs.120.05 million(PY
net gain of Rs.191.79 million)) (3)

(38.90)

(89.96)

Discounts & Claims to Customer and Other Selling Expenses

194.45

209.28

Commission on Sales ( 4 )

91.81

32.71

Lease Rentals & Hire Purchase charges

21.15

29.72

Loss on sale/disposal/discard of Fixed Assets

7.95

12.01

Loss on sale of Raw Materials

0.80

-

Bad Debts / irrecoverable Advances woff /provided for

12.99

13.55

10,013.87

7,009.31
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(1)

The above expenses are netted off, after taking into account credit of Rs. 10.92 million (Previous year Rs.9.18 million).

(2)

The above total expenditure includes :
a)

Expenditure incurred on R&D of Rs.119.68 million (Previous Year Rs.91.69 million) under various heads of accounts.

b)

Prior period adjustments determined during the years are adjusted to respective heads of account of
Rs.3.69 million (Previous Year of Rs.2.25 million).

(3)

Total foreign exchange gain of Rs.123.32 million (Previous year Rs.222.02 million) is adjusted against total foreign
exchange losses of Rs.3.27 million (Previous year Rs.30.23 million) as disclosed above. Foreign Exchange loss includes
Rs.1.23 million(Previous year exchange gain of Rs.119.51 million) in respect of Loan Liabilities. Financial charges includes
Rs.24.15 million (Previous year- Rs.37.03 million) being one time charges paid for restructuring of long term loans.

(4)

Includes, provision for liability of Rs.Nil million (Previous year Rs.35.40 million), no longer required, reversed & netted off.

(5)

Excluding Rs. 0.97 million, being payment for Certification/Audit of FCCB documents.

(6)

Includes Rs.1.19 million as contribution to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund.
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March,

2005

2004

On Debentures

0.12

13.48

On Term Loans

148.96

239.30

On Deposits

16.71

34.89

On FCCB

23.05

-

On Overdrafts & other Borrowings(1)

45.33

85.71

234.17

373.38

13.81
220.36

15.74
357.64

N.

INTEREST

Less: Interest Income [Tax deducted at source
Rs.1.66 million (previous year Rs. 2.30 million)]
Including Rs.Nil million (Previous year Rs. 0.04 million)
Interest Income on Investments

(1) Includes Rs.8.99 million (Previous year Rs.2.54 million) as Discounting Charges on Commercial Papers.
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O.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2005 and Consolidated Profit and loss Account for the year ended on that
date.

1.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A.

Basis of Accounting/ Preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) relate to Jubilant Organosys Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”)
and its Subsidiaries (hereinafter referred as the “group”).
The accounts of the group (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) are prepared under historical cost convention
and in accordance with the relevant applicable Accounting Standards using accrual basis of accounting.

B.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
i.

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been combined substantially on a
line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after
fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

ii.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 21 (AS21), “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

The Subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are:

C.

Name of the Company

Place of incorporation

Nature of Business

% voting power as on
31st March 2005

Jubilant Pharma N.V.
(Consolidated including its following
Subsidiaries with 80% holding)

Belgium

Investment

100%

- Pharmaceutical Services
Incorporated N.V.

Belgium

Licensing & Regulatory
Services

- PSI Supply N.V.

Belgium

Trading

Jubilant Organosys
(Shanghai) Ltd.

China

Trading

100%

Jubilant Organosys
(USA) Inc.

USA

Trading

100%

Jubilant Biosys Ltd.

India

Drug Discovery &
Informatics Services

66.98%

Jubilant Chemsys Ltd.

India

Chemistry Services

100%

Jubilant Clinsys Ltd.

India

Clinical Research

100%

iii.

For the purpose of Consolidation of accounts of foreign subsidiaries, average rate of currencies have been taken for
revenue items and for Balance sheet items, except for fixed assets (which is taken on basis of original rates of
transaction) where the year-end rates have been applied.

iv.

The net exchange difference for the translation of items in the financial statement of foreign subsidiaries is taken
to Exchange Fluctuation Reserve, except to that extent adjusted to carrying amount of fixed assets, if any.

v.

The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of
the subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognized
as ‘goodwill’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statement.

vi.

Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of equity attributable to the
minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the company in the subsidiary companies
and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments as stated above.

vii.

Goodwill in the Balance Sheet represents goodwill arising on consolidation of Jubilant Biosys Ltd, India and Jubilant
Pharma N.V., Belgium. Such Goodwill has been tested for impairment using the cash flow projections that are
based on the most recent financial budgets / forecast approved by the management and accordingly, no amortisation
has been made during the year.

a.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation
i.

Fixed Assets are recorded at cost inclusive of such expenses as referred to in (viii) hereunder and/or at the
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revalued value as ascertained by approved valuers and at book value in case of Assets acquired at the time of
amalgamation of certain entities with the Company and at such fair value as ascertained by the valuer in case
of acquisition of manufacturing facilities as a going concern and the cost incidental to and /or attributable to
such acquisition.
ii.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) except in case of Plant & Machinery at Nira & Savli
plants which is on Written Down Value Method (WDV) in terms of rates mentioned and in the manner
specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 (as amended), on the original cost/ acquisition cost of
assets and as mentioned in iii, v, vi, vii & viii hereunder on the revalued portion of the assets at the rates
suggested by the valuers and/or at such rate arrived at with reference to residual life. Certain plants were
classified as continuous process plants from the financial year ended 31-03-2000 and such classification has
been done on technical assessment, (relied upon by the auditor being a technical matter) and depreciation
has been provided accordingly.

iii.

a)

Depreciation, in respect of assets added/installed upto 15th December, 1993, is provided at the rates
applicable at the time of additions/installations of the assets as per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,
1956;

b)

Depreciation, in respect of assets added/installed during the subsequent period, is provided at the rates,
mentioned in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 read with Notification dated
16th December, 1993 issued by Department of Company Affairs, Government of India;

iv.

Intangibles Assets consisting of Patents/Rights/ New Product Development (acquired/self generated) are
capitalised and are amortised over a period of 5 years.

v.

Freehold Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinery was last revalued in the year 1991-92 on the basis of report
obtained from an Approved Valuer and Rs.245.65 million was added to the Gross Block of such assets and
accordingly Depreciation has been provided on the revalued figures. The first revaluation of said Assets was
done during the year 1987-88. A sum of Rs.9.15 million (Previous Year Rs. 9.15 million) has been transferred
from Revaluation Reserve to Profit and Loss Account, which represents the difference between the depreciation
on the revalued value and the original cost of the assets.

vi.

Depreciation on assets added/disposed off during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the month of addition/disposal.

vii.

Insurance spares / standby equipments are capitalised as part of the mother assets and are depreciated at the
applicable rates.

viii. Interest on loans & other financial charges and preoperative expenses including Trial Run Expenses (Net) for
projects and/or substantial expansion upto the date of commencement of commercial production/ stabilization
of the project are capitalized.
ix.

Certain employee perquisite – related assets are depreciated over five years, being the period of the perquisite
scheme.

x.

Depreciation on the assets of Jubilant Organosys (USA) Inc. is provided over the estimated useful life by
using the Straight Line Method. The estimated useful lives of all equipments is 4 years.
Depreciation on the assets of Pharmaceuticals Services Incorporated N.V. and PSI Supply N.V. is being
charged on the following basis.

b.

D.



Plant & Machinery – 20% on SLM basis



Furniture & Fixture – 33% on SLM basis



Vehicles – 20% on SLM basis

Leased Assets: Amortization/charging off
a.

Leasehold Land value is not amortized in view of the long tenure of the unexpired lease period/ conversion to
freehold at the expiry of lease tenure.

b.

Other lease assets: Assets acquired under finance lease from 1st April 2001 are capitalized at the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payment in line with the Accounting Standard 19
issued by the ICAI. In respect of other leases, lease rentals are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost include all direct costs, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of overheads and such other costs incurred as to
bring the inventory to its present location and condition inclusive of excise duty wherever applicable. Cost formula used
is based upon weighted average cost.

E.

Taxation
Current Tax provision is made, taking into consideration the various benefits / concessions to which the Company is
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entitled to as well as the normal tax provisions and the contentions of the Company and also the fact that certain
expenditure becoming allowable on payment being made before filing of the return of income.
In accordance with Accounting Standard 22 – Accounting for Taxes on Income, issued by the ICAI, the deferred tax for
timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred tax assets (reviewed at each Balance Sheet date) arising from timing differences are recognized to the extent
there is reasonable/virtual certainty, as the case may be, that the assets can be realized in future.

F.

Conversion or translation of Foreign Currency items
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on/or closely approximating to the date of
transactions. Current Assets and Liabilities (other than relating to fixed assets) are restated at the rate prevailing at the
period end or at the forward rate where forward cover for specific asset/liability has been taken. The difference between
the period end rate and the exchange rate at the date of the transaction is recognized as income or expense in the profit
and loss account. In respect of forward exchange contracts, the difference between the contract rate and the rate on the
date of transaction is recognized as income or expense in the Profit and Loss Account over the life of the contract.
In the case of liabilities incurred for the acquisition of imported fixed assets, the loss or gain on conversion (at the rate
prevailing at the period end or at the forward rate where forward cover has been taken) is included in the carrying amount
of the related fixed assets.

G.

Contingent Liabilities
Liabilities, though contingent, are provided for if there are reasonable prospects of such liabilities maturing. Other
contingent liabilities, barring frivolous claims, not acknowledged as debts, are disclosed by way of note.

H.

Research & Development
Revenue expenditure on Research & Development are included under the natural heads of expenditure. Capital
expenditure on Research & Development are treated in the same manner as expenditure on other fixed Assets.

I.

J.

Retirement Benefits
-

Provision for Gratuity and leave encashment are made on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to the Profit
& Loss Account except in case of foreign subsidiaries where it is provided on actual basis.

-

Contributions to Superannuation fund are given to LIC, (which administers the fund) and is charged to Profit & Loss
Account. However in respect of overseas companies, contributions made towards retirement /employee benefits,
in accordance with the relevant applicable local laws, are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

-

Employer’s contribution to Employees Provident Fund is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of
such assets upto the date as mentioned in Note No. C (a) viii above. Other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in
the year in which they arise.

K.

Revenue Recognition
(i)

Sales include excise duty, export incentives and subsidies but exclude Inter Divisional Transfers and Sales Tax. In
Order to comply with the Accounting Standard Interpretation ASI 14 issued by ICAI, Sales (including excise duty)
and Net Sales (excluding excise Duty ) is disclosed in Profit & Loss Account.
Export incentives/ benefits are accounted for on accrual basis and as per the principles given under AS-9 (Revenue
Recognition).

(ii)

L.

For Jubilant Biosys Ltd. (being the subsidiary company):
(a)

In respect of sales of products, revenue is recognized on delivery of products to the customers,

(b)

In respect of projects taken up as per the specification of the customers, revenue is recognized on proportionate
completion method, and

(c)

In respect of on site services rendered, revenue is recognized on the basis of billable man-days actually spent.

(iii)

For Jubilant Pharma N.V. (being the subsidiary company) and its subsidiaries: Revenue for licensing and regulatory
services is recognised on the basis of milestones achieved as determined in the respective contracts with the
clients.

(iv)

For Jubilant Chemsys Ltd. (being the subsidiary company) revenue is recognized, for contract research services, to
the extent of services rendered, and, for fixed contracts, on the completion of the arrangement.

Miscellaneous Expenditure / Amortisation
Miscellaneous expenditure consists of expenditure in respect of compensation payable as per the terms of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme of the Company and the same are amortised over a period of thirty six months commencing from
the month in which payment / liability arise.
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M.

Segment Accounting
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with accounting policies of the Company. Revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to operating activities
of the segments (taking into account the nature of products and services and risks & rewards associated with them) and
internal management information systems, and the same is reviewed from time to time to realign the same to conform
to the Business Units of the Company. Revenue, expense, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as
a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as “Common Revenue/Expense/
Assets/Liabilities”, as the case may be.

N.

Impairment of Fixed Assets
In compliance with the Accounting Standard on Impairment of Assets (AS 28) issued by ICAI applicable w.e.f 01.04.2004,
the company has started identifying the assets which are subject to impairment test and adjusted the same in the
manner specified under the said Standard.

2.

Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (Net of Advances) Rs. 543.62 million
(Previous Year Rs. 285.13 million) [Advances Rs.84.77 million (Previous Year Rs.99.72 million)].

3.

Contingent liabilities
a)

Claims/demands/disputes against which appeals are pending and not acknowledged as debts on account
of:
(Rs./million)

2004-05

2003-04
16.73*

- Central Excise

Rs. million

16.73*

- Sales Tax

Rs. million

10.20

5.09

- Income Tax

Rs.million

-

24.15

-Service Tax

Rs. million

1.59

-

- Others

Rs. million

2.53

-

*Amount deposited Rs. 16.73 million
The Company has been advised that its contentions in the matter of disputed demands are legally tenable and hence the
possibility of these maturing is remote.
b)

The Company has challenged the levy of transport fee by State of Maharashtra on consumption of rectified
spirit and molasses in the Nira factory. The order of State imposing the levy was stayed by the Hon’ble
Mumbai High Court on October 22, 2001. The Company has been advised that the levy of transport fee on
rectified spirit and Molasses by State is not tenable. However the Company has deposited Rs. 6.28 million
under protest out of the total transport fee of Rs. 59.83 million.

c)

Outstanding guarantees furnished by Banks on behalf of the Company including in respect of Letters of
Credits/Bonds is Rs.1020.40 million (Previous Year Rs.373.43 million).

d)

Exports obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of five/
eight years on account of import of capital goods at concessional import duty (duty saved Rs 81.56 million)
remaining outstanding is Rs. 652.51 million (Previous year Rs. 153.37 million). Similarly Export obligation
under advance licence scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials (duty saved Rs 66.24 million) by
the Company, remaining outstanding is Rs.611.59 million (Previous year Rs. 232.69 million)

e)

The Company has challenged the increase in denaturing fee by the state of Uttar Pradesh w.e.f
April 01, 2004 on denaturing of rectified spirit in the Gajraula factory, before the Hon’ble Allahabad High Court
and the writ petition has been admitted by the said court. The Company has deposited
Rs 3.50 million under protest.

f)

Zila Panchayat at J.P. Nagar served a notice demanding a compensation of Rs.277.40 million allegedly for
creating lagoons on their lands, percolation of poisonous water stored in lagoons resulting in loss of crops,
cattle of the farmers and poisonous fly ash on national highway which caused loss to the health, eyes and skin
of people.
District Magistrate issued a recovery certificate along with 10% collection charges inflating the demand to
Rs.305.14 million. In the opinion of the Company, the Zila Panchayat has no justification in raising this demand.
The demand was challenged in Hon’ble High Court and the court stayed the demand till further orders.

4.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court has quashed the levy of licence fee by State of Uttar Pradesh on captive consumption
of denatured spirit in the Gajraula factory. While passing the judgment, the Hon’ble Court inadvertently recorded
that licence fee has not been collected by the State Govt. This has been sought to be corrected by moving
rectification application. Consequent to that the Company is entitled to a refund of Rs. 84.06 million.
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5.

Other Income includes exceptional item of Rs 88.74 million being the difference between the amount of deferred
sale tax loans and the amount of payment made (being the Net Present Value of such Deferred Sales Tax Loan)
before the completion of deferred period, pursuant to notification issued by the Government of Maharastra
consequent to the scheme of pre payment.

6.

Loans and advances includes;
Sundry Debtors as shown in Schedule “G” is net after giving the effect of sale of receivables amounting to Rs. NIL
million (Previous year – Rs. 76.95 million)

7.

A)

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)
The Company issued 1.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds amounting to US$ 35 million on May 14,
2004 due for redemption on May 15, 2009. The bond holders have an option to convert these bonds into
Equity Shares or Global Depository Shares (GDS) determined at an initial conversion price of Rs 818.23 per
share at a fixed rate of exchange of Rs. 44.805 = US$ 1. The conversion price will be subject to certain
adjustments. Further the Company has an option of early redemption of these bonds at any time on or after
May 14, 2007 subject to certain conditions. Unless previously converted, redeemed, or purchased and
cancelled, these bonds will be redeemed on May 15, 2009 at 113.70 % of their principal amount. These
proceeds have been used for funding the new projects, expansion of existing units, overseas investments,
expansion and acquisitions and balance of Rs.1.44 million has been temporarily deployed as Fixed Deposit
with a bank pending utilization.
In accordance with the terms of the issue, 27,379 Equity Shares have been issued up to March 31, 2005 to the
bondholders holding FCCB’s aggregating US$0.50 million who have exercised the option to convert. The balance
bonds, net of exchange difference, outstanding as of March 31, 2005 are included under ‘Unsecured Loans’.

B)

Private Placement of Equity Shares
During the year, the Company allotted 2,424,273 fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs.5 each, at a premium of
Rs.820 per share, on private placement basis to two foreign investors viz. Citicorp International Finance
Corporation and HPC (Mauritius ) Limited. The proceeds have been used for debt reduction, capital expenditure,
expansion plans and other corporate purposes.

8.

9.

(a)

Assets aggregating Rs 49.00 million (previous year - Rs. 84.95 million) have been acquired on financial lease
during the earlier years. The obligation for future lease rentals in respect of such assets aggregate to Rs 12.10
million. (previous year - Rs. 30.73 million) payable within a period of 2 years. Lease rentals payable during the
year 2005-06 is Rs 10.62 million and balance amount of Rs. 1.48 million is payable in the year 2006-07.

(b)

The Company’s significant operating leasing arrangements are in respect of premises (residential, offices,
godown etc.). These leasing arrangements, which are cancelable, range between 11 months and 9 years
generally and are usually renewable by mutual agreeable terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are
charged as expenses.

Capitalization of Interest, Pre-operative and Trial Run expenses
In line with the applicable Accounting Standards, interest on funds utilized and preoperative expenses including
trial run expenses (net) for projects and/or substantial expansions have been capitalized up to the date of commercial
production/stabilization of the project, amounting to Rs. 93.45 million (Previous Year Rs. 40.29 million). All
preoperative expenditure including interest of Rs. 18.99 million (Previous Year Rs 12.94 million) so capitalized and
Trial Run Expenditures (net of trial run receipts) accumulated as Capital work in progress has been allocated to
respective Fixed Assets.

10.

Hitherto, the Company has been recognizing inter-division transfers for captive consumption as sales and the value
of such inter-division transfers was included in material consumption, With effect from the financial year ended
March 31, 2005; pursuant to the clarification on Accounting Standard-9(AS-9), on Revenue Recognition, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India; the Company has discontinued the said method of recognizing
inter-division transfer as sales and material consumption and the previous year figures have been restated
accordingly. The above change in method of revenue recognition has resulted in reduction in Sales (Gross) by
Rs.2,747.74 million (Previous year Rs. 2,302.76 million) and with a corresponding reduction in the amount of
material consumption. However, such change, has no impact on the profit of the Company.

11.

a)

PSI N.V., the step down subsidiary company, has written back part of the liabilities, deemed not payable,
amounting to Rs 18.70 million (Euro 0.33 million) during the current year.

b)

PSI N.V. and PSI Supply N.V., the step down subsidiaries, have transferred the usufruct for Land and Building
in two companies to the owner of the building (Managing Director of said companies) at a consideration of
Euro 1.2 million. The appropriate accounting treatment for the sale of usufruct has been made in the books of
accounts.

12.

In compliance with Accounting Standard 28 (AS-28) relating to Impairment of Assets issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company has identified and assessed its assets for impairment and provided,
Rs. 10.14 million towards provision for impairment of assets as at April 01, 2004 and the same has been adjusted
against the opening General Reserve.
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13.

(A)

Deferred Assets and Liabilities are attributable to the following items:
(Rs./million)

As at

31.03.05

31.03.04

33.26

26.69

Amount disallowed u/s 43 B

0.84

0.36

Provision for doubtful debts

-

4.71

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuity

Deduction allowed under section 35 D

19.21

-

53.31

31.76

910.14

772.63

1.03

0.80

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated depreciation
Payments under Voluntary Retirement Scheme

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

911.17

773.43

857.86

741.67

(B)

An amount of Rs. Nil million (Previous Year Rs. 63.00 million) has been withdrawn from reserves to offset the
charge arising on reversal of deferred tax assets.

(C)

Adjustment for Tax of Earlier years represents : a) Rs. Nil million (Previous Year Rs 18.00 million) is due to
reversal of excess of provision of Tax in earlier years ascertained upon the revision in the method of calculation
of MAT for the previous years based on the legal advice and b) Rs.2.13 million (Previous Year Rs. 6.85
million)-on account of credits/ refunds relating to earlier years.

(D)

In respect of Jubilant Biosys Ltd., the subsidiary company, the said company does not anticipate any tax
liability as it is entitled to 100% tax exemption up to ten year and as such there remains no timing difference
in respect of book depreciation and income tax depreciation, hence, no Deferred Tax Liability/asset was
required to be recognized.

(E)

The Company has been granted approval by the Department of Scientific and Industrial Research for its new
in-house research and development center at Noida. The Company has made an application for approval for
claiming weighted deduction under section 35 (2AB) of the Income Tax Act 1961 and the tax computations
have been made accordingly.

14. The bottling unit of the company situated at Nira holds a potable liquor license for Indian Made Foreign Liquor (IMFL) and
the same is bottling IMFL on the order of another company and is charging bottling fee.
The annual accounts recognise revenue and expenditure, only to the extent the Company enjoys beneficial Interest.
In compliance with the requirements of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the following information is given
hereunder in respect of the transactions where the Company does not enjoy beneficial Interest.
(Rs./million)

For the year ended 31st March
Sales
Excise Duty

2005

2004

636.33

108.73

(397.38)

(90.32)

Other Income

5.58

0.88

Increase/(Decrease) in Finished & Process Stocks

0.91

16.20

Raw & Process Materials Consumed

(49.81)

(8.57)

Stores, Spares, Chemicals, Catalyst & Packing Materials consumed

(73.90)

(9.95)

Rates & Taxes

-

(0.01)

Insurance (Net of recoveries)

(0.45)

(0.03)

Other Expenses

(0.16)

(0.01)

Freight & Forwarding (including Ocean Freight)

(5.71)

(0.99)

(77.33)

(13.02)

(4.25)

-

Discounts & Claims to Customers & Other Selling Expenses
Purchase of Trading Material
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15.

Segment Reporting :
i)

ii)
iii)

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard on “Segment Reporting” ((AS-17) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India) the Company’s primary business segments are organized around
customers on industry and product lines as under :
a.
Pharmaceuticals & Life Science Chemicals : Pharmaceuticals(Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients, Dosage
Forms, Licensing & Regulatory Services, Drug Discovery & Informatics Services, Chemistry Services, Clinical
Research), Custom Research & Manufacturing Services (CRAMS) and Food Polymers.
b.
Performance Chemicals : Industrial Products for tyres, textiles and coatings; Specialty Gases and Consumer
Products for woodworking solutions.
c.
Industrial Chemicals : Organic Intermediates, Agri and Animal Nutrition Products.
Inter Segment Transfer Pricing: Inter Segment transfer prices are based on market prices.

The Financial information about the primary business segments is presented in the table given below:
(Rs./million)
Particulars

1)

2)

3)

Pharmaceuticals &
Life Science Chemicals

Total

2004

2005

2004

2005

2004

2005

2004

Revenue
Less: Inter Segment Revenue
Less: Excise Duty on Sales

5020.02

3422.91

1902.28

1803.88

178.84

210.08

234.53

220.21

5995.85
181.19
620.94

4423.87
194.01
434.35

12918.15
181.19
1034.31

9650.66
194.01
864.64

Net sales

4841.18

3212.83

1667.75

1583.67

5193.72

3795.51

11702.65

8592.01

Segment results
Less : Interest (Net)
Other un-allocable expenditure
(net of un-allocable income)

1110.85

840.99

24.71

38.25

830.06

609.01

1965.62
220.36
104.02

1488.25
357.64
164.33

Total Profit Before Tax

1110.85

840.99

24.71

38.25

830.06

609.01

1641.24

966.28

7,246.50

4,178.52

798.10

765.83

3,881.75

3,238.67

11,926.35
698.53

8,183.02
520.41

7,246.50
710.24

4,178.52
562.35

798.10
265.50

765.83
247.31

3,881.75
1,258.46

3,238.67
551.60

12,624.88
2,234.20
718.64

8,703.43
1,361.26
253.42

Capital Employed
(Segment Assets - Segment Liabilities)
Segment Assets
Add: Common Assets

Total Liabilities

5)

Industrial
Chemicals

2005

Total Assets
Segment Liabilities
Add: Common Liabilities

4)

Perfomance
Chemicals

710.24

562.35

265.50

247.31

1,258.46

551.60

2,952.84

1,614.68

Segment Capital Employed
Add: Common Capital Employed

6,536.26

3616.17

532.60

518.52

2,623.29

2,687.07

9,692.15
(20.11)

6,821.76
266.99

Total Capital Employed

6,536.26

3,616.17

532.60

518.52

2,623.29

2,687.07

9,672.04

7,088.75

Segment Capital Expenditure
Add: Common Capital Expenditure

1,076.42

417.09

37.13

14.08

381.45

130.63

1,495.00
7.19

561.80
3.31

Total Capital Expenditure

1,076.42

417.09

37.13

14.08

381.45

130.63

1,502.19

565.11

Depreciation (Net)
Add: Common Depreciation

191.61

131.44

25.92

26.96

155.17

159.88

372.70
8.70

318.28
7.90

Total Depreciation

191.61

131.44

25.92

26.96

155.17

159.88

381.40

326.18

Notes :

1) The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the Primary segment
2) Segments have been identified and reported taking into account the nature of products and services, the
differing risk and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems.
3) The Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of
the segments and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

iv) Secondary Segment Reporting : Geographical
(Rs./million)
Particulars
Revenues
Less: Inter Segment Revenue

India

Americas & Europe

China

Asia & Others

2005

2004

2005

2004

2005

2004

2005

8,716.50

7,363.34

3,052.40

1,314.92

624.40

390.70

524.85

181.19

194.01

Less: Excise Duty on Sales

1,034.31

864.64

Net sales

7,501.00

6,304.69

3,052.40

1,314.92

624.40

390.70

524.85

2004

Total
2005

2004

581.70 12,918.15 9,650.66
181.19

194.01

1034.31

864.64

581.70 11,702.65 8,592.01
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16 A. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has entered into transactions with the related parties:
a.

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
-

Associates
Jubilant Enpro Private Ltd.

-

Others
Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust

b.

I.

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Shyam S Bhartia, Mr. Hari S Bhartia, Mr. S N Singh, Mr. Shyam Bang, Dr. J M Khanna,
Mr. R. Sankaraiah & Ms Lieve Vermassen ( Remuneration in form of Service Fees)

II.

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Ms Shobhana Bhartia, Ms Sudha Singh, Ms Shobha Bang, Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh, Ms Chitra Sankaraiah

c.

Transactions with related parties during the period
(Rs./million)

Particulars

Associates

Key Mgmt.
Personnel & Relatives

Others

8.08
(7.96)

(-)

(-)

Company’s Contribution to PF Trust

(-)

(-)

54.99
(42.67)

Remuneration and related expenses

(-)

66.98
(35.14)

(-)

Fixed Deposits outstanding at the year end

(-)

0.76
(5.10)

(-)

Interest on Fixed Deposits During the Year

(-)

0.42
(0.57)

_
(-)

Rent paid to the relatives

(-)

1.62
(-)

_
(-)

Expenses recharged to other
Companies for facilities provided

Note: 1) Figures in ( ) indicates in respect of previous year.
2) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

16 B. Promoter Group
Group companies
The Company is controlled by Mr. Shyam S Bhartia/Mr. Hari S Bhartia group (“the promoter group”), being a group as
defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Act, 1969.
The persons constituting the promoter group include individuals and corporate bodies who/which jointly exercise, and
are in a position to exercise, control over the Company. The names of these individuals and bodies corporate are Mr.
Shyam S Bhartia, Mr. Hari S Bhartia, Mrs. Shobhana Bhartia, Mrs.Kavita Bhartia, Mr.Priyavrat Bhartia, Mr.Shamit Bhartia,
Ms. Aashti Bhartia, Master Arjun S Bhartia, Best Luck Vanijya Private Ltd., Denon Dealers Private Ltd., Enpro Exports
Private Ltd., Enpro Finance Private Ltd., Enpro Investments Private Ltd., Jaytee Private Ltd., Jubilant Enpro Private Ltd.,
Jubilant Securities Private Ltd., Jubilant Capital Private Ltd., Kavita Commercial Private Ltd., Klinton Agencies Private
Ltd., Marketex Mercantiles Private Ltd., Marshall Mercantiles Private Ltd., Shobhna Commercial Private Ltd., Sepeedage
Vinimay Private Ltd., Rance Investment Holdings Ltd., Cumin Investments Ltd., Torino Overseas Ltd., Value Leasing Ltd.,
Vam Holdings Ltd., VOCL Investments Ltd., Volvo Holdings Ltd., Westcost Vyapaar Private Ltd., Nikita Resources Private
Ltd.
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(Rs./million)

2004-05

2003-04

1,191.93

782.37

17. Earning Per Share
Profit after Tax for Basic EPS

Rs. million.

Number of Ordinary shares at the beginning of the period

Nos

23,461,703

14,663,564

Shares issued on 18th March 2004 as Bonus shares

Nos

-

8,798,139

Shares issued on 20th Dec 2004 on preferential basis

Nos

2,424,273

-

Shares issued on 16th March 2005 on conversion of FCCB

Nos

27,379

-

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares for Basic EPS

Nos

24,133,729

23,461,703

The Nominal Value per Ordinary Share

Rupees

5

5

Earning Per Share (Basic)

Rupees

49.39

33.35

Profit after Tax for Basic EPS

Rs. million.

1,191.93

782.37

Add: Interest payable on outstanding
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

Rs. million.

23.05

-

Less; Tax Impact on the above Interest

Rs. million.

8.44

-

Profit After Tax for Diluted EPS

Rs. million.

1,206.54

782.37

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares for Basic EPS

Nos

24,133,729

23,461,703

Add:Adjustment for Options related to Foreign
Currency Convertible Bonds

Nos

1,661,431

-

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for Diluted EPS

Nos

25,795,161

23,461,703

Earning Per Share (Diluted)

Rupees

46.77

33.35

18. Figure pertaining to the Subsidiaries, have been reclassified wherever considered necessary to bring them in line with the
Company’s Financial Statements.

19. Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever found necessary to conform to this year’s classification.
Signatures to Schedule “A” to “O” forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

In terms of our report of even date attached.
for K N Gutgutia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

B R Goyal

Shyam S Bhartia

Partner
Membership No. 12172

Noida
Date : 16th April, 2005

Chairman & Managing Director

Lalit Jain

R Sankaraiah

Company Secretary

Executive Director-Finance

Hari S Bhartia
Co-Chairman & Managing Director
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